BCP

Council

Notice of Health and Adult Social Care Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Date: Monday, 2 March 2026 at 6.00 pm

Venue: HMS Phoebe, BCP Civic Centre, Bournemouth BH2 6DY

Membership:

Chair:
Clir P Canavan

Vice Chair:
Clir L Northover

Clir H Allen Clir M Dower Clir C Righy
Clir J Bagwell Clir C Matthews Clir P Slade
Clir L Dedman Clir J Richardson

All Members of the Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee are
summoned to attend this meeting to consider the items of business set out on the agenda
below.

The press and public are welcome to view the live stream of this meeting at the following
link:

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5940
if you would like any further information on the items to be considered at the meeting please
contact: Louise Smith, louise.smith@bcpcouncil.gov.uk or Democratic Services or

email democratic.services@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

Press enquiries should be directed to the Press Office: Tel: 01202 118686 or
email press.office@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

This notice and all the papers mentioned within it are available at democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk

AIDAN DUNN
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

DEBAT

on the Mod.gov app

Available online and

20 February 2026

BCP Council Civic Centre, Bourne Avenue, Bournemouth BH2 6DY



Maintaining and promoting high standards of conduct

Declaring interests at meetings
Familiarise yourself with the Councillor Code of Conduct which can be found in
Part 6 of the Council’'s Constitution.

Before the meeting, read the agenda and reports to see if the matters to be
discussed at the meeting concern your interests

Does the matter directly relate to one of my Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs)
(set out in Table 1)?

Does the matter directly relate to the
finances or wellbeing of one of my Other
Registerable Interests (ORIs)

(set out in Table 2)?

| have a DPI and cannot take part without
a dispensation

I have an ORI and must disclose it.
| may speak as a member of the public but
not discuss or vote and must leave the
room

Does it directly relate to the finances or
wellbeing of me, a relative or a close
associate?

| have a NRI and must disclose it.
| may speak as a member of the public but
not discuss or vote and must leave the

Does it affect the finances or wellbeing of
me, a relative or a close associate or any
of my ORIs?

Am | or they affected to a greater extent that
most people? And would a reasonable person
think my judgementis clouded?

| have an interest and must disclose it.
| may speak as a member of the public but
not discuss or vote and must leave the
room

| have no interest to disclose

What are the principles of bias and pre-determination and how do they affect my
participation in the meeting?

Bias and predetermination are common law concepts. If they affect you, your
participation in the meeting may call into question the decision arrived at on the
item.

Bias Test Predetermination Test

In all the circumstances, would it
lead a fair minded and informed
observer to conclude that there was
areal possibility or a real danger that mind?

At the time of making the decision,
did the decision maker have a closed

the decision maker was biased?

.

If a councillor appears to be biased or to have predetermined their decision,
they must NOT participate in the meeting.

For more information or advice please contact the Monitoring Officer

Councillors should act solely
in terms of the public
interest

Councillors must avoid
placing themselves under
any obligation to people or
organisations that might try
inappropriately to influence
them in their work. They
should not act or take
decisions in order to gain
financial or other material
benefits for themselves,
their family, or their friends.
They must declare and
resolve any interests and
relationships

Objectivity

Councillors must act and
take decisions impartially,
fairly and on merit, using the
best evidence and without
discrimination or bias

Accountability

Councillors are accountable
to the public for their
decisions and actions and
must submit themselves to
the scrutiny necessaryto
ensure this

Councillors should act and
take decisions in an open
and transparent manner.
Information should not be
withheld from the public
unless there are clear and
lawful reasons for so doing

Honesty & Integrity

Councillors should act with
honesty and integrity and
should not place themselves
in situations where their
honesty and integrity may
be questioned

Leadership

Councillors should exhibit
these principles in their own
behaviour. They should
actively promote and
robustly support the
principles and be willing to
challenge poor behaviour
wherever it occurs




AGENDA

ltems to be considered while the meeting is open to the public

Apologies

To receive any apologies for absence from Councillors.

Substitute Members

To receive information on any changes in the membership of the
Committee.

Note — When a member of a Committee is unable to attend a meeting of a
Committee or Sub-Committee, the relevant Political Group Leader (or their
nominated representative) may, by notice to the Monitoring Officer (or their
nominated representative) prior to the meeting, appoint a substitute
member from within the same Political Group. The contact details on the
front of this agenda should be used for notifications.

Declarations of Interests

Councillors are requested to declare any interests on items included in this
agenda. Please refer to the workflow on the preceding page for guidance.

Declarations received will be reported at the meeting.

Minutes

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 1 December 2025.

Recommendation Tracker

For the Committee to note the latest updates to the Recommendation
Tracker and consider any outstanding actions.

Public Issues

To receive any public questions, statements or petitions submitted in
accordance with the Constitution. Further information on the requirements
for submitting these is available to view at the following link:-

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s2305/Public%20ikems%2
0-%20Meeting%20Procedure%20Rules.pdf

The deadline for the submission of public questions is midday on Tuesday
24 February (3 clear working days before the meeting).

The deadline for the submission of a statement is midday on Friday 27
February (the working day before the meeting).

The deadline for the submission of a petition is Friday 13 February (10
working days before the meeting).

17 -52


https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s2305/Public%20Items%20-%20Meeting%20Procedure%20Rules.pdf
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s2305/Public%20Items%20-%20Meeting%20Procedure%20Rules.pdf

ITEMS OF BUSINESS

FutureCare Programme — Impact analysis and finance update

Focusing on outcomes for people, this report sets out an analysis of the
benefits delivered so far by the FutureCare Programme against the targets
set in the FutureCare Diagnostic.

Fewer people are being admitted into hospital beds, more people are
receiving care at home and the length of time people are spending in
intermediate care beds has reduced by an average of 5.5 days.

However, more work is still required to deliver all of the benefits anticipated
in the FutureCare Diagnostic and in particular to reduce the length of time
people spend in UHD hospitals waiting to be discharged with a short-term
care package.

Recognising that there are still 5 months remaining to deliver the first phase
of the programme (anticipated completion: June 2026), there is still
confidence that anticipated benefits will be delivered.

Positively, since the December update to the Committee, despite the impact
of seasonal pressures on overall programme benefits, the cumulative
benefits delivered to BCP have moved from a negative position of -£32,000
in October to a positive position of £55,000 at the beginning of February.

There is also increasing confidence that the anticipated benefits in 2026/27
for BCP Council will be greater than forecast, though some of these are
being offset by increasing demand pressures across the wider ASC budget.

University Hospitals Dorset - Developing our clinical strategy 2025-
2035

To receive a presentation from UHD regarding ‘Developing our clinical
strategy 2025-2035’

Adult Social Care Fulfilled Lives Transformation Programme

In July 2024, BCP Cabinet and Full Council agree to support a four-year
transformation programme called Fulfilled Lives, approving a total
investment of £2.9m spanning the first three years.

The programme is made up of four inter-dependent projects:
e How We Work

e Short-Term Support

e Self-Directed Support

e Support At Home

The programme entered its delivery phase in January 2025 and
progress reports were presented to Committee in January, March, July and
September.

This report provides a further update for the programme overall to reflect

53-64

65-94

95-104



10.

11.

12.

the achievements to date, the current challenges, and the next stepsto be
taken over the following six months.

Work Plan
To consider the Committee’s Work Plan.

Portfolio Holder Update

To receive a verbal update from the Portfolio Holder for Health and
Wellbeing.

ITEMS FOR INFORMATION

Corporate Monitoring Report (Q2)

This was considered by Cabinet on 17 December 2025 and is being shared
to all Overview and Scrutiny Committees for information.

105- 118

119-152

No other items of business can be considered unless the Chairman decides the matter is urgent for reasons that
must be specified and recorded in the Minutes.



This page is intentionally left blank



Present:

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

Agenda ltem 4

- 1-
BOURNEMOUTH, CHRISTCHURCH AND POOLE COUNCIL

HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

Minutes of the Meeting held on 01 December 2025 at 6.00 pm

Present:-
Clir P Canavan — Chair
ClIr L Northover — Vice-Chair

Clir J Bagwell, Clir M Dower, Clr C Matthews, Clir P Slade and
Cllr J Salmon

Apologies

Apologies for absence were received from Clirs Hazel Allen, Lesley
Dedman, Judy Richardson and Chris Rigby.

Substitute Members

Clir Joe Salmon substituted for Cllr Rigby on this occasion.

Declarations of Interests

Clir Joe Salmon declared a personal interest as an employee of Dorset
Healthcare.

Minutes

The minutes of the meeting held on 23 September 2025 were confirmed as
an accurate record and signed by the Chair.

Action Sheet

The action sheet was noted.

Public Issues

There were no public issues on this occasion.

Bournemouth, Christchurch & Poole (BCP) Safeguarding Adults Board
Annual Report 2024-2025

The Independent Chair, Dorset and Bournemouth, Christchurch & Poole
Safeguarding Adults Boards presented a report, a copy of which had been
circulated to each Member and a copy of which appears as Appendix 'A' to
these Minutes in the Minute Book.



—-2_
HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

01 December 2025

The BCP Safeguarding Adults Board (SAB) published an Annual Report
each year and statutorily, the report must be presented to the local Health &
Wellbeing Board and this took place on 6 October 2025. This Committee
also agreed to consider this report as part of its annual work plan.

The report, agreed at the September 2025 meeting of the Safeguarding
Adults Board represents reporting in the year April 2024 to March 2025.

The BCP SAB had continued to successfully work together with the Dorset
SAB with joint meetings of the main Board and subgroups. Throughout 24-
25, BCP SAB had delivered against all priorities which were set out in the
annual work plan; this Annual Report summarised what the Board had
achieved.

It was noted that there was two separate Annual Reports, one for each of
the Boards as they were separately constituted.

The Committee considered the report, including:

e In response to a query from the Chair about safeguarding concerns
that do not progress to Section 42 Enquiries, the Committee was
advised many safeguarding concerns were triaged at the adult social
care front door which resulted in some not progressing as a
safeguarding concern but would instead be directed to the
appropriate service. It was highlighted that of 6,291 referrals in the
year, 1,381 progressed to Section 42 Enquiries (approx. 20%), which
required detailed investigation.

e The Director of Adult Social Care advised that the remodeling and
reconfiguration of the adult social care hub meant that there were
trained specialists in place to ensure any safeguarding concerns
were triaged appropriately and sensitively.

e In response to a query about whether members of the public or
Councillors can raise safeguarding concerns for board consideration,
the Committee was advised that the board was strategic, not
operational and therefore any concerns should be raised directly with
adult social care or relevant partners.

e |t was highlighted that future oversight from the Board was planned
for new mental health legislation and Liberty Protection Safeguards
implementation.

RESOLVED that Members note the report which informs how the SAB
has carried out its responsibilities to prevent abuse, harm and neglect
of adults with care and support needs during 2024- 2025.

Voting: Nem. Con.



43.

.
HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE
01 December 2025

Adult Social Care — Compliments, Complaints and Learning Annual Report
2024/25

The Head of Transformation and Integration presented a report, a copy of
which had been circulated to each Member and a copy of which appears as
Appendix 'B' to these Minutes in the Minute Book.

Adult Social Care had a statutory responsibility under the Local Authority
Social Services and National Health Service Complaints (England)
Regulations 2009 to report complaints and other representations about
Health and Adult Social Care. Councils and NHS bodies were required to
produce an annual report about complaints received, issues that had been
raised and any action that had been taken to improve services.

Adult Social Care produced an annual report on complaints received,
issues that had been raised and any action that had been taken to
improve services. Adult Social Care encouraged feedback from a range of
sources including complaints, compliments and comments.

The report provided a summary of complaints and compliments, including
learning, for BCP Council Adult Social Care from 1St April 2024 to 31st
March 2025.

The Committee considered the report, including:

e In response to a query, the Committee was advised of the reasons
why the 20-day target may not be reached and it was highlighted
that although the target was best practice, it was not statutory. The
measures being used to improve response times were detailed,
including an increase in training for managers regarding the quality
of complaint responses.

e A Member highlighted the importance of sharing compliments as part
of learning and team development, and it was confirmed that positive
feedback was actively shared to support improvement.

e It was noted that some delays related to the complexity of cases and
the need for meetings with complainants to achieve the best
outcome, which can take time to arrange.

e The Committee was assured that communication with complainants
continued throughout the process to maintain transparency.

e In response to a query, it was explained that complaints were
managed centrally, with lead responsibility agreed between teams
based on the main area of concern and that a joint protocol existed
with health partners to coordinate responses for complaints spanning
social care and health services.

RESOLVED that the Committee note and scrutinise the information
contained in this report.

Voting: Nem. Con.



44.

—4—

HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

01 December 2025

FutureCare Programme — Mid-Programme Review

The Programme Director - FutureCare Programme and the Director of Adult
Social Care presented a report, a copy of which had been circulated to
each Member and a copy of which appears as Appendix 'C' to these
Minutes in the Minute Book.

it was highlighted that at the midpoint of the FutureCare Programme,
substantial operational benefits had been delivered. These included
reducing the number of people moving directly into a residential and
nursing home following a stay in a community hospital bed by 30%,
increasing the number of people being referred to same day emergency
care as an alternative to a hospital stay from a baseline position of 594
people per week to 649 per week and reducing the average length of time
people stay in a community hospital or in a short stay care home bed from a
baseline position of 38.2 days to a current position of 33.3 days. However,
so far, the programme had only had a limited impact on reducing the length
of time people spend in hospital waiting for a care package once they
become medically fit. On 6 October 2025, the average length of time a
person was waiting to be discharged from hospital with a care package,
was 9.64 days, against a target of 8.07 days. At the beginning of the
programme, the average length of stay was 9.7 days.

Overall, at the beginning of October the programme was on track against its
operational benefits trajectory, delivering a projected £12.87m of annual
operational benefits, against a target of £12.54m.

The Committee considered the report, including:

¢ In response to a query, the Committee was reassured that
Bournemouth and Poole Hospital sites were fully embedded in the
programme alongside other key partners, including Dorset Council,
Dorset Healthcare and the Integrated Care Board.

e Concerns were raised about the lack of visible savings compared to
investment, the absence of detailed financial analysis, and the need
for clear evidence of realisation rather than theoretical savings.

e |t was confirmed that a finance benefit working group met monthly,
reporting to CFOs and Section 151 officers, and that in-year savings
were on target for £6 million across the partners organisations
involved.

e The importance of tracking savings through to tangible outcomes,
such as reduced home care hours and improved reablement was
highlighted, and the Chair requested detailed data analysis at a
future meeting. ACTION.

e The Committee was advised that workstreams included alternatives
to admission, same-day treatments, and discharge-to-assess beds,
with efforts focused on reducing hospital length of stay and
improving patient flow.

10



45.

—5—
HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

01 December 2025

e |t was noted that while reductions in length of stay were beginning to
emerge, progress was inconsistent, and further improvement was
required.

e The programme was reported to be essential for managing
increased demand, with investment factored in the Medium Term
Financial Plan.

e Members acknowledged the complexity of transformation and the
need for continued scrutiny, while recognising the efforts of all
partners involved.

e Confirmation was given that community hospitals managed by
Dorset Healthcare were included in the programme, with a target of
reducing the average length of stay from 36 to a maximum of 31
days.

RESOLVED that the Committee:

e recognises the progress that the programme continues to make
in respect of improved outcomes for people and the delivery of
financial benefits to the Dorset Integrated Care System, but
that more work is required to reduce the average length of time
people spend in hospital waiting for a care package.

e requests the programme return to its next meeting on 2 March
2026 with detailed financial and impact data to scrutinise.

Voting: Nem. Con.

Integrated Neighbourhood Teams (INTs) Update

The Joint Chief Nursing Officer introduced the item and the Transformation
Director and Chief Medical Officer, Dorset Healthcare presented a report, a
copy of which had been circulated to each Member and a copy of which
appears as Appendix 'D' to these Minutes in the Minute Book.

The government had emphasised the importance of this shift in its ambition
for neighbourhood health services enabling people to live more years of
healthy, active and independent life and improve their experience of health
and care, whilst connecting together and making optimal use of health and
care resource by:

. Moving care from hospital to community, so that more people can be
cared for at home, helping them to maintain their independence for
as long as possible, only using hospitals when that was the best
place for people to be.

. Making better use of technology to support people to take better care
of themselves, to improve treatment and diagnostics, and to provide
seamless care across organisations.

. Focussing on preventing illness with an increased focus on
prevention and proactive care

11



—6—

HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

01 December 2025

To realise this ambition health and care services need to:

. Streamline access to care and advice for people who get ill or
become in need but only use health and care services infrequently:
providing them with much more choice about how they access care
and ensuring that support was available in their community when
they need it.

. Provide more proactive, personalised care with support from a
multidisciplinary team of professionals to people with more complex
needs, including, but not limited to, those with multiple long-term
conditions.

. Help people to stay well for longer as part of a more ambitious and
joined-up approach to prevention.

The approach was to develop Integrated Neighbourhood Teams (INTSs).
Integrated Neighbourhood Teams would be responsible for working with
their local communities to improve health and wellbeing outcomes, co-
design sustainable and high-quality health and care provision and improve
the quality of life for individuals across the community by increasing
accessibility to services.

These teams would work together to provide joined-up services which work
more efficiently and provide quicker access to the care and support that
people need. Integrated Neighbourhood Teams would be the gel that keeps
things together for people within our communities.

Work across partners was needed, with citizens and communities, to co-
design local solutions and also to improve systems and processes to
reduce the burden of administration for staff.

This would not be simple; it would take time to deliver the full extent of the
ambition and get everything in place.

The first two years of the Integrated Neighbourhood Team programme was
building the foundations for this way of working and supporting the
development of Neighbourhood Health Services.

The report provided a summary of the progress made in building INTs
across BCP and how the programme was developing to reflect the
emerging Neighbourhood Health agenda.

The Committee discussed the report, including:

e In response to a query regarding links between neighbourhood
health centres and recent government initiatives announced in the
Autumn Statement, the Committee was advised that details on
neighbourhood health hubs were unclear and any potential local
allocations were unknown at this time.

e Community involvement was discussed, and it was highlighted that a
co-production group was developing plans to integrate communities
into neighbourhood leadership teams at a sustainable pace.

12



46.

—-7-

HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

01 December 2025

e Concerns were raised about repeating past initiatives and the need
to learn from previous experiences.

e Dorset Healthcare highlighted differences from past efforts, citing the
NHS 10-year plan’s stronger national commitment to neighbourhood-
based care and improved, solid foundations to ensure success.

e In response to a query regarding how success and savings were
going to be measured, it was highlighted that the programme aimed
to deliver £6.3m cashable savings over two years, alongside
productivity improvements.

e In response to a query, the Committee was advised that savings
were tracked across eight areas, which included unplanned
admissions, length of stay, emergency attendances, outpatient and
elective referrals, prescribing, community equipment, and one
additional category.

e The Committee was advised that forecasting used historic data to
compare ‘do nothing’ scenarios with expected demand reductions
which was monitored monthly via dashboards compiled by the
Dorset Inteligence and Insight Service (DiiS).

e The Committee requested the programme DiiS dashboard be shared
with them to consider further. ACTION.

RESOLVED that the committee note the progress made on developing
Integrated Neighbourhood Teams.

Voting: Nem Con.

Dorset Palliative and End of Life Strateqy

The Deputy Director of Integrated Neighbourhood and Primary Care, NHS
Dorset and Chief Executive Officer, Lewis-Manning presented a report, a
copy of which had been circulated to each Member and a copy of which
appears as Appendix 'E' to these Minutes in the Minute Book.

The Palliative and End of Life Care strategy explained what was hoped to
be achieved and how it was proposed to do it. The document considered
both adult and children’s end of life care. It aligned aims and priorities,
providing a clear strategy on how the service could provide excellent,
personalised palliative and end of life care to anyone who needs it, no
matter their age, and offer support to each individual and those most
important to them.

Since the strategy had been approved a group of stakeholders had come
together to work with Macmillan to draw in Social Finance to support the
implementation of the strategy. Full approval was expected over the winter
of 2025/6 and thoughts and questions were welcomed from the committee
to support the implementation plan.

The Committee considered the report, including:

13



47.

48.

—-8-—
HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

01 December 2025

e The Chair thanked the presenters for highlighting patient
experiences and emphasised their importance.

e In response to a query regarding funding from Macmillan to support
the detailed initiatives and who would provide these services, the
Committee was advised that appointments would not be through the
ICB but potentially via providers, hospices, or local authorities, with
preference for community-connected individuals.

e In response to a query regarding next steps, it was confirmed that
Macmillan had signed off funding in March, and work was ongoing to
align all stakeholders and secure continuity through social
investment.

RESOLVED that the Committee note the proposed Strategy for
Palliative and End of Life Care in Dorset.

Voting: Nem Con.
Clir Bagwell left the meeting at 19:52.

Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report

The Chair advised that this was for information only and the report had
already been considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Board, and a copy
of which appears as Appendix 'F' to these Minutes in the Minute Book.

It was the annual report of the Statutory Scrutiny Officer on Overview and
Scrutiny (0&S) activity within BCP Council. There was a requirement to
report on the work of O&S to the O&S Board and Committees and then to
Council. This promoted visibility of the O&S function and Council
ownership of activity and any improvements required.

The annual report contained a summary and analysis of O&S activity during
2024-25, reflections on working practices and identified improvements to
strengthen the O&S function.

The report version was for consideration by the O&S Board and O&S
committees, providing opportunity for comment prior to the supply of the
final report to Council. The Council would be the decision maker on any
recommendations for change within the report. The final report to Council
would be updated to incorporate the views of the O&S Board and
Committees on these recommendations.

Work Plan

The Committee was asked to consider and identify work priorities for
publication in a Work Plan.

The Chair advised of the work planning exercise scheduled for the new
year.

14



49.

—9-—

HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

01 December 2025

The Chair directed the Committee to its next meeting and its wish for
FutureCare to come back to that meeting. He also informed the Committee
of the correspondence he had received from the Chair of the Healthbus
Board regarding Health and Social Care for the Homeless and suggested
that the Committee receive an update on this issue.

The Chair referred to a previous scrutiny request which was on the work
plan regarding the impending changes for residents in receipt of benefits
and the impact that might have and informed the Committee that the
Citizens Advice Bureau (CAB) had requested to provide all Councillors with
a briefing. It was scheduled to be held on 10 December and encouraged
Committee Members to attend. Following that, the Chair advised the
Committee may wish to consider if it wants to prioritise the item for a
committee meeting.

The Director of Adult Social Care advised that the outcome of the CQC
inspection would be available for the Committee to consider in the new
year.

RESOLVED that the Committee review, update and confirm the Work
Plan.

Voting: Nem. Con.

Portfolio Holder Update

The Portfolio Holder for Health and Wellbeing provided a verbal update,
including:

e Attendance at a voluntary community sector conference in
Dorchester to discuss health and care developments and shared
updates on the Adult Social Care Fulfilled Lives programme.

e Positive feedback was received from voluntary sector
representatives regarding the three conversations model and its
implementation.

e FutureCare discussions and highlighted the critical role of the
voluntary sector in supporting hospital discharge through transfer of
care hubs.

e Participated in Leaders Live Q&A session focused on well-being;
seasonal vaccination messages were promoted despite most
questions relating to other topics.

e Attended the Dorset BCP Safeguarding Adults Board SAR learning
event with around 200 participants; learning from local and national
serious case reviews was shared widely.

e Joined the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and Health and Well-
being Board Strategy workshop, which included broad
representation and input into updated strategies.

o Attended the Learning Disability Partnership Board meeting, which
focused on co-production and preparation for public consultation on
the big plan for learning disability services.

15



— lo —_
HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE
01 December 2025

e Confirmed that CQC assurance process had commenced and that
senior officers expressed readiness to share achievements and
improvements in adult social care.

e Noted recruitment of new senior staff, including public health
consultants and a corporate director for well-being, as a positive step
for future development.

e Reported Cabinet approval of the Adult Social Care Prevention
Strategy and allocation of over £1 million funding across three years
to sustain and expand services.

e Highlighted examples of staff commitment during challenges, such
as ensuring continuity of community equipment services following
supplier liquidation.

e Acknowledged ongoing budget pressures but emphasised strategic,
innovative approaches and optimism for future service delivery
Improvements.

The Chair thanked the Portfolio Holder for this update.

The meeting ended at 8:25pm.

16



RECOMMENDATIONS AND ACTIONS TRACKER — OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY FUNCTION

Recommendations from Board

meeting — 13 May 2024

9. A shared vision for
Bournemouth,
Christchurch and
Poole 2024-28

JA )

Plan

Strategy and Delivery | (a) The delivery plan be approved

RESOLVED that the Board support the Cabinet - 22 May
recommendations to Cabinet, subject to the 2024
suggested amendments from the Board:

The Portfolio Holder confirmed that the
amendments suggested at O&S Board
had been incorporated into the revised
version of the Strategy and Delivery
Plan supplied for decision by Cabinet.
(b) The measures for monitoring progress and
ensuring accountability for delivery be agreed.

Note — minor amendments to the measures
contained in the report were suggested by the O&S
Board and captured in the full minutes of the
meeting.

Recommendations from Board

meeting — 16 July 2024 — No recommendations made at this meeting.

Recommendations from Board

meeting — 27 August 2024 — No recommendations made at this meeting.

Recommendations from Board

meeting — 23 September 2024 — No recommendations made at this meeting.

Recommendations from Board

meeting — 1 October 2024 — No recommendations made at this meeting.

Recommendations from Board

G W3] epuaby

meeting — 21 October 2024



https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g5943/Printed%20minutes%2013th-May-2024%2018.00%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Board.pdf?T=1
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g5948/Printed%20minutes%2021st-Oct-2024%2018.00%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Board.pdf?T=1

8T

60. Blue Badge Service The Board resolved that: Portfolio Holder/ Partially The Portfolio Holder confirmed that
Update Report Leader/ Chief accepted by they had written to the Department for
The Portfolio Holder/Leader and the Chief Executive the Portfolio Transport and provided the response
Executive be asked to write to the Department for Holder received to the O&S Board at its
Transport to raise the concerns outlined by the O&S meeting on 12 May.
Board and that the Portfolio Holder take the issue It was unknown if this had been raised
forward with local MPs and the Local Government directly with the LGA and at the O&S
Assaociation to encourage local authorities to raise Board meeting on 12 May the Portfolio
these issues with the Department for Transport and Holder undertook to follow up on this.
request that central government gives local
authorities the freedom to set fees which cover the
cost of administering the system and that the
system should be simplified in terms of renewal
processes.
Recommendations from Board meeting — 18 November 2024
69. 0&S Budget Working | Recommended to Cabinet Cabinet — 10 Partially Responses provided to the Cabinet
Groups - findings 1. That the principle of an inflationary increase December 2024 accepted meeting on 5 February

and
recommendations

across all parking charges be endorsed for the
2025/26 budget.

2. That it requests Officers to take into account the
suggestion that an assessment be made on
using a proportion of surplus income to
accelerate the parking charging machine
replacement programme prioritising the best
value machines in order to reduce future costs
(subject to the necessary procurement
processes).

3. That Officers be requested to explore options to
reduce costs for the Council and make the
process easier for the public to pay for car
parking, in particular an option to be able to pay
in advance/on Council website.

://ced-pri-cms-
02.ced.local/documents/s55921/Appen
dix%203a%20-
%20Portfolio%20Holder% 20Responses
%20t0%20Budget%20Scrutiny. pdf

1. That it requests that Officers evaluate the
retention and recruitment of Civil Enforcement
Officers to ensure a robust and resilient
workforce to provide an appropriate level of
resource and promote safe and appropriate
parking.

2. That Officers be requested to ensure adequate
resourcing of parking enforcement to reduce
inappropriate parking around schools.

Cabinet — 10
December 2024

Response from Portfolio Hodler
received at the O&S Board meeting on
3 February 2025 :

http://ced-pri-cms-
02.ced.local/documents/s55808/respon
ses%20from%20Cabinet.pdf



https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g5949/Public%20minutes%2018th-Nov-2024%2018.00%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Board.pdf?T=11
http://ced-pri-cms-02.ced.local/documents/s55921/Appendix%203a%20-%20Portfolio%20Holder%20Responses%20to%20Budget%20Scrutiny.pdf
http://ced-pri-cms-02.ced.local/documents/s55921/Appendix%203a%20-%20Portfolio%20Holder%20Responses%20to%20Budget%20Scrutiny.pdf
http://ced-pri-cms-02.ced.local/documents/s55921/Appendix%203a%20-%20Portfolio%20Holder%20Responses%20to%20Budget%20Scrutiny.pdf
http://ced-pri-cms-02.ced.local/documents/s55921/Appendix%203a%20-%20Portfolio%20Holder%20Responses%20to%20Budget%20Scrutiny.pdf
http://ced-pri-cms-02.ced.local/documents/s55921/Appendix%203a%20-%20Portfolio%20Holder%20Responses%20to%20Budget%20Scrutiny.pdf
http://ced-pri-cms-02.ced.local/documents/s55808/responses%20from%20Cabinet.pdf
http://ced-pri-cms-02.ced.local/documents/s55808/responses%20from%20Cabinet.pdf
http://ced-pri-cms-02.ced.local/documents/s55808/responses%20from%20Cabinet.pdf

The O&S Board recommend to Cabinet:

1. That any Resident Card offering is made fully
accessible to all those who are not digitally
enabled.

2. That there should be an application process for
the card with a small financial contribution for
the cost of processing and that the card should
be a valuable offer that residents are willing to
pay a small cost for, so that it can be
sustainable in terms of administrative costs.

3. That any charge levied for the card should be
the same regardless of the format and that
consideration should be given to concessions
for disadvantaged groups.

Cabinet — 10
December 2024

Partially
accepted

Responses provided to the Cabinet
meeting on 5 February

://ced-pri-cms-
02.ced.local/documents/s55921/Appen
dix%203a%20-
%20Portfolio%20Holder%20Responses
%20t0%20Budget%20Scrutiny. pdf

Response from Portfolio Hodler
received at the O&S Board meeting on
3 February 2025 :

http://ced-pri-cms-
02.ced.local/documents/s55808/respon
ses%20from%20Cabinet.pdf

Note: the residents card offer did not
progress as part of the budget

Recommendations from Board meeting — 9 December 2024

61

78

Pay and Reward
Progress Update

RESOLVED that Cabinet be recommended to
approve option 2 of the proposed process flowchart
(Appendix 1 of the report) and the commencement
of collective consultation under s188 of the Trade
Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act
1992 (‘TULRCA’), which is a statutory obligation
where an employer is proposing to dismiss 20 or
more employees.

Cabinet - 10
December 2024

Negotiations with the pay and reward
progress have continued and a new
offer had been made to the unions. A
ballot was now taking place with the
recognised trade unions and an
outcome was expected by the end of
June 2025. This report was brought to
O&S Board and Cabinet



http://ced-pri-cms-02.ced.local/documents/s55921/Appendix%203a%20-%20Portfolio%20Holder%20Responses%20to%20Budget%20Scrutiny.pdf
http://ced-pri-cms-02.ced.local/documents/s55921/Appendix%203a%20-%20Portfolio%20Holder%20Responses%20to%20Budget%20Scrutiny.pdf
http://ced-pri-cms-02.ced.local/documents/s55921/Appendix%203a%20-%20Portfolio%20Holder%20Responses%20to%20Budget%20Scrutiny.pdf
http://ced-pri-cms-02.ced.local/documents/s55921/Appendix%203a%20-%20Portfolio%20Holder%20Responses%20to%20Budget%20Scrutiny.pdf
http://ced-pri-cms-02.ced.local/documents/s55921/Appendix%203a%20-%20Portfolio%20Holder%20Responses%20to%20Budget%20Scrutiny.pdf
http://ced-pri-cms-02.ced.local/documents/s55808/responses%20from%20Cabinet.pdf
http://ced-pri-cms-02.ced.local/documents/s55808/responses%20from%20Cabinet.pdf
http://ced-pri-cms-02.ced.local/documents/s55808/responses%20from%20Cabinet.pdf
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g5950/Printed%20minutes%2009th-Dec-2024%2018.00%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Board.pdf?T=1

79 Housing Delivery
Council Newbuild
Housing and
Acquisition Strategy
(CNHAS) update and

RESOLVED that the Oveniew and Scrutiny Board
recommend that Cabinet support the
recommendations as set out in the Cabinet report:
Housing Delivery Council Newbuild Housing and
Acquisition Strategqy CNHAS update and Harbour

Cabinet - 10
December 2024

0c

Harbour Sail Sail a.pdf
acquisition
81 BCP Council RESOLVED that the Oveniew and Scrutiny Board Cabinet - 10

Libraries — Update on
Library Strategy
Development

recommend that Cabinet support the
recommendations as set out in the Cabinet report:
BCP Council Libraries Update on Library Strategy
Development.pdf

December 2024

Recommendations from Board me

eting — 6 January 2025

The recommendation from Cabinet has
not been put before Council because
the purchase of Harbour Sail has not
proceeded. This was due to timing of
the purchase which affected the ability
to use the grant for the purchase (which
without this grant the scheme was no
longer financially viable) and that title
restrictions could not be altered to allow
flexibility of tenure that was required.
The grant has been reallocated to other
property acquisitions.

The Library strategy is expected to be
considered by the Oveniew and
Scrutiny Board and Cabinet in August
and September 2025

90 Devolution

Recommended to the Leader that:

a: The Leader arranges an emergency Full Council
Meeting at the earliest opportunity to enable a vote
of ALL of the available options

b: An evidence-based piece of work be undertaken
on the pros and cons of a dewlution arrangement
with both the Solent deal AND Wessex deal,
including exploring a public referendum for BCP
residents.

Leader of the
Council

Partially
accepted

Full Council meeting was arranged for
15 January 2025.

The Council meeting considered the
options of both the Solent deal and the
Wessex deal, further information was
brought to the Council meeting and
Council voted to participate in the
priority programme and to move
forward wit the Wessex proposal.

Recommendations from Board meeting — 13 January 2025 — No recommendations made at this meeting

Recommendations from Board me

eting — 3 February 2025



https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s54615/Housing%20Delivery%20Council%20Newbuild%20Housing%20and%20Acquisition%20Strategy%20CNHAS%20update%20and%20Harbour%20Sail%20a.pdf
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s54615/Housing%20Delivery%20Council%20Newbuild%20Housing%20and%20Acquisition%20Strategy%20CNHAS%20update%20and%20Harbour%20Sail%20a.pdf
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s54615/Housing%20Delivery%20Council%20Newbuild%20Housing%20and%20Acquisition%20Strategy%20CNHAS%20update%20and%20Harbour%20Sail%20a.pdf
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s54571/BCP%20Council%20Libraries%20Update%20on%20Library%20Strategy%20Development.pdf
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s54571/BCP%20Council%20Libraries%20Update%20on%20Library%20Strategy%20Development.pdf
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g5951/Printed%20minutes%2006th-Jan-2025%2018.00%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Board.pdf?T=1
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g6314/Printed%20minutes%2003rd-Feb-2025%2018.00%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Board.pdf?T=1

106.

Council Budget
Monitoring 2024/25 at
Quarter 3

RESOLVED that the O&S Board recommend to the
Audit and Gowernance Committee that it instigate
an investigation on the Carters Quay development.

Audit and
Governance
Committee 27
February 2025

Update provided tothe A&G Committee
at its meeting on 29 May. Chief
Executive agreed that a report of the
governance and process could be
produced for the 24 July. It was also
agreed to circulate by email the
updated provided by the Director,
Investment and Development together
with the advice previously provided by
the Monitoring Officer. Carters Quay -
Update.pdf A further report will be take
to Cabinet

Recommendations from Board meeting — 4 March 2025

12

115.

Community
Governance Review
— Draft
Recommendations

RESOLVED: that the O&S Board Recommend to
Cabinet that the draft recommendations of the Task
and Finish Group relating to proposals for Burton
and Winkton (A), Hurn (B), Highcliffe & Walkford (C)
and Christchurch Town (D) be recommended to
Council, for approval for publication and
consultation, without amendment.

RESOLVED: That the O&S Board recommend to
Cabinet that the draft recommendations of the Task
and Finish Group relating to Broadstone (F) and
Poole Town (J) be recommended to Council, for
approval for publication and consultation, without
amendment.

RESOLVED that the Board recommend to Cabinet
that that the recommendation for Bournemouth (K)
not be forwarded to Council.

Cabinet date — 5
March 2025

Consultation progressed with these
proposals. The Consultation closed 22
June 2025. The Working group are
processing the outcome of the
consultation and a report will be
brought back to the October Cabinet
meeting.

Cabinet felt that it was important to
consult on all areas including (k)
Bournemouth Town and therefore
supported the recommendations as set
out by the task and finish group and did
not support recommendation 3 as
submitted by the Owveniew and Scrutiny
Board.



https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s60007/Carters%20Quay%20-%20Update.pdf
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s60007/Carters%20Quay%20-%20Update.pdf
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g6324/Printed%20minutes%2004th-Mar-2025%2018.00%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Board.pdf?T=1

RESOLVED that the Board recommend to Cabinet
that the draft recommendations of the Task and
Finish Group relating to Southbourne (1)) be
recommended to Council, for approval for
publication and consultation, without amendment.

RESOLVED that the O&S Board recommend to
Cabinet that the draft recommendations of the Task
and Finish Group relating to Boscombe and
Pokesdown (H) be recommended to Council, for
approval for publication and consultation, without
amendment.

Zc

RESOVLED that the O&S Board recommend to
Cabinet that the draft recommendations of the Task
and Finish Group relating to Throop and
Holdenhurst (E) be recommended to Council, for
approval for publication and consultation, without
amendment.

RESOLVED that the O&S Board recommend to
Cabinet that the draft recommendations of the Task
and Finish Group relating to Redhill and
Northbourne (G) be recommended to Council, for
approval for publication and consultation, without
amendment




The Cabinet did amend a
recommendation as follows: Agrees the
principle of an extension of the Winter
Gardens site "Option Execution Date",
with details to be agreed to be
delegated to the Chief Operations
Officer acting in consultation with the
Leader of the Council, or until Cabinet
have had the opportunity toreview a
revised partnership business plan
including the site development plan for
the revised Winter Gardens scheme.”
It was not able to agree a deferment of
this decision as this would stop
progress on the Winter Gardens
development.

ec

116. Bournemouth RESOLVED that the O&S Board recommend to Cabinet — 5 March
Development Cabinet that a decision to extend the Winter 2025
Company LLP Gardens site ‘Option Execution Date’ is deferred by
Business Plan Cabinet until the new BDC Partnerships Business
Plan has been approved by Cabinet.
117. Strategic Community | RESOLVED That the Board recommended to Cabinet — 5 March

Infrastructure Levy
(CIL)

Cabinet:

1. That the spending priorities for Strategic CIL as
set out in Option 2 of the paper over the period
2024/25 to 2029/30 be agreed provided CIL income
is as forecast; and

2. That the report be updated annually for Cabinet

and Council.

2025

Accepted by Cabinet and spending
priorities agreed for 2024/25 to 2029/30
for CIL.

Recommendations from Board me

eting — 12 May 2025

11.

Blue Badge Update

The Chair requested that the matter also be raised
with the Local Government Association particularly
regarding the cost of administering the Blue Badge
scheme and the limitations of the current data

system

Cabinet Portfolio
Holder for
Customer,
Communication
and Culture

Update on this issue awaited — no
deadline date



https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g5955/Printed%20minutes%2012th-May-2025%2018.00%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Board.pdf?T=1

12,

Arts and Culture
Funding

Recommended to Cabinet:

1. That the O&S Board recognise the value of the
NPOs funded by BCP to Health and well-being
youth and the local economy and urge Cabinet
to protect the funding BCP currently provides.

2. That Cabinet endorse the work that's been
done with schools by the NPOs and
recommends that Cabinet take action to
encourage all schools to take part.

3. To explore whether it would be a benefit for a
Councillor to be appointed as a member of the
Board on any or all of the NPO organisations,
and

4. That it ensures that the arts by sea festival
goes ahead next year.

Cabinet — 13 May
2025

1: The cultural funding remains in the
MTFP so there is no change in that
position as of the moment.

2: The Portfolio Holder is working with
the Cultural Hub to encourage this.

3: The Portfolio Holder has spoken to
the NPO and they respectfully
suggested that this would not be
helpful. The Portfolio Holder agreed
with this especially as they would likely
be a PH and the Portfolio Holder
already had very close links with all of
them.

4: We are planning for ABTS next year
and awaiting funding news from ACE.

Recommendations from Board me

eting — 9 June 2025

e

22.

Bournemouth Air
Festival

The Oweniew and Scrutiny Board agreed with the
recommendation that Cabinet agrees to Option 4 as
set out in the report, which acknowledges the
ongoing process for new events to come forward
and stops any further work on an Air Festival for
2026 onwards.

Cabinet — 18 June
2025

Recommendation accepted and
confirmed that further work on the Air
Festival for 2026 had been
discontinued.

23.

Bournemouth
Development
Company - Winter
Gardens Project

1. The Oweniew and Scrutiny Board supported the
following recommendations to Cabinet:

(c) Cabinet approves the BDC Partnership
Business Plan for 2025 — 2030.

(c) Cabinet confirms the extension of the Site
Option Execution Date to September 2028,
allowing Muse as the Private Sector
Partner in the BDC to fund the first stage of
work on the new Winter Gardens scheme,
resulting in a new Site Development Plan.

(c) Cabinet approves proceeding on the
understanding that public parking will not
be included in a new scheme design.

2. The Oweniew and Scrutiny Board welcomed the
dewvelopment of the Town Centre Vision for
Bournemouth and requested to scrutinise the
regeneration visions for the 3 Towns in the BCP

Area as these are redeveloped.

Cabinet — 18 June
2025

The dewvelopment plans are due to
come forward for consideration in
December 2025 and it was proposed
by the Leader that these would go to
full Council.



http://ced-pri-cms-02.ced.local/documents/g5956/Public%20minutes%2009th-Jun-2025%2018.00%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Board.pdf?T=11&$LO$=1

G2

3. The Oweniew and Scrutiny Board welcomed the
dewelopment of the Town Centre Vision for
Bournemouth and requested to scrutinise the
regeneration visions for the 3 Towns in the BCP
Area as these are redeveloped.

We are deweloping the narrative across
the three towns identifying key
strengths and uniqueness to build upon
the vision set out in the Corporate
Strategy : vibrant places, where healthy
people and nature flourish, with a
thriving economy in a healthy natural
environment. To support this we've
made good progress by the
establishment of a Citizen’s Panel and
the Growth Board. The Citizen’s Panel
comprises of residents with a focus on
the town centre which is helping to
provide insight into how residents feel
and engage within the space. The
Growth Board is a newly established
steering group which is comprised of
representatives from key sectors within
the BCP conurbation including
Business Improvement District,
education, manufacturing, Starts up
and the wolunteering sector. These
perspectives are helping to shape our
vision for BCP as a place which can
thrive, for residents to feel civic pride
and a destination for \isitors to enjoy.
The conwersation at the O&S focussed
on how Winter Gardens fits into the
wider context of the Town Centre and
committee members asked for that to
form part of any proposals from BDC.
There is an existing Town Centre
Vision which forms part of the Local
Plan, and the intention is for BDC to
review this to support a future planning
application, ensuring it reflects the
nature of the development proposals in
the absence of a formal planning policy
framework.




24,

Leisure Services
Presentation and
Discussion

The Oweniew and Scrutiny Board recommended
that Cabinet be urged to put in place an “Access to
Leisure” scheme across the whole BCP area as
soon as possible, recognising that people in Poole
have lost this facility and with particular emphasis
on ensuring accessibility for people with disabilities

Cabinet — 18 June
2025

Recommendations from Board meeting — 15 July 2025

The Portfolio holder has asked that
officers explore options around a
renewed access to leisure facility and
bring forward options, including but not
limited to; how that would be managed,
financial implications, and meeting the
recommendation as requested by the
Owveniew and scrutiny board.

92

31

Enhancement to Pay
and Reward Offer

The Owveniew and Scrutiny Board supported the
following recommendations to Council within the
Cabinet report:

a) Agree the additional costs associated with
enhancing the proposed Pay and Reward
offer.

b) Agree the additional savings proposals
outlined in Appendix 1 to ensure the cost
implications of the proposal remain consistent
with the February 2025endorsed Medium
Term Financial Plan.

c) Agrees the details of the enhanced offer
shown in Appendix 4 and 5 that will form the
basis of the signed collective agreement with
our recognised trade unions.

d) Approves the recommended implementation
date of 1 December 2025.

Cabinet — 16 July

32.

Scrutiny of Budget
Related Cabinet
reports — MTFP
update report

The Oweniew and Scrutiny Board endorsed the
work of Members and Officers around SEND as set
out in recommendation C of the report as follows:

In respect of the SEND deficit, note the update and
acknowledges the action taken by the Leader and
the Director of Finance

Cabinet - 16 July

Agreed by Council on 22 July 2025.
Work underway to achieve
implementation for December 2025.

Recommendations from Board me

eting - 22 September 2025

39.

Residents Card

RESOLVED that the Owveniew and Scrutiny Board
do not support the recommendation as outlined in
the report as the Board did not feel that the Cabinet
report included sufficient financial details and
details of the scheme offers to enable it to make an
informed decision. The Board recommend to

Cabinet that the report is deferred to allow details of

Cabinet — 1
October

Updates were made to the report and
the recommendation prior to
consideration by Cabinet.



http://ced-pri-cms-02.ced.local/documents/g5957/Printed%20minutes%2015th-Jul-2025%2018.00%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Board.pdf?T=1&$LO$=1
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g5958/Printed%20minutes%2022nd-Sep-2025%2018.00%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Board.pdf?T=1

the financial modelling that has been done to be
added, including a cost/benefit analysis and a
sensitivity analysis. Once this additional information
is included in the report, it should then be brought
back to the O&S Board before being taken to
Cabinet for decision.

Recommendations from Board me

eting — 30 September 2025

/2

47, Community All Recommendations as set out within the Cabinet | Cabinet — 1 The recommendations of Cabinet were
Governance Review report were supported by the Board: October referred to Council on 14 October. The
- Final (@) the Task and Finish Group community Recommendations of Cabinet were
Recommendations gowvernance review final recommendations, as set agreed by full Council
out in paragraphs 49, 62, 74, 92, 104, 117, 128,
140, 152, 166 and 181 of this report be approved,;
(b) the Head of Democratic Senices be authorised
to make all necessary reorganisation of community
gowvernance orders to implement the changes
agreed by Council;
(c) the Task and Finish Group continue to consider
the transfer of civic and ceremonial assets,
statutory senices and precept requirements for
year 1, for each new parish, on the basis of minimal
transfer and precept, and a report be presented to
full Council in due course.
Recommendations from Board meeting - 20 October 2025
56. Medium Term The Owveniew and Scrutiny Board recommend to Cabinet — 29 Partially The Portfolio Holder advised that this
Financial Plan Cabinet that as part of the Budget setting process. October Accepted but was considered as part of the budget
(MTFP) update consideration be given to utilising receipts from the final setting process but due to the
existing Surp|us asset dispogaj programme for determina..tion Significant pre_SSUr.eS on the de"\Ery of
2026/27 to address some of the repairs and was to reject statutory servces It was not agreed to
maintenance of publicly facing assets. include this within the proposed budget
— 9 February 2026
57. BCP Council 1. The Oweniew and Scrutiny Board recommend to | Cabinet - 29 The Portfolio Holder reported that the
Libraries Draft Cabinet that as part of the Library Strategy it October staff hours in Libraries would be

Library Strategy

looks to maintain staffed hours in libraries,
especially in the afternoon period, as open
access is rolled out further in the future.

2. The Oweniew and Scrutiny Board recommend to
Cabinet that the Library Senice put together a
list of smaller neighbourhood Community
Infrastructure Lewy (CIL) Bids to put to
Councillors and Neighbourhood Forums
immediately upon the opening of future CIL
rounds.

maintained and that a list of potential
CIL bids had been created and these
were outlined to the Board — 9 February
2026



https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g5959/Printed%20minutes%2030th-Sep-2025%2018.00%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Board.pdf?T=1
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g5960/Printed%20minutes%2020th-Oct-2025%2018.00%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Board.pdf?T=1

3. That the O&S Board support the
recommendations as set out in the Cabinet
report.

Recommendations from Board — 17 November 2025 — No recommendations made at this meeting

Recommendations from Board — 8 December 2025

Cabinet noted the support for the
recommendations within the report.

Extract from Cabinet minutes:

The Leader thanked Councillor Salmon
and the Board for bringing their
recommendation to Cabinet and
advised that she was minded to accept
the recommendation and that a formal
response would be provided to the
Board.

79. Medium Term RESOLVED that the O&S Board advise Cabinet of | Cabinet —17
Financial Plan its support for all recommendations as outlined in December
(MTFP) Update the Cabinet report.
Recommendations from Board — 5 January 2026
87. Regeneration That the Oveniew and Scrutiny Board recommend Cabinet — 14
Progress Report to Cabinet that, to enable effective lobbying of January
Gowvernment in the future, the draft of the BCP
Growth Plan be shared with O&S Board Members
when available and that Oveniew and Scrutiny be
embedded in the plan’s development and approval
process.
Recommendations from Board — 9 February 2026
95. Budget 2026/27 and The Owveniew and Scrutiny Board recommend to Cabinet — 11
Medium-Term Cabinet that the questions asked in the budget February

Financial Plan

consultation be reviewed to ensure that they are
relevant to the choices which need to be made in
the 2027/28 budget setting.




62

OUTSTANDING ACTIONS

Actions from Board meeting — 12 May 2025

10.

BCP Complaints
Policy

RESOLVED that the Board further examine the role of
councillors in the complaints process, particularly in
relation to ward issues and casework.

To ensure the effectiveness of
both the Councils complaints
process and work of Ward
Councillors

Work underway - ClIr S
Aitkenhead as rapporteur

Actions from Board meeting — 22 September 2025

38.

Commercial
Operations

Portfolio Holder to provide an update on the current
situation in 6 months-time with a view to scheduling
further scrutiny when appropriate.

To monitor and receive
updates on this area of the
Council

Update due to the Board
in March.

Actions from Board meeting — 20 October 2025

57.

BCP Council Library
— Draft Library
Strategy

A potential item be included on the O&S work
programme on a review of income generation
opportunities within the library senice, including
commercialisation options and partnership models.

TBC

Actions from Board meeting — 5 January 2026

87.

Regeneration
Progress Report

That a small group be convened including Clirs J
Beesley, P Canavan and K Salmon to scope draft Key
Lines of Enquiry on a number of the issues raised for
future scrutiny in preparation of the O&S Work
Programming process.

To ensure that the issues
raised are given due
consideration and ensure that
the work planning process can
continue.




ENVIRONEMENT AND PLACE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

UPDATED: 14.01.26

Recommendation made
*items remain for monitoring until implementation is
complete or committee agree to remove.

Minute Item

number

Recommended
to

*name of
receiving body/
Officer, and date
received

Outcome
*accepted/
partially
accepted/
rejected/
unknown.

Implementation updates

Recommendations from Committee — 15 May 2024

og

8 Improvement | Cabinet refer the matter to Full Council for decision.
of the
environment
in Poole Park
through atrial
closure of a
park entrance
to motor
traffic

Cabinet, 22 May
2024

Recommendations from Committee — 11 September 2024

15 Plant-based RESOLVED that
and reduced a. the Environment & Place Oveniew & Scrutiny
meat and Committee considered the information presented in
dairy diets: the discussion paper and gave their views on possible
discussion approaches Cabinet may wish to take in relation to the
paper promotion of plant-based and reduced meat and dairy

diets. These proposals will then be subject to further
evidence-gathering and consultation.

b. To support the treaty and do more work outside the
committee on the position statement.

c. The draft position statement be brought back to the
Committee for further consideration with information

Portfolio Holder
and Officers

Extract from Cabinet minutes:

‘Cabinet members questioned the benefit of
taking the report to full council for further debate
and felt that the decision should be made.’

Decision made:

RESOLVED that Cabinet: -

(@ Agrees that the current trial closure, of the
Whitecliff entrance and exit point to motor
wehicles, is made permanent in Poole Park.

(b) Agrees that current arrangements are
retained, and motor wehicles can still access
Poole Park and its facilities.’

A revised position statement with measurable
objectives was returned to the committee for
further scrutiny in October 2025.



https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g5911/Public%20minutes%2015th-May-2024%2018.00%20Environment%20and%20Place%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=11
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g5913/Public%20minutes%2011th-Sep-2024%2018.00%20Environment%20and%20Place%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=11

about how it can be measured against SMART
objectives in order for the Council to be more
ambitious and positive on this issue

Recommendations from Committee — 20 November 2024 — No recommendations made at this meeting.

Recommendations from Committee — 26 February 2025

K

38 Climate RESOLVED that a) The Committee propose to the Portfolio Holder
Action Annual | Portfolio Holder that on the front page of the BCP
Report Greenhouse Gas Emissions Dashboard an additional
2023/24 box is added to highlight the context of any carbon
reduction relevant to the annual carbon reduction
target b) Embedded carbon cost to be included in the
calculation and displayed on the dashboard where
available.
39 Housing RESOLVED that the Oveniew & Scrutiny Committee Cabinet, 2 April
Strategy recommend to Cabinet that that the Housing Strategy 2025
Review Steering Group be comprised of one member from

each political group and one unaligned member.

Extract from Cabinet minutes:

‘The Portfolio Holder thanked the Environment
and Place Oveniew & Scrutiny Committee for
their thorough debate at the Committee and

expressed support for their recommendation.’

Decision made:

RESOLVED that Cabinet: -

@ Approved the Revised Housing Strategy
Delivery Plan at appendix B;

(b) Approved the extension of the current
Housing Strategy Period to 2027;

(© Approved the gowernance structure as
set out in paragraphs 7-11 of the report;
and

(d) Approved that the steering group being
formed be made up of 1 member of each
Political group and 1 unaligned member.

Recommendations from Committee — 2 April 2025

49 Recommendat | Recommendations to Cabinet
ions from the

Safer

Cabinet date, 26

1. The proposed Safe Accommodation
November 25

Strategy delivery plan includes anumber
of actions around communication,



https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g6326/Printed%20minutes%2026th-Feb-2025%2018.00%20Environment%20and%20Place%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=1
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g6337/Printed%20minutes%2002nd-Apr-2025%2018.00%20Environment%20and%20Place%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=1

VAS

Accommodati
on Strategy
Working
Group

1. That as part of the Safe Accommodation Strategy
development, officers consider an awareness
campaign and/or guidance materials on the different
types of financial support that are available to support
those fleeing domestic abuse, in particular in relation
to different types of housing tenure (e.g. shared
tenancies, joint mortgages), in order to break down a
significant barrier to sunivors accessing support to
end their abuse.

2. That the engagement plan for the Safe
Accommodation Strategy should ensure that the
woices of those with lived experience are heard and
reflected within the Strategy.

3. That an all councillor briefing session be added to
the Safe Accommodation Strategy engagement plan,
to ensure members are adequately informed about the
strategy and able to contribute views, and to enable
them to fulfil their role within the community by
communicating the benefits of the Safe
Accommodation Strategy to residents.

4. a) that the provision of safe accommodation and
associated commissioning process be reviewed, b)
that scrutiny members be invited to review and input
into this review, prior to the commencement of
commissioning, through an additional meeting of this
working group.

5. That the use of temporary accommodation be
continuously reviewed and specific KPIs be
established for monitoring the success of the new safe
accommodation model, including occupancy rates,
length of stay, outcomes for sunivors (e.g., successful
mowve-on to permanent housing), and sunivor
satisfaction. These KPIs should be reviewed regularly
by the relevant scrutiny committee to ensure
accountability and transparency.

6. That Cabinet, with the support of the council’s
Corporate Management Board, be requested to take a

training and specialist advice that will
ensure any household receives correct
and clear information. Please see
attached strategy delivery plan.

2. Public consultation on the three
domestic abuse strategies (Prevention of
Domestic Abuse, Safe Accommodation
and Perpetrator Strategies) has been
completed, alongside several sessions
on the Safe Accommodation Strategy
with  our established experts by
experience group, including a dedicated
session on the delivery plan. We will
continue working with this group to
monitor implementation, which includes
actions to train and support experts by
experience so they can actively
participate in the commissioning and
procurement of domestic abuse
services.

3. An all councillor briefing will be
arranged in due course.

4, The Safe Accommodation Strategy will
be submitted with a commissioning plan
for scrutiny and review.

5. The proposed Safe Accommodation
Strategy delivery plan sets out several
actions that will contribute to this
recommendation including the following:

2.1.3 We will minimise the use of
temporary accommodation and where
this is provided, as a last resort,
specialist Domestic Abuse support will




view on forthcoming decisions that may be of
significant or contentious public impact, regardless of
decision-making thresholds, and an all councillor
briefing be held before any such decisions are made,
to enable all councillors, and particularly ward
councillors, to be properly informed.

be offered until the household can move
into safe accommodation.

5.1.1 Set up a task and finish group
under the governance of the Domestic
Abuse Strategy Group to agree future
data monitoring across commissioned
services, BCP Homes, BCP Council
Housing, Adult Social Care and
Children's Social Care.

6. The Safe Accommodation Strategy will
be submitted with a commissioning plan
which will set out the procurement
intentions for the next 3 years.

Recommendations from Committee — 14 May 2025 — No recommendations made at this meeting.

Cabinet approved the recommendations in the
report and so accepted recommendation 1 from
0&S.

Cabinet were silent on recommendation 2 from
0&S — seek an update.

ions

A
& Recommendations from Committee — 9 July 2025
17 Local Area It is RECOMMENDED that: Cabinet Partially

Energy Plan accepted
1) The recommendation as outlined in the report be
approved by Cabinet.
2) Cabinet add as an external stakeholder, the
community to be represented in all stakeholder
engagement, including any panels, meetings or focus
groups.

18 Email and It is RECOMMENDED to cabinet that: Cabinet

Document

Storage as per Option (B), the Committee supports the

Retention — continuation of activity already underway, as part of

Impact the Councils Data and Innovation Programme, to re-

Analysis on assess and profile Microsoft 365 end-user licensing

Costs and requirements, moving colleagues to lower-costs

Environmenta | licenses where appropriate.

| Factors &

Recommendat

Cabinet did not address this recommendation at
the meeting

The committee may wish to seek an update on
this recommendation response, although the
recommendation itself shows support for
continued work within the council and so would
require noting by Cabinet and not consideration.



https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g5917/Printed%20minutes%2009th-Jul-2025%2018.00%20Environment%20and%20Place%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=1

Recommendations from Committee — 8 October 2025

26

Plant-based
and reduced
meat and
dairy diets:
draft position
statement and
action plan

RESOLVED that:

a) All mentions of the word vegan be replaced with
Plant-Based throughout the paper.

b) Switching the target from 20% for plant-based
concessions to 25%.

¢) That Council adopt the position statements and
strategy for plant based diets in BCP Council with the
amendments above.

Received by
Cabinet, 29
October 2025.

Then deferred by
Cabinet for
consideration at
26 November
2025 meeting

Recommendations from Committee — 19 November 2025

Awaiting response from Portfolio Holder

74

Waste
Strategy for
Bournemouth,
Christchurch
and Poole
Council 2026-
2036

RESOLVED that the committee supported the
recommendations as set out in the report to Cabinet
including Option 1 regarding the removal of current
separate kerbside battery collections but requested an
additional point be included in respect of this option to
read:

(i) and to dewlop a conwvenient battery recycling
scheme with local businesses to create more
easily accessible drop off points

and in addition, requested the strategy at appendix 1 be

amended to include the following: -

@) Paragraph 5.1 of Appendix 1 ‘A Waste
Strategy for BCP Council 2026-2028 be
amended to include ‘and incineration’ so that
the paragraph reads ‘6.1 Tendering waste
disposal contracts that embed the waste
hierarchy and minimise the use of landfill and
incineration’: and

(b) Paragraph 5.3 of Appendix 1 ‘A Waste Strategy
for BCP Council 2026-2028’ be amended to
include ‘whilst also considering the carbon
footprint of the type of disposal’ so that the
paragraph reads ‘5.3 Prioritising waste site
proximity where possible, so waste travels only
as far as it needs to and reduces the significant
carbon impact of transporting waste whilst also
considering the carbon footprint of the type of
disposal’.

Cabinet 17
December 2025

Partially
accepted

Extract from Cabinet minutes:

The Portfolio Holder thanked the Environment
and Place Ovenview and Scrutiny Committee for
their consideration of the report and their
recommendations. In relation to this the Portfolio
Holder advised that he felt the additional
recommendation of (i) was not necessary as
people would be signposted to available
organisations, and that this would include those
who offered a postal collection of batteries

which would assist those unable to access
those in shops. In addition, the Portfolio Holder
advised that any shops selling batteries were
required to provide a collection of used

batteries.

Further to this the Portfolio Holder advised that
the recommendations raised in relation to
paragraph 5.1 and 5.3 would be included within
the tendering priorities and that he was happy to
accept both of those recommendations.

The seconder advised that they were also
content with these.

Recommendations from Committee — 25 February 2026



https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g5918/Printed%20minutes%2008th-Oct-2025%2018.00%20Environment%20and%20Place%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=1
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g5919/Printed%20minutes%2019th-Nov-2025%2018.00%20Environment%20and%20Place%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=1

Recommendations from Committee — 20 May 2026

Recommendations from Committee — 15 July 2026

Recommendations from Committee — 9 September 2026

Recommendations from Committee — 18 November 2026

Recommendations from Committee — 24 February 2026

OUTSTANDING ACTIONS

Minute Item Action*

number *ltems remain until action completed.

Benefit

Updates

No current agreed actions




CHILDREN'’S SERVICES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

UPDATED: 14.01.26

q¢

Minute Iltem Recommendation made Recommended Outcome Implementation updates
number *items remain for monitoring until implementation is to *accepted/
complete or committee agree to remove. *name of partially
receiving body/ accepted/
Officer, and date rejected/
received unknown.
Recommendations from Committee — 24 July 2024
10 Child RESOLVED that the Committee RECOMMEND to Cabinet, 2 Partially Extract from 2.10.24 Cabinet minutes:
Exploitation Cabinet: October 2024 accepted
Working e That partnership working be promoted to ensure ‘The Portfolio Holder for Children, Young People,
Group increased communication around the issues Education and Skills spoke in support of the
Findings highlighted with parents, schools, children and recommendations whilst highlighting with regards
Report youth senices. to recommendation 2 as set out above that BCP

e That earlier age-appropriate education be
implemented within schools across BCP
regarding the risks associated with exploitation,
drugs and the dangers of carrying weapons.

couldn’t dictate the curriculum but can certainly
look at ways to support it.

The Leader advised that the Cabinet would take
the matter away and go back to the Chair of the

Children’s  Senices Oweniew and Scrutiny
Committee.’
Update given by Portfolio Holder to 0O&S

Committee at 26.11.24 meeting. Extract minute:

‘The Portfolio Holder for Children and Young
People provided a verbal update which included:

An update on the outstanding Cabinet
recommendation from previous meetings
related to knife crime and drug/alcohol use in
schools. The Education Improvement Service
collaborated with police and community groups
to gather data on school programs addressing
these issues, but challenges remained in
obtaining detailed information.



https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g6188/Printed%20minutes%2024th-Jul-2024%2018.00%20Childrens%20Services%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=1

OFSTED had recommended that schools
incorporate local safeguarding issues, such as
knife crime, into their curriculum. There are
current resources available for Personal, Social,
Health, and Economic education, with additional
materials being sourced from providers
attending conferences. The Portfolio Holder for
Children and Young People highlighted that he
also found free resources online through
organisations like the DfE.

In response to the Cabinet recommendations
around earlier age-appropriate education. There
was a need to assess existing educational
initiatives related to this at both primary and
secondary lewvels regarding knife crime
awareness.

Advised of upcoming ewents including webinars
and community events focused on knife crime
and related issues.’

0‘, Recommendations from Committee — 19 September 2024 — No recommendations made at this meeting.

Recommendations from Committee — 26 November 2024

36

Linwood
Special
School SEND
Post 16
Provision at
Ted Webster

It was RESOLVED that Cabinet be recommended to
approve (a) in the report:

Cabinet approves the scheme to develop a satellite of
Linwood School hosted at the former Ted Webster
Children’s Centre providing a total of 60 Post 16
places including the associated capital investment
necessary to dewelop the scheme as contained in
Appendix 1 (Exempt). The scheme is fully funded from
the council’s grant allocation of High Needs Provision
Capital and will progress in line with the project
programme set out at paragraph 12

Cabinet, 10
December 2024

Recommendations from Committee —28 January 2025 — No recommendations made at this meeting.

Cabinet agreed to the recommendations in the
report, as endorsed by O&S.

Recommendations from Committee — 11 March 2025



https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g6282/Printed%20minutes%2026th-Nov-2024%2018.00%20Childrens%20Services%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=1
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g6091/Printed%20minutes%2011th-Mar-2025%2018.00%20Childrens%20Services%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=1

69

SEND
Improvement
Update

It was Proposed, Seconded and RECOMMENDED to
better assess the impact on children, young people
and families of any potential budget overspend in the
SEND senice budget, the Committee recommends
that Cabinet requests a report be provided to Cabinet
by June 2025 which outlines:
e the likely overspend in the budget
e which areas have been identified to
owverspend
e the options to ensure the budget limit is met
e an appraisal of the impact on children and
families of these factors

Cabinet, 2 April
2025

Recommendations from Committee — 10 June 2025

ol

11 Youth Justice | RESOLVED that the Children’s Senices Oveniew Cabinet, 26
Service Plan and Scrutiny Committee endorse the Youth Justice November 2025
2025-26 Plan so that Cabinet can recommend its approval to
the Full Council.
12 Housing for It was Proposed, Seconded and RECOMMENDED Officers
Care that the Committee seeks assurance that the new
Experienced Joint Housing protocol has been successfully agreed

Young People

and is working effectively to ensure our Care
Experienced Young People are seeing an improved
senice and are in receipt of timely advice and safe
housing that suits their individual needs and hopes for
the future.

Recommendations from Committee — 15 September 2025 - No recommendations made at this meeting.

Cabinet requested a report on ‘SEND Budget
Pressures’ as recommended by the O&S
committee. The report was considered by Cabinet
at the 16 July 2025 meeting. Cabinet noted the
report.

Youth Justice Plan approved by Cabinet for
recommendation to Council.

Youth Justice Plan approved by Council.

Seek update

Recommendations from Committee — 25 November 2025

9

Permanent
Exclusions
and
Suspensions

Comment to Cabinet:

The committee agreed to make Cabinet aware that the

Committee appreciates the detrimental impact of
school exclusions, which were highlighted in the
report, and recognises the work that is underway to
address this. The committee agreed that through this

work the council’s primary focus is improved outcomes
for the children of BCP but that this work will also likely

bring budgetary savings such as:

Cabinet, 26
November 2025

Not
applicable

The Cabinet thanked the committee for its work
on this. Note: the constitution requires no
response from Cabinet to comments from O&S.



https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g6092/Printed%20minutes%2010th-Jun-2025%2018.00%20Childrens%20Services%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=1
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g6093/Printed%20minutes%2015th-Sep-2025%2018.00%20Childrens%20Services%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=1

e A reduction in exclusions and associated
costs (e.g. transport, AP placements, tribunal
processes)

e Improved outcomes for winerable pupils,
reducing future demand on social care, youth
justice, and post-16 support senice

e A reduction in the need for unregistered and
costly AP as more needs are met by schools

10

Home to
School
Transport

The Oweniew and Scrutiny Committee agreed to
endorse the recommendation within the report to
Cabinet, this being that Cabinet:

‘Agree to tender an external provider to deliver a
transformation project over three years with a total
cost of £1.5 million funded by the flexible use of capital
receipts to deliver senice improvements and by the
end of the project on-going savings in SEND school
transport projected at £3 million (net of additional
resource requirement)

Cabinet, 26
November 2025.

6<

Recommendations from Committee — 27 January 2026

Report recommendations agreed by Cabinet for
recommendation to Council.

Report recommendations agreed by Council.

Recommendations from Committee — 10 March 2026

Recommendations from Committee — 26 March 2026

Recommendations from Committee — 16 June 2026

Recommendations from Committee — 14 September 2026




Recommendations from Committee — 24 November 2026

Recommendations from Committee — 26 January 2027

Recommendations from Committee — 9 March 2027

017




Ty

OUTSTANDIN

G ACTIONS

Minute
number

Item

Action*
*ltems remain until action completed.

Benefit

Updates

28 January 2025

Children in Care and

Decision Made:

To be discussed with CS

49 Care Experienced The officers agreed to share the final govwernance and and Chair in catch up
Young People quality assurance framework with the Committee once meeting
Sufficiency Report agreed and signed off as final.
Action — Officers aware
Children in Care and
Care Experienced | The Committee agreed to continue discussions outside
Young People | the meeting regarding the best ways to address the
Sufficiency barriers identified in the report and to reach an agreement
Report.pdf on how the Committee will receive that information.
Action - Officers aware
11 March 2025
67 Children and Young | Decision Made: CS Nov Update
People's Partnership | It was agreed that the KPIs for this would be shared with KPIs still to be signed off
Plan 2025-2030 the Committee. by the partnership. Will
be shared once agreed.
Children _and Young | Action — Officers aware
Peoples Partnership
Plan  2025-2030.pdf
Partnership Plan
2025-2030.pdf
69 SEND Improvement | Decision made:

Update

SEND Improvement

Update.pdf

The officers agreed to share the full review of the DSG
finances as well as the SEND improvement board's
response to the review.

Action — Officers aware

The Committee requested an update on the ongoing work
regarding education outside of school and home



https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s55577/Children%20in%20Care%20and%20Care%20Experienced%20Young%20People%20Sufficiency%20Report.pdf
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s55577/Children%20in%20Care%20and%20Care%20Experienced%20Young%20People%20Sufficiency%20Report.pdf
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s55577/Children%20in%20Care%20and%20Care%20Experienced%20Young%20People%20Sufficiency%20Report.pdf
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s55577/Children%20in%20Care%20and%20Care%20Experienced%20Young%20People%20Sufficiency%20Report.pdf
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s55577/Children%20in%20Care%20and%20Care%20Experienced%20Young%20People%20Sufficiency%20Report.pdf
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s55577/Children%20in%20Care%20and%20Care%20Experienced%20Young%20People%20Sufficiency%20Report.pdf
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s55577/Children%20in%20Care%20and%20Care%20Experienced%20Young%20People%20Sufficiency%20Report.pdf
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s55577/Children%20in%20Care%20and%20Care%20Experienced%20Young%20People%20Sufficiency%20Report.pdf
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s56679/SEND%20Improvement%20Update.pdf
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s56679/SEND%20Improvement%20Update.pdf

A%

Minute
number

Item

Action*
*ltems remain until action completed.

Benefit

Updates

education and asked that it be shared with the
Committee.

Action — Officers aware

15 September 2025

25

Alternative Provision

Improvement Plan

Alternative Provision

Improvement Plan

Final.pdf

Decision Made:

The Committee discussed the routes into AP, including
exclusions and EHCPs, and officers agreed to provide
further data on this breakdown.

Action — Officers aware

CS Nov Update

New SEND & AP Plan in
place.



https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s60929/Alternative%20Provision%20Improvement%20Plan%20Final.pdf
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s60929/Alternative%20Provision%20Improvement%20Plan%20Final.pdf
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s60929/Alternative%20Provision%20Improvement%20Plan%20Final.pdf

ey

HEALTH & ADULT SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

UPDATED: 20.2.26

Minute
number

Item

Recommendation made

*items remain for monitoring until
implementation is complete or committee
agree to remove.

Recommended to
*name of receiving
body/ Officer, and date
received

Outcome
*accepted/
partially
accepted/
rejected/
unknown.

Implementation updates

Recommendations from Committee meeting — 20 May 2024

11

Data Working
Group Final
Report

The Committee recommend to the O&S
Board:

e that a similar [data] toolkit be
deweloped for all O&S committees to
reflect the relevant data and policy
landscape within the remit of these
committees. This to be added to the
0&S Action Plan.

e that the Data Use Toolkit be
highlighted within the O&S annual
report to Council.

Oweniew and Scrutiny
Board (16 July 2024).

Recommendations from Committee meeting — 15 July 2024

Toolkit development for all O&S committees has
been added to the O&S Action Plan.

Toolkit for the Children’s O&S Committee is near
completion. All others are yet to start and will be
dewveloped when resources allow.

The Data Use Toolkit was highlighted within the
2023/24 O&S annual report to Council.
(Update by O&S Specialist, 24/4/25)

21

Adult Social
Care Business
Transformation
Case

The Committee recommend that Cabinet
recommends that Council:

a) Approves the business case for a new
adult social care transformation delivery
model to improve outcomes for residents and
to achieve financial efficiencies and savings
enabled by investment.

b) Agrees tothe establishment of a formal
transformation programme; ‘Fulfilled Lives’.
c) Agrees to the proposed investment of
£2.9M, with Corporate Management Board
being provided 6-monthly stage reviews on

Cabinet (17 July 24)
and Council (23 July
24)

Recommend | The final decision of Council was different from
ations the committee recommendation as follows:
partially

Resolved that Council:

(@) Approves in principle the business case for a
new adult social care transformation delivery
model to improve outcomes for residents and
to achieve financial efficiencies and savings
enabled by investment of up to 2.9M;

(b) Agrees to the establishment of a formal
transformation programme; ‘Fulfilled Lives’;

(c) Agrees to an initial 12-month investment of
1.79M, with an interim report to Cabinet on
progress of the design phase in January

accepted at
both Cabinet
and Council



https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g5931/Printed%20minutes%2020th-May-2024%2018.00%20Health%20and%20Adult%20Social%20Care%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=1
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g5932/Printed%20minutes%2015th-Jul-2024%2018.00%20Health%20and%20Adult%20Social%20Care%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=1

144

the progress of the transformation
programme.

d) Invites the Health and Adult Social Care
Owveniew and Scrutiny Committee to provide
regular scrutiny of progress towards benefits
and sustainable change. In particular, the
Committee be invited to review the progress
against the four priority areas of the Fulfilled
Lives programme and the risks and
opportunities of data with ASC transformation

(d)

2025 and a full report by July 2025, with
recommendations for further investment; and
Invites the Health and Adult Social Care
Oweniew and Scrutiny Committee to provide
regular scrutiny of progress towards benefits
and sustainable change. In particular the
Committee be invited to review the progress
against the four priority areas of the Fulfilled
Lives programme and the risks and
opportunities of data with ASC
transformation.

Implementation update required on a)-c) above.

Implementation update on d) abowe:

The Health & ASC O&S Committee now
receives regular reports on the Fulfilled Lives
programme to provide opportunity for ongoing
scrutiny of the transformation delivery.
(Update by O&S Specialist, 24/4/25)

Recommendations from Committee meeting — 24 September 2024 — No recommendations made at this meeting.

Recommendations from Committee meeting — 2 December 2024

46

Health and
Social Care for
the Homeless

The Committee recommend that Cabinet:

Discuss the issues caused by a lack of
funding for rough sleepers with no local
connection and those without an identified
priority need with a view to deweloping
solutions in partnership with other local
authorities and key stakeholders such as the
Integrated Care Board and relevant ministers
to create a robust system that does not fail
our most wilnerable or unfairly place the
responsibility for caring for these people on
local particular local authorities, with a view
to getting something in place before the new
strategy.

Cabinet (10 December

ClIr Kieron Wilson is responding by email to this
recommendation.



https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g5934/Printed%20minutes%2002nd-Dec-2024%2018.00%20Health%20and%20Adult%20Social%20Care%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=1

174

47 Transforming
Urgent and
Emergency
Care Services

The Committee recommend that Cabinet
recommends to Council:

a) Notes the summary of the diagnostic
review, including improved outcomes for
residents and financial benefits for the
Council.

b) Notes that under the draft Partnership
Agreement with Dorset health and care
partners, anticipated benefits are significantly
in excess of costs to the Council.

c) Delegates to the Corporate Director for
Wellbeing, in consultation with the Portfolio
Holder for Health and Wellbeing, the Director
of Law and Gowernance and the Director of
Finance, authority to enter into the
Partnership Agreement to undertake the
proposed transformation programme.

Cabinet (10 December
2024) and Council (10
December 2024)

Recommendations from Committee meeting — 3 March 2025

61 Adult Social
Care Strategy
2025-28

The Committee recommend to Cabinet:

e the inclusion of some clear targets
ideally linked to the Adut Social Care
Outcomes Framework (ASCOF)
within the Adult Social Care Strategy;
and

e the inclusion of an oveniew of how
to better integrate performance and
activity data with finance data in the
Adult Social Care Strategy.

Cabinet (2 April 2025)

Recommendations from Committee meeting — 19 May 2025 No recommendations made at this meeting.

The final decision of Cabinet did not reflect the
recommendations made by the committee, and
was as follows:

‘Resolved that the new ASC Strategy 2025-28 is
linked to the Corporate Vision and supports
corporate priorities under ‘Our People and
Communities.’

Update required. Committee may wish to seek
a response from relevant Portfolio Holder back
into committee.

Recommendations from Committee meeting — 14 July 2025



https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g6328/Printed%20minutes%2003rd-Mar-2025%2018.00%20Health%20and%20Adult%20Social%20Care%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=1
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g5936/Printed%20minutes%2019th-May-2025%2018.00%20Health%20and%20Adult%20Social%20Care%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=1
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g5937/Printed%20minutes%2014th-Jul-2025%2018.00%20Health%20and%20Adult%20Social%20Care%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=1

o

20

Adult Social
Care Fulfilled
Lives
Transformation
Programme

The HASC O&S Committee:

1. Supports the recommendation to Cabinet
that Council approves the request

for the release of the remaining £1.11m
funding that was previously agreed to

allow the Fulfilled Lives Programme to reach
completion and realisation of the

benefits; and

2. Continues to monitor this four-year
programme in particular around self-directed
support and support at home that will enable
people to stay independent.

Cabinet 26 July 2025

Recommendations from Committee meeting — 23 September 2025

Cabinet and Council approved the release of the
remaining £1.1m as outlined at part 1 of the
recommendation.

30

Get Dorset &
BCP Working
Plan -
GD&BCPWP

The Committee RECOMMENDS that:
1) The recommendations as outlined in the
report be approved by Cabinet.

2) That Cabinet agree for the Get Dorset &
BCP Working Plan to return to an Oveniew
and Scrutiny Committee at an appropriate
stage for further scrutiny, to enable Members
to review its delivery, assess its impact in
supporting individuals to return to work, and
consider whether intended outcomes are
being achieved.

Cabinet 1 October
2025

Recommendations from Co

mmittee meeting — 1 December 2025

Report recommendations agreed by Council.

44

FutureCare
Programme —
Mid
Programme
Review

RESOLVED that the Committee requests the
programme return to its next meeting on 2
March 2026 with detailed financial and
impact data to scrutinise.

Officers

Recommendations from Committee meeting — 2 March 2026

Coming back to Committee on 2 March with
further information requested.



https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g5938/Printed%20minutes%2023rd-Sep-2025%2018.00%20Health%20and%20Adult%20Social%20Care%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=1

LYy

Recommendations from Committee meeting — 19 May 2026

Recommendations from Committee meeting — 20 July 2026

Recommendations from Committee meeting — 22 September 2026

Recommendations from Committee meeting — 30 November 2026

Recommendations from Committee meeting — 1 March 2027




8¥

OUTSTANDING ACTIONS

Minute
number

Item

Action*
*ltems remain until action completed.

Benefit

Updates

Actions arising from Committee meeting — 25 September 2023

20

National Suicide
Prevention Strategy

Decision Made:

The Board was advised that Public Health was unsure of
the amount which would be allocated to the BCP area,
as the closing dates for bids had not yet happened,
however bids were being worked on and once any
funding was known, the Committee could be informed.

Action — Public Health aware

Actions arising from Committee meeting — 15 July 24

Adult Social Care
Transformation
Business Case

Decision Made:
That key risks and Key Performance Indicators be
included in future reports regarding the Transformation

Programme

Action — Officers aware

To enable the Committee to
have this information when
scrutinising

Actions arising from Committee meeting — 24 September 24

34.

Adult Social Care
Budget Presentation

Decision made:

In response to a query regarding the activities and
outcomes of the Live Well Dorset programme, the
Committee was advised that it had managed to reach
those living in the most deprived areas of BCP and that
access could potentially be provided to the dashboard
for the Committee to see the output.

Action: to be considered further

Actions arising from Committee meeting — 3 March 25




6V

Minute Iltem Action* Benefit Updates
number *ltems remain until action completed.
59. The Transformation Decision Made:
of UHD Hospitals That the Director of Adult Social Care be the contact for
any ClIrs wishing to visit the new facilities
ACTION - Director and Cllrs aware.
64. Work Plan Decision Made: An update requested

As requested by the Oveniew and Scrutiny Board, the
Committee will monitor the proposed increase of block
booked beds for long-term care and that an update on

progress against this be provided at an appropriate time.

ACTION - added to the work plan with no date yet
identified.

under budget
presentation in
September 2025

Actions arising from Committee meeting — 19 May 25

11

FutureCare
Programme Update

Decision Made:
That the Committee receive data regarding bed capacity
and workforce numbers at an appropriate time.

Action — Officers aware

Decision Made:

That the Committee receive data around benefits
tracking and monitoring to be reported to a meeting at a
future date.

Action — Officers aware and added to the work plan
Decision Made:

That the Committee receive further information
regarding capacity within secondary care to fulfil the
future need.

Action — Officers aware

Actions arising from Committee meeting — 14 July 25

20.

Adult Social Care
Fulfilled Lives
Transformation
Programme

Decision Made:
That the Committee receive quantitative data about the
impact in future reports.




Minute
number

Item

Action*
*ltems remain until action completed.

Benefit

Updates

Action — Officers aware

Actions arising from Committee meeting — 23 September 25

31

Tricuro: Business
Plan Review and
Objectives 2025-26

Decision Made:

The Committee requested data on senice capacity,
particularly at the Moordown centre. Officers confirmed
that capacity data is available via dashboards and would
be circulated to the Committee.

Action — Officers aware

Decision made:

The Committee was advised of the officer's commitment
to ongoing engagement and agreed that progress
updates should be provided between formal planning
cycles to support continued collaboration and oversight

Action — Officers aware

Actions arising from Committee meeting — 1 December 2025

44, FutureCare Decision Made: _ _ _ To enable the Committee to Coming back to
Programme — Mid The importance of tracking savings through to tangible fully scrutinise the impact of Committee on 2 March
Programme Review outcomes, such as reduced home care hours and the programme in terms of 2026.
improved reablement was highlighted, and the Chair tangible outcomes and savings
requested detailed data analysis at a
future meeting.
Action —added to work plan for 2 March 2026
45. Integrated Decision Made:

Neighbourhood
Teams (INTs) Update

The Committee requested the programme DiiS
dashboard be shared with them to consider further.

Action — Officers aware.




0&S Recommendations / Executive response process

Cabinet process:

, timed.*
O&S committee

agrees * Recommendation published to the next Cabinet meeting with request to respond.

recommendation to
Cabinet

* Recommendation should be evidence-based and SMART, ie. specific, measurable, achievable, relevant and]

«Iltem already on Cabinet agenda for discussion?

*Verbal Cabinetresponse provided atmeeting and published in minutes (defaultposition).

*Where limited time is available for considering response and reasons, provide a written response into O&S committee within 2 months.
«Iltem not on Cabinet agenda for discussion?

* Cabinetresponse provided within 2 months.

*Format- written response published to O&S committee meeting within 2 month window.

0&S
recommendation

received at Cabinet . ) ) i : . . )
meeting *May alternatively be scheduled for discussion ata future Cabinetmeeting to form a response - Cabinetdiscretion.

*Wherever possible, Cabinetwill also clearlyindicate:
*Recommendation fully accepted?
*Recommendation partially accepted?

Ol ololgsSiel  « Recommendation entirely not accepted?
el EEEIONEY « \Wherever possible, reasons will be provided.

 All recommendations and responses will be included on recommendation trackers for respective O&S
committees.

+ O&S committees request updates on implementation progress at regular intervals

?gccso m%nétntml% gf » Levels of recommendations accepted reflected in O&S annual report as measure of O&S impact.

eEuceien © O&S committees use recommendation impact data to refine future recommendations and improve impact

*Cabinet required to respond by indicating what action, if any, the Cabinet proposes to take.* ]

* Oveniew and scrutiny: statutory guidance for councils, combined authorities and combined county authorities - GOV.UK



https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/overview-and-scrutiny-statutory-guidance-for-councils-combined-authorities-and-combined-county-authorities/overview-and-scrutiny-statutory-guidance-for-councils-combined-authorities-and-combined-county-authorities

¢S

Portfolio Holder process

0&S committee
agrees
recommendation to

Portfolio Holder

*Portfolio Holder
responds to
recommendation.

O&S monitoring of
recommendation
implementation

*Recommendation should be evidence-based and SMART, ie. specific, measurable, achievable, relevant and
timed. *

*Recommendation published in O&S committee minutes.

*Recommendation sent to Portfolio Holder with request to respond.

N

/

*Portfolio Holder required to respond by indicating what action, If any, they propose to take.*
*Response required in writing.
Portfolio Holder will attend O&S committee meeting to present their written response.
*Wherever possible, Portfolio Holder will also clearly indicate:

*Recommendation fully accepted?

*Recommendation partially accepted?

*Recommendation entirely not accepted?

*Wherever possible, reasons will be provided.

«All recommendations and responses will be included on recommendation trackers for respective O&S
committees.

+0O&S committees request updates on implementation progress at regular intervals

Levels of recommendations accepted reflected in O&S annual report as measure of O&S impact.

+O&S committees use recommendation impact data to refine future recommendations and improve impact.

wnuwixew syijuow ¢



Agenda ltem 7

Health & Adult Social Care Scrutiny Committee BCP

Council

Report subject

FutureCare Programme — Impact analysis and finance
update

Meeting date

2 March 2026

Status

Public

Executive summary

Focusing on outcomes for people, this report sets out an
analysis of the benefits delivered so far by the FutureCare
Programme against the targets set in the FutureCare
Diagnostic.

Fewer people are being admitted into hospital beds, more
people are receiving care at home and the length of time
people are spending inintermediate care beds has reduced
by an average of 5.5 days.

However, more work is still required to deliver all of the
benefits anticipated in the FutureCare Diagnostic and in
particular to reduce the length of time people spend in UHD
hospitals waiting to be discharged with a short-term care
package.

Recognising that there are still 5 months remaining to deliver
the first phase of the programme (anticipated completion:
June 2026), there is still confidence that anticipated benefits
will be delivered.

Positively, since the December update to the Committee,
despite the impact of seasonal pressures on overall
programme benefits, the cumulative benefits delivered to BCP
have moved from a negative position of -£32,000 in October
to a positive position of £55,000 at the beginning of February.

There is also increasing confidence that the anticipated
benefits in 2026/27 for BCP Council will be greater than
forecast, though some of these are being offset by increasing
demand pressures across the wider ASC budget.

53




Recommendations

It is RECOMMENDED that: the Committee recognise the
progress continues to made in delivering positive
outcomes for Dorset residents and in achieving
operational benefits for the Dorset health and care
system.

Reason for
recommendations

To provide assurance to BCP Council that the Scrutiny
Committee is undertaking its role in monitoring the delivery of
the FutureCare Programme and to confirm that the
Programme is on track.

Portfolio Holder(s):

Clir David Brown, Portfolio Holder for Health and Wellbeing

Corporate Director

Service Director

Laura Ambler- Corporate Director of Wellbeing
Betty Butlin, Director of Adult Social Care (DASS)

Report Authors Dylan Champion, Programme Director - FutureCare
Programme

Wards Council-wide

Classification Recommendation

1 Introduction

1.0 Atits December meeting, the Scrutiny Committee requested a more detailed
overview of finance and impact data associated with the FutureCare

Programme.

1.1 The analysis identifies that the FutureCare Programme is having a positive

impact on:

e reducing the number of people being admitted to hospital following a visit
to the emergency department at UHD hospitals;

e reducing the length of time that people spend in an intermediate care bed
following a hospital stay;

e the number of people receiving home based intermediate care following a

hospital stay.

1.2  Atthe same time, the analysis shows that so far, level of no criteria to reside
(NCTR) and the length of time that people in UHD hospitals wait for a short

54




13

2.0

2.1

2.2

term care package before being discharged has remained largely unchanged
over the lifetime of the programme.

Positively the programme remains on track to deliver the full level of
operational benefits for BCP Council by the end of the programme, and this
will include more than £2m of operational benefits by the end of FY 2026/27.
Furthermore, the whole programme remains on track to deliver in excess of
£28m of operational benefits for the Dorset health and care system overall in
2026/27.

Background

Following completion of a diagnostic exercise in September 2024 and the
subsequent agreement of health and care partners across Dorset to progress,
work commenced on the FutureCare programme in January 2025. The aims
of the programme are to:

1. Reduce the length of time people spend in hospital by speeding up joint
working and decision-making across organisations and starting discharge
planning earlier

2. Support more people to recover better at home following a hospital stay,
reducing the requirement for long term care packages at home and the
need to move from home into long term residential or nursing care.

The diagram below provides an overview of the anticipated people benefits
and resource savings that will be delivered through the FutureCare
Programme.

470

ACUTE
HOSPITAL

)3

AHINOL

HOME-BASED BED-BASED
INTERMEDIATE INTERMEDIATE
CARE CARE

A A\
570 an
year 1o0ei LONG TERM CARE
HOME

This report specifically focusses on benefits delivered so far and on the
anticipated financial impact for BCP Council and the Dorset health and care
system as a whole in 2026/27.

55



2.3

2.4

2.5

Reducing hospital admissions

The FutureCare diagnostic exercise identified that, across Dorset, 2300
hospital admissions could be avoided through completion of the FutureCare
Programme. At the end of January 2026, the number of people being referred
into same day emergency (SDEC) at UHD hospitals alone had increased from
a baseline position of 460 referrals per week at the beginning of the
programme to 506, an increase of 46 per week or 2392 per year and so this
target is being exceeded.

UHD SDEC Starts

4 600

0 0

3,\55

\2500

mo% 450

£~ 400

© L0 Te} To) To) [T} To) L0 L0 T} Te} Te} \e} \e) e}

] [QV] N N N N N N (Q\] N N N (Q\] N N

” I T
[0} © o, 0] 3 ’%5 2 ] O O 8 ’%G élj ©
LL‘UH§ SD@C ﬁar?s - = ufh S%ECZStarts Foreca%t

Positive progress in reducing hospital admissions has also impacted on bed
days saved. The FutureCare Diagnostic identified that on the average length
of hospital stay for each person admitted to hospital rather than being referred
to SDEC services was 6 days and so itis currently anticipated that 14,452
bed days will be saved by UHD hospitals in 2026/27 as a result of the
FutureCare changes so far.

Speeding up acute hospital discharges

The FutureCare diagnostic identified that there is an opportunity to reduce the
length of time that people with waiting for short term intermediate care
packaged wait in hospital to be discharged once medically fit could be
reduced from 9.8 days to 7.4 days or less. Currently this target has not been
achieved at University Hospitals Dorset (UHD) hospitals and at the end of
January, no criteria to reside average length of stay remained at 9.8 days.
Positively, at Dorset County Hospital the anticipated level of improvement has
been achieved and itis anticipated that recent improvements in performance
at UHD will continue and these full benefits will be delivered by June 2026.

56



2.6

2.7

Discharged UHD P1-3 NCTR LoS
11.00
10.00 ——
~ 9.00 e
£ 8.00 TS a
=2 - e ar e e e
(e6) 700 : : : : H : H H : : :
~ I I’ I I I I I’ I I I’ I’ [ I’ I
" Q 4 4 > g 4 o 9 v > 0 ¢ QO 4
v ®© 0 «© 5 5 5 0) 0 0 10 © 0 ©
S e = < = e} e} < n @) =z (o) o) [y =
e JHD NCTR LoS - «= UHD NCTR LoS Forecast

Providing more home-based intermediate care (HBIC).

The FutureCare diagnostic identified the opportunity to support more people
with existing HBIC capacity and to increase its effectiveness. Atthe end of
January, though work remains to simplify the HBIC pathway, reducing the
number of handovers from one provider to another, and speeding up the
parallel process of undertaking Care Act Assessments, the number of weekly
HBIC starts in the Eastis reaching the target set. Currently, this means that 5
more people per week, or 260 per year are returning home to receive support
rather than being transferred to a hospital bed.

Metric Current Target
Starts (pw) 57 60
CLoS (dauys) 34 26
Total # people 208 218
# people waiting for discharge 82 25

As well as increasing the number of people that receive home-based
intermediate care, the FutureCare Programme also aims to improve the
effectiveness of the service required and in particular to reduce the average
size of long-term care packages that follow. Across Dorset, HBIC
effectiveness has improved but work is outstanding to deliver the full impact of
mitigating 420,000 hours of homecare each year as a result of a stay in

reablement.

57



2.8

o HBIC (Excluding Apex/CS) Effectiveness
U
g’EG.O
EE§50 _____ _ ’_’___—_
5 32 40
20
S om 30
T g T N L L W W N W W W W N O O O
QO L g g g g g g g9 494 g g
0% §§ 55353 2% 38358 5%:=
go_ LS < s S < vw O =2 o = o =S
T
Average Effectiveness = = Average Effectiveness Forecast

Reducing the length of in intermediate care beds

The FutureCare Programme set a target of reducing the average length of
stay in an intermediate care bed from an average of 38.2 days to 32.7 days in
order to support more Dorset residents to return home more quickly.
Currently, an average of 46 people per week are being discharged from
intermediate care beds and so over a year it is anticipated that more than
2300 Dorset residents will benefit. Currently the average length of stay is
around 36 days and consistent levels of performance are now being achieved
across community hospital sites, at Coastal Lodge and at Castleman Plus in
Dorset. Reducing length of stay to below 30 days remains the programme
target, with work ongoing to achieve this.

Community Hospital Bed Discharged Length of Stay

© 45

€

= 40

X 35

Y 30

-

> 25

Q0 n L N " N N N N N N N O W
o g 4 g § o o § g g g q § o
v O = S~ >~ C = b o ¥ > oo c a9 =
> T O > O 7] ©

(0] > S5 o o T
< - S < s 5 7 »w O 2 o = o =
s DHC P2 LOS e= e= DHCP2 LoS Forecast

58




Coastal Lodge P2 Discharged Length of Stay

ggg

s

VoA oo o o o vee - o - en o e eon o - o - er e eor o o e e
3%

o 1N n n n LN 1N n ) o
© A Y g g g g g g o g o o A
— — o - o0 4 > —
2 $ 8 2353238832 8 8 38 ¢

BCP P2 LoS = e= BCP P2 LoS Forecast

Operational Benefits

2.5Due to seasonal pressures, there was a significant reduction in the FutureCare
operational run rate in December. Through January, there was a strong recovery
and at the beginning of February, £15m of operational benefits had been
delivered against a February target of £18m and an overall programme target of
£28.4m. There remains strong confidence that across Dorset the overall
FutureCare target of delivering £28.4m of operational benefits will be delivered.

Annualised Run Rate of the FutureCare Programme

£20.00M
£15.00M — :
£10.00 M - L
- - ) L EEC | [ % r
£5.00 M = il“liil R T
i UL
£0.00 M E!!!_-!!-.-;.L:!:!-!!-!!!.!._ i L LLL |
-£5.00M
[Ip] Lo o [Te] o [Ip] Lo [Is] L o Lo o w w w
o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o
(o] o) ™ = o w M~ 0] [+)] (=] i (o] —i (9] [22]
o o o o o o o [=] o — — — o o o
g ® 9 & @ &8 49 &8 /B 08, 3 B O d
o o [ap] (o] (o] (o] (o} — — — — o o o o
 A2A . ToC
= BBIC mmmm HBIC
Programme Run Rate Programme Run Rate Forecast

Run rate or recurrent operational benefit is the financial value of the
operational change that has been achieved if that level of performance is
maintained for a year.

Example 1: During the diagnostic exercise it was agreed that the cost of a
bed day at UHD hospital was £355. Under the agreed benefits model, if
during a week a total of 50 people are discharged from hospital with a support
package (P1-3) on average one day sooner than the 9.7 day baseline
average agreed as part of the diagnostic, then this contributes £923,000 to
the target run rate (£355 x 50 people x 52 weeks).

Example 2: During the diagnostic the hourly homecare rate across BCP was
agreed at £16.20. Under the agreed benefits model, if 10 people complete a
reablement package during a week, and the average reduction inthe size of
the subsequent long term home care package required is one hour greater
than the previous average reductio%é)f 4.59 hrs (i.e. 5.59 hrs) then this
contributed £8,424 (£16.20 x 10 people x 52 weeks) to the run rate.




3.0

4.0

4.1

Options Appraisal
Not applicable.

Summary of financial implications

A fee of £9m has been agreed to provide the transformation support and data
and technology tools required to deliver the programme. For BCP Council

this means a financial contribution of £912,000, with payments beginning in
January 2026.

The graph below presents the operational benefits delivery trajectory for BCP
Council. Run rate measures the annual value of a benefit when itis released.
While the impact on a person is often immediate (they go home early, or are
not referred into a long term nursing or residential care bed), there is often a
gap in the time it takes to release the financial value of the benefit because
this is the total cost of the care that would have been provided in the period
following the hospital discharge. This means that run rate is a better indicator

of the impact that the FutureCare Programme will have on ASC budgets next
year, rather than this year.

Combined BCP Council (exc. P2 Bed Capacity) Run Rate

£6.00 M
£4.00 M
£2.00M
£0.00 M
-£2.00M
-£4.00M
-£6.00M

I HBIC

Effectiveness
HBIC Throughput

I P2 Resi

Avoidance
I Acute Resi
Avoidance
e Total BCP
Council
== == ForecastTotal

N wwuwwwmwww.wwww o o o BCP Council
YA I QAP G QA
o &8 8 2 ® 5 2 3 0 LR o 0w o0 I
L =< s S < »n O zao0 -~ uwL =

60



4.2  Ascan be seen, there are month on month variations in the operational run
rate being achieved and the overall run rate can be significantly impacted by a
small number of residential placements, or by seasonal pressures but
currently the operational run rate being achieved (black line), is significantly
greater than the anticipated operational benefit at this time (dashed, grey
line).

4.3  Since the last update to Overview and Scrutiny Committee in December,
there has also been a significant improvement in in-year or cumulative
benefits delivered to BCP. The December report identified the net cumulative
benefit at the beginning of October which was -£32,000. As can be seen
below, the position at the beginning of February is +£55,000.

Cumulative BCP Council (exc. P2 Capacity) Benefit

£300k | |
mmm HBIC Effectiveness Benefit
£200 Kk
£100 k HBIC Throughput Benefit
£0k m Mitigated Residential
-£100k Placements - P2
-$£200k mmm Mitigated Residential
W WwWwwwmwmwLwLwLWw.em.m o Placements - Acute
g adgaggagd |
g g g g 9 g g g g S o9 p = Total Benefits To Date

4.4  The table below sets out the level of net benefits from the FutureCare
Programme which have been built into BCP Medium Term Financial Plan.

dult Social Care & Commissioning
Medium Term Financial Plan 2024/2028

Financial Year 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 Total

UEC Transformation
Jan ‘26 Onwards £0.1m £1m £25m £3.6m

4.5 The table below sets out the anticipated benefits that will be delivered for BCP
Council throughout the lifetime of the programme.

61



4.6

5.0

6.0

6.1

7.0

Cumulative benefit in

FY benefit year

FY24/25 £0.0m £0.0m
FY25/26 £0.3m £0.3m
FY26/27 £24m £2Im
FY27/28 £61m £3.7m
FY28/29 £10.5m £44m
FY29/30 £15.2m £4.7m

As can be seen above, the speed of cumulative or in-year benefits need to
continue to increase through the remainder of February and March to meet
the BCP Programme savings target and to deliver the £100,000 net benefit
anticipated in 2025/26. However, the positionin 2026/27 is more positive,
with an increasing likelihood that programme benefits more than the
anticipated £2.1m will be delivered in 2026/27 and in subsequent years.

Summary of legal implications

Dorset Council is the lead organisation for managing the contract with
Newton. To ensure that costs and benefits are shared equitably a Dorset
Health and Care Partnership Agreement has been drafted and executed.
This is legally binding between partner organisations and has been signed
and circulated.

Summary of human resources implications

Adult Social Care staff and people employed in organisations contracted by
BCP Council to deliver care services play an important part in the delivery of
the services within the scope of this work programme. As a result of this
programme, itis envisaged that many people will work differently but no
substantial reorganisations to existing council structures or care organisations
will take place.

Some changes in the delivery of home based reablement care services and
intermediate bedded care services provided in care homes is envisaged but
these will follow a co-design process and a subsequent re-commissioning of
services if required. Where this is the case then an appropriate consultation
and change process will be undertaken.

Summary of sustainability impact

The FutureCare Programme will have a positive impact on sustainability,
reducing the length of time people spend in hospitals, optimising hospital
assets and supporting more people to live independently at home for longer

Summary of public health implications

The quality and effectiveness of urgent and emergency care pathways has a
substantial impact on public health. In particular, the diagnostic identifies that
itis primarily older people, with one or more long term condition, that are most

62



likely to be admitted into hospital unnecessarily or are likely to face delays in
returning home following a hospital stay. There is a substantial body of
evidence that suggests that each additional day that a person spends in a
hospital bed leads to physical deconditioning and that substantial hospital
delays can be very detrimental to overall quality of life and can impact on
whether a person is able to return home and live independently or will require
long term residential care.

9 Summary of equality implications

9.0 Equality Impact Assessments have been undertaken at a workstream level.
The diagnostic has identified some variation in the outcomes achieved from
different services across Dorset and by geographical area. As key priority for
the programme is ensuring equality, equity and consistency of services across
the East and West of Dorset.

10  Summary of risk assessment

10.0 The greatest risk for the programme at the mid-point is failure to address the
key no criteria to reside average length of stay indicator. Without sustained
improvement in this area anticipated benefits for people — shorter lengths of
hospital stay, once people are fit to be returned home will not be delivered.
Following the programme reset there is increased confidence that anticipated
improvements will be delivered.

Background papers

None

Appendices
There are no appendices to this report.

63



This page is intentionally left blank

64



NHS

University Hospitals Dorset
NHS Foundation Trust

Developing our clinical strategy
2025-2035

Update — Health & Adult Social Care Overview & Scrutiny Committee 02.03.2026

G9

)| epuaby

D
Peter Wilson Chief Medical Officet,
Richard Renaut Chief Transformation Officer

We are m’ istening to understand inclusive ]




99

Introduction

Dorset’'s NHS is changing, to improve

UHD is nested within the wider health & care
system, and we need each other to succeed

"We are UHD" sets out our contribution,
strategic themes and progress to date

Our emerging clinical strategy — Process,
priorities and discussions to come



L9

NHS!

University Hospitals Dorset

We Are UHD
Our Trust Strategy 2026—2031

If one word describes

our strategy for UHD, it’s
‘ambitious’.

We are setting out our vision
and practical steps for the next

five years and how we’ll further
develop over the next 10 years.

Our goal is to work with our
local communities and partners
to make Dorset the healthiest
place to live in the UK. We will
also provide excellent care to
our patients and make UHD
a great place to work.

,,W

Qual
Population Our Patient Oulcomtntyand
and System People Experience Safety

Beagreat Improvepatient  Savelives,  Use every NHS
nhmum place to work w improve patient  pound wisely

We hope you'’ll join us on our
journey.

Siobhan Harrington
Chief Executive

Enabling programmes

Cincal People Improvement Medum Term Sustainabilty
Strategy Strategy Strategy Financial Plan Strategy




89

We are UHD: Our Trust Strategy 20,

Our goals and how
we will achieve them

Our strategy isn'’t just nice words on a page, it is a roadmap to
success. Our Trust uses Patient First to empower all colleagues and
teams to get involved and be part of our improvement.

We have five long term objectives and every month we track our

. A Many areas have improvement
progress agalnst these. huddles 1o track progress
Strategic Theme  Strapline Vision Strategic Goal Breakthrough Objective _g."_':,

LONG TERM MEDIUM TERM: 3 - 5 YEARS SHORTTERM: 1 YEAR *  nctachived
Consistently deivering * Meetng he patient nasonal * Toachieve 109% weighted value elective sctivity
umely. . standards for Planned and against he 201920 taseine. Includng specialist advice
care a8 part of & wider Emergency care. reducing inequalises in and guidance
POPULATION Integrated care system for oulcome and sccess and improving =
AND SYSTEM Cd oo’ PCACGY RS S ::;-m:v:‘m -a::g more than :‘:’
“See patents weeks (18 week RTT) for treatment
+ >78% of patents 1o be treated within 4 hours trough
e emergency care pa!
To be a grest place 1o work, *  Signifcantly improved staff To delver improvements in the NHS Staff Survey
atracting and retaining the best m'n engagement vﬂn;r:m Results for
tlent . Survey results in top
OUR PEOPLE m of comgmrator Trusts C MOt SOONRERE Ry CRgERSCR 38 8 Pica 1
work” > 65%
“Be a great .
DO e o work Staff Engagement Score > 7.1/ 10

+ Rated 33 Outstanding by COC as Caring = 100% of complaints 1o be diosed within 35 days, with
* Over 80% of o -mq-u-u-lcrl associated action plan
care s a bop priority for "
hlhlwmle’Smom Increase the number of Early Resclution of complaints
Trusts on he ‘overall experience’ section Y 20%

PATIENT

EXPERIENCE

force

Sarah Herbert patient Imgro n 8l COC national surveys *  Reduce he number of complaints received per 1,000
R . .ccc  C79°9N0 W patents i s contacts for clinical services by 10% from baselne
listen and act™ :"’"wwm“‘"', S
= Inthe top 20% of trusts in country *  To statistically reduce cur rate of Falls per 1,000 bed
amm::m:' ‘ox Hospitaksed Standard Martaty days
wo;’:o“‘;;s @l stafl, a8 an outstanding + Rated as Outstanding by COC for Safety "‘"‘"":;‘;""'“"‘""‘"""E
AND SAFETY organisation for * Decrease b 0e Nghar
“Save Ives, eflectveness (Hospitalsed Patient Safety Incidents (as artioof sl «  To statistically reduce the rate of pressure ukers
i I L R T
patientsalely” | (o sent Safety Incidents - PSIs). | Trust promoles a safety cullure * Doclars 1o achieve 100% complisnce in eMortality
To maximise value for money *  Retum b recurent financis! supius *  Tofuly deliver the budgeted Eficiency Improvement
o enabling lurther investmentand  ¥om 2026/27 Programeme target wth o least 80% achieved
SR sustanabilty in our services . u-a-oqumr-cocvu recurenty
10 imgrove the tmelness and Use of
“Useevery  quailly of care for our patients, = hnmmwd * Tohave reconfiguraion efficiency plans In place
NMS pound  and the working Iives of our sustanabilly for people and planet, and
wisely”  staf 80% carbon reduction by
Major change projects
UHD has an ambitious set of major change For further information on our objectives and
projects to help us achieve our goals. projects see our 2025-26 Operational Plan.
These include:
e ‘Transforming Care Together’, a £550m o Bscies Chinical

investment in our services to create our
emergency hospital at Royal Bournemouth
and the UK'’s largest planned care hospital
at Poole.

* ‘Healthset’, our £280m new electronic
health record linking records across Dorset
and Somerset.

"8 carng Jone team L stenng to understand Y cisive |

2

Transtorming Care
Together




69

We are UHD: Our Trust Strategy 2026-2031

UHD Supporting strategies

We have a number of strategies that support our strategic themes. You can find out more
via the links below.

Continuous : ,
. F &

Patient First Improvement Strategy 2023-26
Population and Urgent and Emergency Care Delivery Plan, Site
system Specific Cancer Plan, Elective Care Delivery Plan
Our people People and Culture Strategy 2024-27

Patient experience Patient Engagement and Experience Strategy

Quality outcomes Quality and Safety Strategy, Clinical Strategy
and safety (under development)

- - Jowt Forward Man
Working with partners s n POt
UHD is an active part of Dorset Integrated Care e S,
System. Our shared strategies include:

* Dorset ICB Strategy

We will prevent ( from
¢ Dorset ICS Digital Strategy g)a Socoming Overweight by 2000

® |nnovation Strategy - Wessex Health Partners
* Bournemouth University - UHD Partnership Mo VAR AMIRIIN. G ta sty S0
expectancy from 19 years to 15 years by 2061

¢ Dorset Clinical Services Review

We will INCIEAC the percentage of older prople
We work with our partners, staff and the public iving wel and independently in Dorset.
to deliver the priorities outlined in Dorset'’s Joint
Forward Plan 2023-28. Key partner strategies

We will sdd 100,000 heattny life yoars
include: S i 10 the people of Dorset by 2033
* BCP Council Coporate Strategy
* Dorset Council Plan

¢ Dorset County Hospital / Dorset HealthCare * §
NHS FT Joint Str; ’ =

e South Western Ambulance Service NHS FT et O : g‘;;“;‘y
Strategy E

LCE caring L one team[listening to understand (ETT




0L

We are UHD: Our Trust Strategy 2026-2031

our patients’ voice [Eaa

We actively work with our patients and public to codevelop our
services and identify areas for improvement. Our patients are
involved in numerous activities, informing our teams how their
care should be delivered and giving their valuable insights into
100 conuersation

service redesign. Consultation on the NHS 10 Year Plan, patient
surveys and the ‘100 Voices’ project are three examples. e el
= H . 1 onve!
Below are representative patient comments:. Summary Report
€A future NHS should be Safe, Effective
and Efficient?

ki patients need to be listened to, trusted and included
in discussions and decisions around care??

féServices should focus on providing easier
and earlier access to support?

féServices need to work together so carers
don’t have to keep repeating the same story?”’

i Services need to provide appropriate information, tools and techniques
to empower people to self-manage their own conditions?’

" By taking part in research, we hope we can help future patients?’

four staff voice Staff engagement and creating a positive
work environment are crucial to delivering
Engaging with our colleagues is key to the highest quality patient care. The Trust's
uniting our workforce behind our vision and NHS Staff Survey results show areas for
making our Trust a great place to work. improvement, such as being informed
Our staff tell us they: enough about service changes, wellbeing

offers or development opportunities. We
* feel safe to report concerns intend to change this by progressing the
* want to work in an effective team with NHS People Promise.
strong working relationships =
* want to be told about the difference their
feedback makes

/g,of/& /;Zomfd‘e,

2 @ & )
o 0 @

- ounts
—indusive - sale m




T.

UHD now... Fact file

* We serve over 750,000 local residents plus
visitors, with one of the oldest populations in the UK

* We have almost 10,000 staff, and spend £900m
* We are part way through our £550m capital rebuild
programme

* Each year we assess around 160,000 patients in our
Emergency Departments, help deliver more than 3,500
babies, perform over 98,000 day case treatments, and
care for more than 635,000 people in our outpatient clinics

* We are one of largest hip and knee replacement centres

in Europe

* We are the largest non-surgical cardiac unit in the UK

* We deliver the 14th highest number of cancer treatment
pathways in England

* Over 3,900 of our patients have been recruited to 37
different research studies via our UHD Research Hub

* We support the training of 100s of students each year via
partnerships with Bournemouth University and other local
Higher Education Institutions

...and planning our future

Over the next three years we will progress 2 From analogue to digital: delivering power
towards our goals. This will be assisted by in the patient’s hands.

WENTG M3 PIIS ) COTERNG.: 3 From sickness to prevention: giving

» Our service reconfiguration, delivering our people the power to make the healthy
planned and emergency hospitals. choices.

* Our digital system upgrade by 2028. We will pull these together as a draft )

« Embedding Patient First continuous CEION ¥ a1egy by SpEEg 2028, TTee Wit DS

i thodo overseen by our Board and our Council of
amproveenant me gy sobea Governors. This will then inform our next

organisation.
stage of engagement.
We will become a very different organisation, .
s0 we are taking time to review our long To get involved:
term vision. Work with patients, volunteers, * Become a member of our UHD
public, staff and partners will develop the ndation Tr
next chapter of our clinical strategy. « Volunteer at UHD

This work is informed by the government's

: * Contact a UHD governor via
10 Year Health Plan for England. This 7
describes the three major shifts needed in uhd.company.secretary-team@nhe.net

how we deliver healthcare: * Or send us your comments via

1 From hospital to community: developing uhd.communications@nhs.net

our neighbourhood health services.




ZlL

i
We are Our Trust Strategy 2026-2031

We are already delivering our strategy

Population and systems

® Our Beach moves are enabling better maternity, emergency
and critical care

® Numbers on our waiting lists are down and
waits for appointments have reduced

ccess to our diagnostics have improved
Reduced unnecessary stays in hospital
We support our Veteran community

We have improved support for our global majority
patients

Creat place to work

® We shine a spotlight on colleagues working hard
improve their services

® We celebrate Team UHD at our annual UHD Staff Awards
® Our wellbeing service supports colleagues to Thrive

® We have more permanent staff with less reliance
on temporary agency staff

Patient experience

® Cancer patients rate our services much better than others

® We have improved patient parking and promote sustainable
transport

® We are |leading the way in stroke research

Safety

® Our Patient Safety Incident Response Framework
promotes compasionate conversations

® Our mortality rates are better than expected
® Our maternity safety programme is complete
® We have introduced new beds and mattresses

Sustainability

® We have lived within our means for all five years since
UHD started

L WQhavocutcarbonandonemyeomo. .£13m_m

L4 Wthmdmomouimpmvodpromwvltymum
in the NHS

'
-




Developing UHD's

€L

Clinical Strategy

We are ZI1T) listening to understand J open and honest ]




v,

P Y caring Lone team

Our refreshed strategy triangle...

We are
caring one team listening to understand
inclusive  open and honest  GEiNAYSIRPrOVIAE

Quality
Outcomes
and Safety

Population | Our ! Patient
| and System People Experience

Sustainable
Services

bled by strategic initiatives

Digital Medium Term Green Transforming
Strategy Financial Plan UHD Care Together

Improvement People
Strategy Strategy

Yopen and honest_Raaysimproving | nolsive



Strategic Goal

POPULATION AND SYSTEM
Chief Operating Officer

“See our patients sooner”

OUR PEOPLE
Chief People Officer

“Be a great place to work”

PATIENT EXPERIENCE
Chief Nursing Officer

9,

“Improve patient experience
listen and act”

QUALITY OUTCOMES
AND SAFETY
Chief Medical Officer

“Save lives, improve patient
safety”

SUSTAINABLE
SERVICES
Chief Finance Officer

NE)
“Use every NHS pound wisely”

Weare CZ5T730 (T

Vision
LONG TERM: 7-10 years
Consistently
delivering timely, appropriate, acc
essible care as part of a wider
integrated care system for
our patients.

To be a great place to work,
attracting and retaining the best
talent, as measured by the Trust
being in the upper quartile for all 7
elements of the People Promise.

All patients at UHD receive quality
care which results in a positive
experience for them, their families
and carers. Every team is
empowered to make

continuous improvement by
engaging with patientsin a
meaningful way, using their
feedback to make change.

To be rated the safest Trust in the
country and be seen by our staff as
an outstanding organisation for
effectiveness (Hospitalised
Standardised Mortality Ratios —
HSMR) and patient safety

(Patient Safety Incidents - PSIs).

To maximise value for money
enabling further investment and
sustainability in our services

to improve the timeliness and
quality of care for our patients,
and the working lives of our staff.

Strategic Goal
MEDIUM TERM: 3 - 5 YEARS

Meeting the patient national constitutional standards
for Planned and Emergency care, reducing
inequalities in outcome and access and improving
productivity and value

* Todevelop a sustainable workforce measured
againstthe 3 components of staff morale:
improving retention, staff feeling supported with
sufficientresources, and respected and trusted
to do theirwork

¢ Rated as Outstanding by CQC as Caring

¢ Over80% of our employees see patientcare as a
top priority for UHD

¢ Inthe top 20% of NHS Acute Hospital Trusts on
the ‘overall experience’ sectionin all
CQC nationalsurveys

* Inthetop 20% of trusts in country
for Hospitalised Standard Mortality
Ratios (HSMR)

* Rated as Outstanding by CQC for Safety

* Decrease severe/moderate harm Patient Safety
Incidents (as a ratio of all incidents) by 30%

*  Over 80% of employees believe the
Trust promotes a safety culture

* Digitalintegration across all clinical and
operational workflows

¢ Returntorecurrentfinancial surplus
from 2028/29

* Rated as Outstanding by the CQC for our Use of
Resources

¢ Achieve our Green UHD goals of sustainability
for people and planet, and 80% carbon
reduction by 2030

Breakthrough Objective
SHORT TERM: ~1 YEAR

To achieve shorter waitingtimes
and improved outcomes for
patients as measured by
achievementof access
trajectories within the operational
plan (Planned, UEC, Diagnostics
and Cancer.

To improve permanent staff
availability across all professions
as measured by the reductionin
temporary staffing spend.

To understand the experience of
our patients by actively listening
to feedbackand usingit to inform
change in the way we deliver care
in atimely way.

To improve mortality and
morbidity across the trust as
measured by a 5% reduction in
hospitalised standardised
mortality rate through an
improvement in key morbidity
metrics.

To operate within the approved
budget, including delivering the
budgeted Efficiency Improvement
Programme target, with at least
60% achieved recurrently.

Our Vision & Goals, linked to our 26/7 key targets

Driver metrics
AND TARGETS

82% of emergency department attendances
admitted, transferred or discharged within four
hours

7% improvementin patients waiting 18 weeks or
less for elective treatment (18 week RTT)

80% of patients treated for cancer within 62 days
of referral

To have favourable variance of WTE against the
budgeted establishment

To reduce premium (bank) spend by 15%

90% of total complaints to be closed within 35
days

95% for % of good/very good recorded on FFT for
all areas

95% compliance on VTE prescribing within 24
hours of admission

To reduce the number of hospital acquired e Coli
infection by 20%

Uptake of ICE filing - improved % sign off on a
monthly rolling basis

To have favourable Forecast Outturn Variance to
Budget

To achieve 60% Forecast EIP Recurrent Delivery



Codeveloping a clinical strategy

We already have good quality, recent patient & public engagement
data on the public's expectations for future NHS services in Dorset
which we are utilising to help inform the themes for our strategy.
This includes Dorset ICS 100 conversations, Dorset & SW
region NHS 10YHP consultation results.

We also have at organisation and service level UHD Friends and
family test data, Patient complaints and feedback, Results of
patient surveys and other engagement activity.

9,

Engagement in Autumn 2025:

« Agreed to use existing feedback/insight to maximum effect as we
develop the strategy themes

« Consult again with our patients and public once emerging themes
become visible from the clinical engagement exercise, (likely
April-June 2026).

We are ZI1T)




LL

Writing a clinical strategy:
The story so far

Task & Finish Group have worked with the Dorset Patient Engagement Group
and UHD Governors to develop and agree the process of how we develop
a clinical strategy at UHD.

To help ensure patient's priorities for services are at the heart of the trust's
new clinical strategy findings from recent consultations with patients and
public undertaken as part of development of the NHS 10-year health plan and
the 100 conversations project and patient views on current services inform
our work including development of the template for clinical teams to complete.

6 key themes were identified that would help UHD deliver progress against
trust goals

Each of our clinical specialties are completing a template: what do patient say
about your service? SWOT. Horizon scan. 60/30/10 value add. Current
initiatives etc This included relative priorities against the 6 themes

open and honest ]



Writing a clinical strategy:
Current work & Next steps

As templates are returned, thematic analysis is beginning to identify
key priorities for inclusion in organisation wide clinical strategy;

« Suggest priorities to be further refined through a workshop between
lead clinicians and the trust execs.

e The strategies content and structure will be further developed through a
wider task and finish group comprised of senior medical, nursing and
allied health professional leads from across the trust.

8.

e Strategy checked for alignment to other trust / system strategies. Check
clear links to the PF triangle, strategic goals, other enabling strategies.

 Further feedback on draft will be obtained through series
engagements with our partners and community before expected
publication in Spring 2026.

e Governors and patient representatives already engaged and supporting
the process.




"You said” Themes

-

— Y

6.

L] caring_Tone team Ll

~N
A future NHS should be

Safe , Effective and
Efficient

Patients need to be listened to,
trusted and included in
discussions and decisions
around care

— Y

(
Services should focus on

providing easier and earlier
access to support

N
Services need to work together

so that carers don’t have to
keep telling the same story

—

~N

J

-

Services need to

information, tools and techniques to
empower people to self-manage their
owhn conditions

y, —
~

provide appropriate

J




Potential Opportunities

Moving care from Working with
hospital to partners to focus
community on prevention

Digital
Transformation

Transition from analogue <
settings supporting patients to

make the healthy
choices and reduce
health inequalities

to digital, enhancing
accessibility and developing the

efficiency in healthcare neighbourhood health

delivery service 1o better meet
patients’ needs

08

Further develop
our core services

| at UHD - ;
| university status
making the most of S o 4 to attract new specialist
or education an .
| reconfiguration and the and tertiary work

research
resources we have

Realising the

benefits of our Expanding /

networking

(0¥ caring [ one team ] t_fawaySimproving ] inclusive



64% returned to date

Suggested % effort by theme

Surgica

| Care

Group
—8/14

Medical C
Opportunity Area are

WCCSS
Care Gr

(n—8ﬂ1)

Grou&)n—

Further develop our core services at UHD, making the 313;{" 31580{0 222n°é’ 30%
most of reconfiguration and the resources we have
Digital Transformation: Transition from analogue to 138%) 222(::'/0 2170,[@ 22%
digital, enhancing accessibility and efficiency in healthcare r n S
delivery

% | Moving care from hospital to community 1260dA) 1%"/do 137%) 15%
settings developing the neighbourhood health service to n —or r
better meet patients’ needs
Realising the benefits of our university status for 14% l%?/a 1% 12%
education and research
Working with partners to focus on 141;%) 9% 142[‘;{() 11%
prevention supporting people to make the healthy choices
and work together to reduce health inequalities
Expanding/networking (including via Dorset NHS 8% 1% 1% 10%
provider collaborative) to attract new specialist tertiary
work
Total effort 100% 100% | 100% | 100%

L] caring_one team [l




Further develop our core services

* Make the most of creating UK's largest
planned care hospital

* Make the most of the emergency services
being set up to succeed £

[00]
N

* "You said" key actions

Specific projects for 26/7
* Qutpatients

* Future Care and & Emergency patient flow
* Fundamentals of care




Poole becoming UK's largest planned care hospital by 2027

« 10 new operating theatres

* Ward refurbishments

* Brand new Endoscopy unit

 Additional diagnostic
cpacity

Enhanced pos

Keeping local services:
 24/7 Urgent Treatment Centre for

111 and walk ins (as how)

* Clinics, diagnostics & Dorset's
cancer centre.

Reduced

Improved Patient : Improved day case Significant Specialist
cancellations,
pathway and » & inpatient reduction in estates rehabilitation
shorter waiting
experience environment backlog environments

to understand



., Transforming .
® care Royal Bournemouth Hospital

® Together
tor Major Emergency Site 2026

New BEACH building

Births, Emergency care, And Critical
care and child Health)

1,000+ beds inc. new build & refurbishments

Haematology & Oncology Unit
New main entrance, patient &
visitor centre including:

* Patient liaison, spiritual centre,
charity & volunteers, retail.

Surgical Admissions Unit
COAST building 4 new wards & Catering

Expansion of Frailty and Acute Admission Units

Same-day emergency care units including: - Staff changing, showering

Acute Medical resident doctors mess,
Erailt meeting rooms & hot desk

y space.
Surgical New Pathology Hub opened
Haematology and Oncology » Al & digital working
Trauma and Orthopedics * Flexible workspaces

* Networked solutions

L CE Y caring ] one team ] listening to understand Nays improving ll inclusive |



‘ Transforming
“® care
 Together

Better for patients, better for staff

Transforming Stroke R
and Cardiology Services:

IHS Foundation Trust
Enhancing patient care through reconfiguration

[+ ] conTexT [ 2] THE NEED FOR CHANGE (2 JPATIENT BENEFITS
Stroke and Cardiology bed « A growing elderly population with + Saving 1710 29 ves. ugh quick (0 Shorter
oot ; hocpia &
kb s | + Financial savings: approximalely £1.2m via bed g s
8 eomes: o oty | 3 Improved out-of-hours consutant
projected subsequent heart attacks and Lo f
pal e, i) strokes, enhanced patient experience.
e INNOVATION IN STROKE SERVICES o INNOVATION IN CARDIOLOGY SERVICES
. . Fremor
" Recucedlengh o iay by eimnating aos.s vansers szl
+ Consolidated expert workforce and staffing efficiencies
+ Improved co-ocatin offacities
[Fwerage length ofsay by fscal year e | C idation of
: services onto
. one site has led Girestmon
L to improved R smeesamammmans
et " “w efficiency L
Length of stay savings: i
+ Averago reductonof 05 (1 /4 Q\f e
;‘; :)"Y‘ Lt ol | M + Continued decrease in LOS (length of stay)
+ Tolal discharges: 1373 |* T Al ) R [t sl g ... Eraargsfcrminq
+ Estimated savings: £190k pon oot ...’ Together
patients,better for safé

INHS

University Hospitals Dorset
NHS Foundation Trust

i

istening to understand inclusive |

Phase 1: Completed

+ Cardiac, Stroke, Haematology: Teams
combined on single site: faster care,
better outcomes, lives saved.

* One Dorset Pathology: cutting edge
facilities, Al services, more cost
effective, staff attract & retain

« Catering: more choice & quality, lower
cost, spare capacity to serve others,
net zero facilities

» Cross site working: more resilient
services, reduced agency & turnover

* Overall UHD costs growing more
slowly than other acute Trusts,
whilst getting more productive




Digital transformation

Our Dorset Digital Strateqgy

98

Health Set - shared electronic health record
reducing need to repeat stories

NHS

Our Dorset

Ambient voice technology Digital Strategy

2025-2030
Improving Health & Care

ology

Hospital at Home
Remote monitoring
Expanded Teleconsultation

Outpatients transformation

Key theme so far for:

Child health(30%), therapies (top ranked), critical care (30%), pre-operative medicine
(30%), obstetrics/maternity (30%), gynaecology (25%)

L] caring_Tone team Ll



https://www.uhd.nhs.uk/uploads/about/docs/our_publications/our_dorset_digital_strategy_2025.pdf#:~:text=The%20Our%20Dorset%20Digital%20Strategy,through%20digital%20innovation%20by%202030.

From Hospital to Community

* Increased focus on keeping patients safely at
home - better joined up working with
community and primary care, and care-
coordination hubs

* Integrated virtual wards — Hospital at Home

* Increased work in the community incl SDEC
(Same Day Emergency Care)

» Greater focus on community based child
health

Key theme so far for:
Trauma & orthopaedics (50%), Older Peoples Services(40%), Child Health (30%)

We are ZI1T)

L8




Focus on Prevention

* Proactive screening for frailty in association
with primary and community colleagues

* Further support for aging well
* Improved falls prevention

88
]

Better osteoporosis management

* Improved access to specialist advice to benefit
all patients

Key theme so far for:
Older Peoples Services(30%), Obstetrics & Maternity (25%)

We are ZI1T)




University Status

e Develop further training opportunities
supporting entry and further developmentin
both clinical and non-clinical career pathways

e Potential future medical school

=z o Furtherjointresearch and
trials, benefiting Dorset residents

Key theme so far for:
Theatres (30%), Research Dept (30%), Ophthalmology




Expanding / networking

e Specialist services —working with Dorset
County Hospitals and other partners to
develop county wide services with improved
access for patients and resilience for staff

06
[

Enable better access to specialist expertise
from acute hospital staff to patients and carers
out of hospital via primary care & community
colleagues

Key theme so far for:
Breast, endocrine & skin surgery (25%), Urology (15%), Gastroenterology (15%)

We are ZI1T)




Corporate PrOjectS 2026 -27 START & FINISH Organisational

wide, complex projects. They
: y need to deliver within 1 to 2 years,
Population Our People Patient Quality itical
and System Experience Outcomes are critical to our SIUCCGS-S, progrgss
Bel‘” e ””P[""f ?S"d s,?fety our strategy of Patient First, require
See patients place to patien ave lives, .
soF:;ner work experience, improve |mpr0Vement effort, and need the

jisten and patient focus of the whole organisation.

Organisational
Flow

Fundamentals
of Care

Workforce
optimisation

Outpatients

The colouring of the hexagon indicates just the lead theme

‘open and honest ]

Weare CZ5T730 (T




What to look out for in 2026

What’s changed so far

New MPCC Ward in Poole

On 22 January, we opened a new Medical
Patient Continuing Care (MPCC) Ward at
Poole Hospital. Lulworth Ward became a
dedicated ward for patients who are medically
fit but have complex needs.

These patients were previously cared for et
across A4, A5 and Durlston. Bringing them acute gastroenterology ward. A4 is now a
together in one plgce W|Il.help improve patient regpiratory ward with nine endocrinology
flow and support timely discharge. beds, and A5 has been vacated for

As part of this change, Durlston is now an refurbishment.

We got the keys!

On 30 January, our new oncology build was officially

handed over to UHD by our contractor, IHP. The new
ward is now fully accessible to the Oncology Team as
th% prepare to move in later this month.

N

Oncology inpatient services
moving to RBH

From 23 February 2026, oncology inpatient
services and the Oncology Assessment

Unit (Oncology SDEC) will move to the

Royal Bournemouth Hospital from Poole
Hospital. From this date, all Oncology and
Haematology ward admissions will take place
at RBH.

Radiotherapy services will remain at Poole
Hospital. Outpatient and chemotherapy

appointments will continue at both sites.
Read more about this change on the ‘latest
news’ page on our website here.

Proposals for new MRI and
CT scanning facility close
to Poole Hospital

Come and see the = s CIRA
plans, as well as give
your feedback, on the
appearance of the
proposed new MRI and
CT scanning facility
that would replace

the Shaftesbury

House building on
Shaftesbury Road,
opposite Poole

RBH ward names are changing

From Tuesday 3 March, ward names at our RBH site will change to
their new location identifier. For example, ‘Ward 1’ will be known as
‘Ward A13L.

What happens to the IT systems?

New system codes have been created that now identify the ward by its function, or speciality,
and will then replace the existing code on all impacted IT systems, like eCamis, HOTW, ICE/
Graphnet, EPR etc on the date of change over. For example, the code for Ward 1 is currently
‘RB01’, meaning ‘RBH - Ward 1’ however a new code for this ward has been generated which
is ‘RBGAS1’ which stands for ‘RBH - Medical Gastroenterology 1'.

Why is this happening?
This change aligns ward identities and system codes to ward function, meaning wards can
move location within the site without needing a code change.

Who will this impact?

This change will impact 19 wards at RBH. Support will be available on 3 March to ensure all
devices move over to the new ward codes. All wards will also receive new Emergency Action
Cards, advising what to state when raising emergency calls following the name change.
Further detailed communications and direct support will be provided ahead of the

change and contact uhd.strategyandtransformation@nhs.net if you have any
queries.

RBH Surgical SDEC and SAU relocation This month , our Surgical
Same Day Emergency Care (SDEC), Surgical Admissions Unit (SAU) and Emergency
Gynaecology Assessment teams at RBH will move into the newly refurbished areas on the
first floor of the BEACH. This will provide improved facilities for patients and staff.

Surgical SDEC and the Emergency Gynaecology Assessment Unit will move on Sunday 15
February, with Surgical SDEC reopening on Monday 16 February. The SAU will move on
Wednesday 18 February.

Y Y carng Yore tean |




€6

Summary

Our strategy is very much nested in the Dorset
wide strategy development

We need to live within available funding, which
requires change, especially in emergency care

Operational pressures are taking priority, so
engagement is not perfect, but we are building
on work already done, and looking to April-June
to share our draft clinical strategy.

Our 26/7 delivery plan is agreed, and this fits
the emergency clinical strategic direction



Discussion and feedback

¥6

L] caring_Tone team Ll




Agenda ltem 9
BCP

HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE Council

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Report subject

Adult Social Care Fulfilled Lives Transformation Programme

Meeting date

02 March 2026

Status Public
Executive In July 2024, BCP Cabinet and Full Council agree to support a four-
summary year transformation programme called Fulfilled Lives, approving a total

investment of £2.9m spanning the first three years.
The programme is made up of four inter-dependent projects:
e How We Work
e Short-Term Support
e Self-Directed Support
e Support At Home

The programme entered its delivery phase in January 2025 and
progress reports were presented to Committee in January, March, July
and September.

This report provides a further update for the programme overall to
reflect the achievements to date, the current challenges, and the next
steps to be taken over the following six months.

Recommendations

It is RECOMMENDED that Committee:

1. Notes the current work-in-progress with the Adult Social Care
Fulfilled Lives Programme

Reason for
recommendations

Delivery of the Fulfilled Lives programme will improve outcomes for
adults and their families within the BCP Council area through enhanced
person-centred practice, and the provision of effective and efficient
support solutions. It will ensure that the Council continues to meet its
statutory duties, despite ongoing demand pressures and economic
uncertainty, leading to recurrent annual savings of ¢.£3.5m by the end
of the programme.

Portfolio Holder(s):

Councillor David Brown — Health and Wellbeing

Page 1 of 10

95




Corporate Director /
Directors

Laura Ambler, Corporate Director for Wellbeing
Betty Butlin, Director of Adult Social Care (DASS)
Zena Dighton, Interim Director of Adult Social Care Commissioning

Report Authors

Tim Branson, Transformation Lead for Fulfilled Lives Programme
Harry Ovnik, Programme Manager for Wellbeing

Wards

Council-wide

Classification

For Recommendation

Background

1. In July 2024, BCP Cabinet and Full Council approved the business case for an adult
social care ‘Fulfilled Lives’ transformation programme which will address the risk to its
ability to fulfil statutory responsibilities and maintain a balanced budget in the face of
continually rising demographic and economic pressures.

2. This business case outlined the opportunities available to deliver true transformation and
innovation within adult social care, whilst creating sustainable change to support future
demand, and achieve financial and service quality benefits.

3. Total investment of £2.9m to support the Fulfilled Lives programme was agreed by
Cabinet and Full Council in July 2024, with an initial investment of £1.79m to establish
the programme and its governance structure, recruit to the project teams, complete the
scoping, initiation and approve business cases for each project.

4. The programme moved into Delivery Phase from January 2025 with regular reporting
to the Health and Adult Social Care Overview & Scrutiny Committee and received
approval of a further £1.11m to support its progress in July 2025.

5. The programme remains within budget with service quality improvements continuing
to be achieved as planned, although some challenges have more recently impacted
the timeline for the realisation of specific financial benefits, further details of which are
outlined later in this paper.

Strategic case for change
6. The Fulfilled Lives Programme aligns with the Adult Social Care Strategy 2025-28
and our co-produced vision “Supporting people to achieve a fulfilled life, in the way
that they choose, and in a place where they feel safe”.

Summary of programme progress

7. The Fulfilled Lives Programme has four inter-dependent projects, as follows:

e How We Work —to implement the Three Conversations approach,
embedding strengths and relational-based practice to connect and support

Page 2 of 10

96



https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/Assets/About-the-council/Adult-Social-Care-strategy-2025-28.pdf

residents, focusing on prevention. A second key workstream has a focus on
making improvements to our First Response function.

e Self-Directed Support —ensuring more people are in control of their
support by developing more community-based options via direct payments
or Individual Service Funds, reducing the need for more traditional ‘off the
shelf services at higher cost.

e Short-Term Support — improving access to reablement services directly
from the community, ensuring that people can appropriately maximise their
safety, wellbeing and independence, and reduce their need for long-term
services.

e Support At Home — developing and implementing a new Support At Home
provision, enabling people to keep well and remain in their own home,
reducing the need for residential care home admission.

How We Work

8. All operational teams with responsibility for assessment and arranging care
services for people under the Care Act 2014 are now following Three
Conversations (3Cs) principles. The Hospital Social Work Teams located within
Royal Bournemouth and Poole General Hospitals were the final teams to launch in
January 2026, marking the completion of the 3Cs implementation phase.

9. This is a significant milestone which has required lengthy and intensive work to
develop our Mosaic IT system, creating new workflows for certain teams and
streamlining processes for all to enable more proportionate record-keeping and
maximise practitioner time for face-to-face contact. This has been an iterative
process, taking account of user acceptance testing and practitioner feedback
throughout.

10. Recognising the large scale cultural and mindset shift that we required from our
practitioners, we have now moved into the embedding phase of Three
Conversations where a period of quality audits will be undertaken to identify
practice areas where teams require further support and ensure that the changes
we have made are sustained for the long-term.

11. We continue to receive positive feedback from people who have experienced a
Three Conversations approach. Please see Appendix One for an example.

12. The changes to our First Response function are progressing and remain on target.
The second of our three Long-Term Conditions (LTC) teams transferred a group
practitioners in late January to the ASC Hub, with the final team’s group due to
transfer at the end of February. This enhances the ASC Hub’s ability to respond
more quickly and resolve more requests without the need for LTC Team
involvement.

13. We have already seen a positive impact, with the percentage of requests resolved
at the ASC Hub steadily increasing from 39.4% to 55.2% between January and

Page 3 of 10

97



December 2025. We can reasonably expect further improvement as the final
stages of staff transfers complete and bed in.

14. There has also been a positive impact on the numbers of new requests for support
that result in a person receiving long-term services. When we compare the 12-
month baseline period prior to the start of the Fulfilled Lives Programme with the
following 12-months, the conversion rate of new requests for support to long-term
services fell from 12% to 10%.

15. Our most significant challenge currently, however, is the ability to provide data to
accurately show the financial impact of this lower conversion rate. This is due to a
lack of integration between the Mosaic case management system and the finance
modules.

16. The solution to address this issue is to create a new data lake that will combine the
relevant data to allow accurate financial impact reporting. Data and analytics
colleagues are actively engaged in this process which is highly complex and
involves an extremely large volume of data. This requires a significant amount of
testing, however, once complete, it will provide the ability to demonstrate financial
impact to a much greater level of detail and accuracy. This work is being given the
highest priority with frequent updates to the How We Work Project Board and
Fulfilled Lives Programme Board.

17. Since the launch of the ASC Hub in October, it has been easier for people to
directly contact the team or practitioner that has been assigned to them, avoiding
the need to call via the ASC Hub. This has reduced the number of unnecessary
calls, allowing an improved response rate for the calls where the hub can
genuinely add value.

18. In November 2603 calls were received with 66% answered; December saw 2265
calls (81% answered), and January had 1488 calls (80% answered).

19. A trial of a new way of handling safeguarding concerns received into the ASC Hub
has showed positive results with a reduction in the number of unnecessary
handoffs to the Safeguarding Adults First Response team. Before the trial, 98% of
contacts to the Hub were passed to SAFR on average over seven months. Since
the trial began, the average over six months has reduced to 61.8%. This helps the
SAFR team to focus the time on those referrals that need more detailed
examination.

20. Phase three of our First Response improvements has now started, focusing on
further skills development, back-office process harmonisation, website information,
the use of e-forms for safeguarding and Mental Health Act requests, and
leveraging systems capacity to further improve data capture and reporting
functionality.

Self-Directed Support

21. Work has commenced on developing recommendations for improving the use and
uptake of direct payments as an alternative to traditional commissioned services,

Page 4 of 10

98



allowing individuals greater choice over the design and delivery of support which
supports more tailored, and often more cost-effective, solutions.

22. Linked to this, is work to expand the options for people for whom a direct payment
might not be the most appropriate solution, but where more bespoke alternatives to
commissioned services is still preferred. The use of Individual Service Funds
(ISFs) is a proven way to support this and represents a significant change in the
way that service providers work with individuals to additionally help them to utilise
their personal budget.

23. Workto develop our provider market to prepare for ISFs is progressing with one
provider now actively working to transfer appropriate packages to ISFs. Further
work is happening to engage the broader market to increase numbers of packages
to meet anticipated savings, but it is expected that we will fall short of the
2025/26 target of £78k by £23K. Work is also continuing to raise awareness
of ISFs and further training will build momentum in the transition of providers to
becoming an ISF provider.

24. The development of Community Micro-Enterprises (CMES) has continued to grow
with six providers having completed the accreditation process, and another 17
currently going through the development programme. We anticipate reaching our
first-year target of 23 CMEs by the end of March, significantly expanding options
for people to access tailored day opportunities.

Short-Term Support

25. The dedicated community reablement service pilot launched in mid-September and
reached its 180 hours per week maximum capacity as planned by the end of
December.

26. Flow through the service is closely monitored with weekly meetings where each
person’s progress towards their reablement goals is tracked.

27. Early results for the 33 people who completed reablement in the first three months
of the pilot showed that:

e 13 people regained full independence

e 14 people required long-term care

e 1 person needed residential care

e 5 people became unwell and needed hospital admission
28. Of the 14 people who needed long-term care:

e Five people (36%) needed fewer hours of support than they did at the
start of their reablement

e Six people (43%) needed the same level of support

e Three people (21%) needed more support

29. Practitioner guidance has been produced to ensure that the most appropriate
candidates for reablement are referred for support.

Page 5 of 10

99



30. Further promotion of the Pilot will continue, with examples of the positive impact
the service has had for individuals as well as the wider health and care system.
Next steps will be planning for evaluation of the service to understand what we
need to procure in the future.

31. Tricuro is finalising the collation of comprehensive data that will track all service
activity over time and identify key information influencing the achievement of
KPIs.

32. The Reablement App, supplied via the FutureCare Transformation project has
launched, enabling the logging of reablement goals and oversight of “real time”
goal tracking and progress. This helps to ensure that the reablement hours
supplied by Tricuro are utilised to maximum efficiency and effectiveness.

Care and Support at Home

33. The Care and Support at Home Strategic Plan! has now been fully developed
and has successfully progressed through the governance process, receiving
approval from all members of the Adult Social Care Senior Management Team
(ASC SMT). This plan sets out a clear long-term vision for how home-based care
and support will be commissioned, delivered, and monitored across the locality. It
provides a structured framework for achieving person-centred, outcome-focused
services that support adults to live independently in their own homes for as long
as possible.

34. Alongside the strategic plan, an initial draft of the supporting Strategic Action
Plan has been produced. This action plan translates strategic intent into a
detailed programme of activities, milestones, and accountable leads, ensuring
that implementation is well-sequenced and measurable.

35. A new combined Care and Support at Home Framework has been developed
and formally approved, marking a significant step forward in standardising and

strengthening the commissioning of home-care services for adults aged eighteen
and above. The framework also includes a waking-night assessment service.

36. To ensure that individuals with more complex, high-need, or specialist conditions
receive tailored and expert provision, specialistand complex care will be
commissioned separately through a dedicated Disabilities Framework.

37. The Care and Support at Home procurement process is due to commence by 1
March 2026.

38. The Care and Support at Home tender will be open to receive bids for a six-week
period from the date of publication, with the tender evaluations scheduled for
April 2026. The implementation of the new combined Care and Support at Home
Framework remains on schedule, with a planned go-live date of October 2026.

1 Available at: Home Care and Support Strategic Plan | BCP

Page 6 of 10

100


https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/adult-social-care-and-health/information-for-professionals-working-in-adult-social-care/home-care-and-support-strategic-plan

39. Minimum Criteria for Care and Support at Home providers will include:

e The requirement to have a local office registered within the BCP conurbation
or no further than 10 miles from BCP; and

e Providers who submit a tender must be rated as Good or Outstanding by the
Care Quality Commission.

Summary of legal implications

40. Statutory roles are required to be held by the Council, including a Director of Adult
Social Services (DASS) and a Principal Social Worker (PSW).

41. The Council is required by law to provide and hold direct accountability for the
effectiveness, availability and value for money of Adult Social Care services. The
statutory functions are set out in legislation, including the Care Act 2014.

42. Para 1.1 of the Care Act 2014 Statutory Guidance states “The core purpose of
adult care and support is to help people to achieve the outcomes that matter to
them in their life”.

43. In particular, the Care Act 2014 imposes a general duty to promote the wellbeing of
individuals when carrying out their care and support functions, and to safeguard
adults with care and support needs from experiencing or being at risk of abuse or
neglect. At the same time, the Act requires that care and support is tailored to a
person’s individual needs and preferences, and local authorities are encouraged to
support individuals in making their own choices and taking risks that are part of
everyday life. This approach aims to empower individuals and enhance their
independence and quality of life.

44. Local authorities also have statutory responsibilities regarding market shaping to
create a responsive and stable care market that can adapt to the needs of the local
population. This includes ensuring a diverse, sustainable, and high-quality market
for adult care and support services. The Care Act stresses the importance of giving
individuals and their carers choice and control over how their needs are met. This
includes stimulating a range of care and support services to meet diverse needs.

45. The quality of Adult Social Care services is inspected by the Care Quality
Commission (CQC) against a quality assurance framework.

46. The recommendations of the Fulfilled Lives Programme business case will improve
the Council’'s ability to discharge all these duties more effectively.

Summary of financial implications

47. The total investment over a 3-year period is £2.9m to achieve recurring savings of
approx. £3.5m. Whilst there has been some in-year delays within certain elements
of the programme delivery, we are confident the combined impact of all projects
will achieve the projected savings by the time the programme concludes.

Page 7 of 10

101


https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/23/contents

48. The savings attributed to the Fulfilled Lives programme are in addition to those that
have been identified via the FutureCare programme, which focuses on Urgent and
Emergency Care in the acute hospitals across Dorset. W hilst both programmes of
work have dependencies and will naturally complement each other, they will seek
to achieve separate savings.

Summary of human resources implications

49. Human Resources processes will be followed, as required, during recruitment
around resources for delivery.

50. Trials of different ways of working could result in minor reorganisation of existing
Adult Social Care team structures. Where this is the case, the corporate change
process and policies will be applied, including the appropriate level of employee
consultation, with support from the assigned HR Business Partner.

Summary of sustainability impact

51. There are no sustainability implications within this report.

Summary of public health implications

52. Relationships with Public Health partners will be enhanced and improved with
transformed ways of operating Adult Social Care services, particularly linked to
prevention and population health management.

Summary of equality implications

53. Full EIA documentation will be completed and reviewed at Panel (as required)
during implementation of transformation plans e.g., policy change or development,
service change or development.

54. The Adult Social Care strategic approach to Equality, Diversity and Inclusion aims
to support transformation work with improved data and workforce support.

Summary of risk assessment

55. It has already been acknowledged in earlier reports and the preceding business
case that, by doing nothing, the Council is holding significant risk, against a
backdrop of continually rising demographic and economic pressures, in its ability to
fulfil its statutory responsibilities towards adults and their families within the
available budget. These risks are mitigated by the Fulfilled Lives Business Case
and Transformation Programme.

56. Programme risks have been identified and mitigations put in place, with robust
monitoring, an established formal governance structure and clear escalation
processes for each workstream. There is regular reporting to the Corporate

Page 8 of 10

102



Management Board and scrutiny by the Health and Adult Social Care Overview
and Scrutiny Committee.

Recommendations
57. It is recommended that Cabinet:

a) Notes the current work-in-progress with the Adult Social Care Fulfilled Lives
Programme and specifically the updates for the Self-Directed Support and
Short-Term Support projects.

Background Papers

58. Cabinet 17 July 2024 — Adult Social Care Transformation Business Case
59. Cabinet 17 July 2024 — Adult Social Care Transformation Delivery Plan

Page 9 of 10

103


https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s51422/Adult%20Social%20Care%20Transformation%20Business%20Case%20Report%20July.pdf
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s50989/Appendix%201%20for%20Adult%20Social%20Care%20Transformation%20Business%20Case%20-%20pdf.pdf

Appendix One

Story of Difference (please note that personally identifiable details have been
changed to maintain confidentiality)

Mrs M is a carer for her adult son with disabilities. She is dyslexic and her former
experience of adult social care had not been as positive as she would have liked, leaving
her fearful of how subsequent contacts would go. She recently received a visit from a social
worker, Simon, working in a team that has adopted the Three Conversations approach.
Simon’s visit was primarily focused on Mrs M’'s own needs as a carer.

The following comments were collected as part of our routine for seeking feedback.
Comments are typically collected in a variety of ways, and on this occasion was through a
telephone call from one of our policy officers.

Asked about the difference in experience following her visit from Simon, Mrs M commented

‘Previously | went into very deep crisis, and no-one helped me. | read about
the 3 conversations style and thought | would see how it goes — I thought it
was excellent [because] it allows me to say what | needed to say.
Previously the form didn't encourage the social worker to record what was
important to me.’

‘The council weren't listening as you were focused on what the form
needed. For example, | have dyslexia but was told the forms don't work that
way. Ilove the 3Cs style — | think it's fantastic. I'm now at the centre, not
the IT system. | really felt the carers assessment was about me, not the IT
system. Before, | didn't have the assurance that what | had said was
recorded. It is for me to decide what | want to talk about - and that is
brilliant.’

When Mrs M was asked what impact she felt from the Three Conversations approach, she
said

‘I feel | have peace of mind about the future. I'm not scared anymore, |

now feel confident for my son’s review because of the 3 Conversations

style and Simon’s work with me. How we are treated on the day carries

over into the rest of our lives and how we feel about any future dealing

with the council. It's important to remember that - it can create a lot of

worry’.

Page 10 of 10

104



Agenda Item 10

HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE BCP
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE Council

Report subject Work Plan
Meeting date 2 March 2026
Status Public Report

Executive summary The Overview and Scrutiny (O&S) Committee is asked to consider
and identify work priorities for publication in a Work Plan.

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that:

the Overview and Scrutiny Committee review, update and
confirm the Work Plan.

Reason for The Council’'s Constitution requires all Overview and Scrutiny
recommendations Committees to set out proposed work in a Work Plan which will be
published with each agenda.

Portfolio Holder(s): N/A — Overview and Scrutiny is a non-executive function
Corporate Director Aidan Dunn, Chief Executive

Report Authors Lindsay Marshall, Overview and Scrutiny Specialist
Wards Council-wide

Classification For Decision

Work Plan updates

1. This report provides the latest version of the Committee’s Work Plan at Appendix A
and guidance on how to populate and review the Work Plan in line with the Council’s
Constitution. For the purposes of this report, all references to Overview and Scrutiny
Committees shall also apply to the Overview and Scrutiny Board unless otherwise
stated.

2. Items added to the Work Plan since the last publication are highlighted as ‘NEW’.
Councillors are asked to consider and confirm the latest Work Plan.

3. The mostrecent Cabinet Forward Plan can be viewed on the council’s website. This
link is included in each O&S Work Plan report for councillors to view and refer to
when considering whether any items of pre-decision scrutiny will join the O&S
Committee Work Plan.

105


https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=285&RD=0

Resources to support O&S Work

4.

The Constitution requires that O&S committees take account of the resources
available to support proposals for O&S work. Advice on maximising the resource
available to O&S Committees is set out in the O&S Work Planning Guidance
document referenced below.

Work programming guidance and tools

5.

10.

The Overview and Scrutiny Committees Terms of Reference document provides
detail on the principles of scrutiny at BCP Council, the membership, functions and
remit of each O&S committee and the variety of working methods available.

The O&S Work Planning Guidance document provides detail on all aspects of work
planning including how to determine requests for scrutiny in line with the Council’s
constitution.

The O&S Framework for scrutiny topic selection was drawn up by O&S councillors in
conjunction with the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny. The framework provides
detail on the criteria for proactive, reactive and pre-decision scrutiny topics, and
guidance on how these can be selected to contribute to value-added scrutiny
outcomes.

The ‘Request for consideration of an issue by Overview and Scrutiny’ form is an
example form to be used by councillors and residents when making a new
suggestion for a scrutiny topic. Word copies of the form are available from
Democratic Services upon request by using the contact details on this agenda.

Performance information: progress against the council’s Corporate Strategy can be
viewed on the council’s Performance Dashboard. The dashboard includes ratings to
show where the council is on target, areas for monitoring or where action is required,
and explanations. The dashboard includes measures relevant to all 0&S
committees and is provided to assist committees in their horizon scanning and work
selection process.

Data Toolkit: The Health & Adult Social Care O&S Committee has developed a Data
Toolkit to assist with the inclusion of data into its work. Resources included in the
Data Toolkit can also be used as horizon scanning tools to help the committee to
understand where it can impactfully target its work. Data Toolkit.

NOTE —the data toolkit needs updating so please consider that if using it for
research. The Committee may wish to consider if it wishes to prioritise the
updating of the toolkit.

Options Appraisal

11.

12.

The O&S Committee is asked to review, update and confirm its Work Plan, taking
account of the supporting documents provided and including the determination of
any new requests for scrutiny. This will ensure member ownership of the Work Plan
and that reports can be prepared in a timely way.

If updates to the Work Plan are not confirmed there may be an impact on timeliness
of reports and other scrutiny activity.

Summary of financial implications

13. There are no financial implications arising from this report.

Summary of legal implications

14. There are no legal implications arising from this report. The Council’s Constitution

requires that all O&S bodies set out proposed work in a Work Plan which will be

106


https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s56604/Appendix%20A%20-%20terms%20of%20ref%2028.09.23%20update.pdf
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s57333/Appendix%20B%20for%20Work%20Plan.pdf
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s56608/Appendix%20E%20-%20OS%20framework%20latest.pdf
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s56606/Appendix%20C%20-%20Request%20for%20consideration%20of%20an%20issue%20by%20OS.pdf
The%20introduction%20of%20new%20mechanisms%20to%20assess%20and%20monitor%20the%20value%20of%20O&S%20work%20are%20planned,%20including:
https://acrobat.adobe.com/id/urn:aaid:sc:eu:5fad70b6-f79e-4f61-a2fc-53c7e356485a

published with each agenda. The recommendation proposed in this report will fulfil
this requirement.

Summary of human resources implications

15. There are no human resources implications arising from this report.

Summary of sustainability impact

16. There are no sustainability resources implications arising from this report.

Summary of public health implications

17. There are no public health implications arising from this report.

Summary of equality implications

18. There are no equality implications arising from this report. Any councillor and any
member of the public may make suggestions for overview and scrutiny work.
Further detail on this process is included within O&S Procedure Rules at Part 4 of
the Council’s Constitution.

Summary of risk assessment

19. There is a risk of challenge to the Council if the Constitutional requirement to
establish and publish a Work Plan is not met.

Background papers

e Overview and Scrutiny Committees Terms of Reference

e 0O&S Work Planning Guidance document

o O&S Framework for scrutiny topic selection

¢ ‘Request for consideration of an issue by Overview and Scrutiny’

Further detail on these background papers is contained within the body of this report.

Appendices
Appendix A - Current O&S Work Plan

107


https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s56604/Appendix%20A%20-%20terms%20of%20ref%2028.09.23%20update.pdf
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s57333/Appendix%20B%20for%20Work%20Plan.pdf
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s56608/Appendix%20E%20-%20OS%20framework%20latest.pdf
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s56606/Appendix%20C%20-%20Request%20for%20consideration%20of%20an%20issue%20by%20OS.pdf

This page is intentionally left blank

108



60T

BCP Council Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee —Work Plan. Updated 17
February 2026

Guidance notes:

e 2/3items per committee meeting is the recommended maximum for effective scrutiny.
e The HASC 0O&S Committee will approach work through a lens of EQUALITY OF ACCESS TO PERSON CENTRED
INTEGRATED CARE.

e ltems requiring further scoping are identified and should be scoped using the Key Lines of Enquiry tool.

Subject and background How will the scrutiny Lead Officer/Portfolio Report Information
be done? Holder
Meeting Date: 2 March 2026
Clinical Services Strategyfor . . .
UHD. Up to 10 years forward look. Presentation Richard Renaut, Chief _ Agre_e_d as one of the top
Strategy and Transformation priorities from work
Received from UHD Officer, UHD planning in Autumn 2024
B B NEW Committee Report Robin Vickers, Programme Agreed at Committee on
Director - FutureCare 1 December to come
Programme and Betty Butlin, back with further
Director of Adult Social Care information
!T\luEI:‘/:/I,Ied SIES PO T Jpe s Committee Report Betty Butlin, Director of Adult Agreed to come to O&S
Social Care for regular updates
30 March Informal Briefing —Topic TBC

Key: Pre-Decision Scrutriny Pro-active Scrutiny Reactive Scrutiny


https://bcpcouncil-my.sharepoint.com/:w:/g/personal/lindsay_marshall_bcpcouncil_gov_uk/EVkFsZYjvIZAjjeoXi_NaIYB6TY56HhDcohrt47lm5SinQ?e=rdyyeD

oTT

Subject and background

How will the scrutiny
be done?

Lead Officer/Portfolio
Holder

Report Information

Meeting Date: 19 May 2026

CQC Inspection update ‘NEW’

Committee Report and
presentation

Betty Butlin, Director of Adult
Social Care

Agreed at Committee on
1 December

FutureCare Programme completion
report? TBC

Committee Report and
presentation

8 June Informal Briefing—Topic TBC

Meeting Date: 20 July 2026

ASC Learning Disability Strategy

Committee Report

Kathryn Hay

Added by Officers and
Chair agreement in
January 2026 prior to
consideration at Cabinet

17 August Informal Briefing —Topic TBC

Meeting Date: 22 September 2026

2 November Informal Briefing — Topic TBC

Key: Pre-Decision Scrutriny

Pro-active Scrutiny

Reactive Scrutiny




TT1

Subject and background

How will the scrutiny
be done?

Lead Officer/Portfolio
Holder

Report Information

Meeting Date: 30 November 2026

Safeguarding Adults Board
Annual Report

Committee Report

Comes to Committee
every Autumn for
consideration

Adult Social Care Complaints and
Quality assurance annual report

Committee Report

Comes to Committee
every Autumn for
consideration

25 January 2027 Informal Briefing — Topic TBC

Meeting Date: 1 March 2027

Top 5 priorities chosen by the Committee in annual work programming in 2024.

Adult Social Care Transformation
1. programme (Fulfilled Lives)

Received from ASC

TBC

Laura Ambler, Corporate
Director for Wellbeing

Subject to approval by
Cabinet and Council this
would provide ongoing
opportunities for
proactive scrutiny over
the next 3-5 years.

Community Mental health services
2. transformation, including the new
Access to Wellbeing Hubs and

Presentation

Rachel Small, Interim Chief
Operating Officer, Dorset
Healthcare UHD

Large service change —
would be good to have
overview of the changes,

Key: Pre-Decision Scrutriny

Pro-active Scrutiny

Reactive Scrutiny




AN

Subject and background

How will the scrutiny
be done?

Lead Officer/Portfolio
Holder

Report Information

change to community mental health
teams

Received from Public Health

and then a timeline on
scrutiny as to whether
the new model will be
positive for service
users.

Received in May 25

Clinical Services Strategy for UHD.

Long term strategic

Received from NHS Dorset

TBC Richard Renaut, Chief .
3. Up to 10 years forward look. Strategy and Transformation thinking.
. Officer, UHD Coming to Committee in
Received from UHD March 2026
A Stz sl lonuiliesel e TBC Matthew Bryant and Forbes This is a significant
. Received from NHS Dorset Watson, NHS Dorset change to the NHS
delivery model in line
with the national Fuller
review
recommendations.
Received in Dec 25
5 End of life services TBC Dean Spencer, NHS Dorset These services will

impact on residents of
the local authority. The
aim of the new service
model is to enable those
who wish to die at home.

Received in Dec 25

ltems with Dates to be allocated

Key: Pre-Decision Scrutriny

Pro-active Scrutiny

Reactive Scrutiny




€Tt

Subject and background

How will the scrutiny
be done?

Lead Officer/Portfolio
Holder

Report Information

All ages neurodiversity review

Received from NHS Dorset

This is an ICB priority.
Waits for children and
young people and adults
for these services are
very long, often leading
to incomplete EHCPs.

Acute services changes in line with
the Clinical Services Review (CSR),
Changes approved following Judicial
Review and Secretary of State
Review, but implantation would be
aided by scrutiny.

Received from UHD

Six monthly updates —
key changes April 2025
BEACH building
(including maternity);
winter 2025/6 for
separation of emergency
and elective services;

The impact of domestic wood
burning on air quality and public
health across BCP

Received from Clir Canavan

The impact of domestic
wood burning on air
quality and public health
across BCP (particularly
during winter).

Monitor the proposed increase of
block booked beds for long-term
care and that an update on progress
against this be provided at an
appropriate time.

Request from O&S Board

To update the
Committee on progress
re increasing the
provision of block
booked beds.

Added following meeting
of 3 March 202.

Key:

Pre-Decision Scrutriny

Pro-active Scrutiny

Reactive Scrutiny




Vi1

Subject and background

How will the scrutiny
be done?

Lead Officer/Portfolio
Holder

Report Information

The Transformation of UHD
Hospitals

Richard Renaut, Chief
Strategy and Transformation
Officer, UHD

To receive an update at
an appropriate time
following meeting of 3
March 2025.

Benefits of the separation of the
Public Health function

Rob Carroll, Director of Public
Health and Communities

To provide the
Committee with an
update on the benefits of
the separation.

Added on 24 September
2024,

Access Wellbeing — Transforming
Dorset Community Mental Health
Services ‘NEW’

Rachel Small, Interim Chief
Operating Officer, Dorset
Healthcare UHD

To receive future KPIs
regarding the impact of
the new model at an
appropriate time.

Added at Committee on

connected risks linked to the use

of unregistered health and social

19 May 2025.
The impact of the UK TBA TBC Added at Committee on
government’'s proposed £5bn 19 May 2025 following
cuts to disability and sickness consideration of scrutiny
benefits on BCP Council request from Clir
residents, particularly those Salmon.
reliant on Personal Independence
Payments (PIP) and Universal
Credit. ‘NEW’
Examine the scale of and TBA TBC Added at Committee on

19 May 2025 following
consideration of scrutiny

Pre-Decision Scrutriny

Pro-active Scrutiny

Reactive Scrutiny




GT1

Subject and background

How will the scrutiny
be done?

Lead Officer/Portfolio
Holder

Report Information

care providers by BCP Council,
with a specific focus on Lifeways
and similar providers ‘NEW’

request from ClIr
Salmon.

The importance of Arts & Culture

Added at Committee on

in Wellbeing ‘NEW’ LLE LIS 19 May 2025 following
consideration of scrutiny
request from ClIr
Canavan.

Health and Social Care for the Agreed at Committee on

Homeless ‘NEW’ TBC TBC 1 December

Get Dorset & BCP working ‘NEW’ Committee Report TBC To continue to monitor —

added by the Chair by
email on 1 October 2025

Recurring

ltems (Annual Reports)

Safeguarding Adults Board
Annual Report

To inform members of the work
programme review for 2024/25 for
members to scrutinise and make any
recommendations for future work.

Received from ASC

To receive an annual
report every Autumn.

Part of statutory
reporting cycle to be
received in Autumn
annually.

Adult Social Care Complaints and
Quality assurance annual report

Received from ASC

To receive an annual
report every Autumn.

Working Groups

None currently scheduled

Key:

Pre-Decision Scrutriny

Pro-active Scrutiny

Reactive Scrutiny




oT1

Subject and background

How will the scrutiny
be done?

Lead Officer/Portfolio
Holder

Report Information

Information only items and ltem suggestions for B

riefing Sessions.

Tricuro: Strategic Business Plan - 6
monthly progress against delivery
plan.

Received from ASC

TBC

TBC

Requested by
Committee members
(March 2025/September
2025)

Approach to public mental health
and suicide prevention that is being
agreed via the new MH and LD/
Autism delivery board

Received from Public Health

Date tbc.

Delayed from Dec. 2024
by public health
dissemination work.

New Hospitals Programme —
Reconfiguration of University
Hospitals Dorset

Received from NHS Dorset

Transition into the new
building will happen from
March 2025. It is
important the committee
is fully appraised of
these changes to the
service delivery model
and location as agreed in
the clinical service
review.

Electronic Health Record for Dorset
and Somerset system.

Received from UHD

Major change to service,
and large system wide
investment.

Timetable subjectto
approvals process,
running 2024-2027.

Key:

Pre-Decision Scrutriny

Pro-active Scrutiny

Reactive Scrutiny




LTT

. How will the scrutiny Lead Officer/Portfolio .
Subject and background be done? Holder Report Information
Maternity Services High profile service.
Public awareness and
Received from UHD confidence in services
Regular item (?6 or 12
months)
Info only item: Adult Social Care . Previously received Dec
Waiting Times i @il)7 1158 SRl (BT 2024 and agreed for 12
monthly update
reporting.
Key: Pre-Decision Scrutriny Pro-active Scrutiny Reactive Scrutiny




This page is intentionally left blank

118



Agenda ltem 12

CABINET BCP

Council

Report subject Corporate Performance Report - Q2
Meeting date 17 December 2025
Status [Public / Exempt] Report

Executive summary BCP Council adopted ‘A shared vision for Bournemouth,
Christchurch and Poole 2024-28’ in May 2024.

The shared vision is the corporate strategy which sets out the
council’s vision, priorities and ambitions as well as the principles
which underpin the way the council works as it develops and
delivers its services.

Incorporated in the vision is a set of measures of progress for
achieving the vision, priorities and ambitions.

This is the performance monitoring report for Quarter Two 25-26,
presenting an update on the progress measures.

The council’s delivery against its priorities and ambitions can also
be monitored through the performance dashboard which is
available on the council’'s website providing up-to-date real time
information on the progress measures.

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that Cabinet:

a) Consider the Quarter Two performance

(b) Note that work continues to expand the data available
on the interactive performance dashboard

(c) Note the positive activities highlighted in the report

Reason for Our shared vision for Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole sets
recommendations out the priorities and ambitions against which the council’s
performance will be judged, and as suchis a vital component of the
council’s performance management framework.

An understanding of performance against targets, goals and
objectives helps the council to assess and manage service delivery
and identify emerging business risks

119


https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/about-the-council/corporate-strategy
https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/about-the-council/corporate-strategy
https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/about-the-council/corporate-strategy
https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/about-the-council/corporate-strategy

Portfolio Holder(s):

Councillor Millie Earl, Leader of the Council

Corporate Director

Aidan Dunn, Chief Executive

Service Director

Isla Reynolds, Director of Marketing, Communications and Policy

Report Authors Chris Shephard, Head of Policy. Strategy and Partnerships
Liz Orme, Policy & Strategy Officer
Pippa Quinton, Policy Apprentice
Performance leads across the council
Wards Council-wide
Classification For Information
Background
1. BCP Council adopted ‘A shared vision for Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole

2024-28' in May 2024 which was developed following a process of stakeholder
engagement from June to October 2023.

The vision includes a comprehensive set of progress measures that track
performance against the ambitions and focus areas of activity.

Since the vision was adopted, work has been carried out to establish and evolve
baseline data, targets and intervention levels for the progress measures.

A performance dashboard has been created which we have been using successfully
to support the monitoring of our progress towards the council’s vision, using
technology to enhance transparency and support data-driven decisions. This
dashboard is updated by performance officers across the council, providing real-time
information as it'’s available and is accessible on the council's website. The
dashboard continues to be updated and evolved.

The Corporate Strategy Delivery Board meeting allows officers to meet monthly to
monitor delivery of the council’s vision at a strategic level. This also allows the board
to conduct delivery deep dives and risk reviews, allowing for areas of concern to be
addressed in a timely manner and best practice can be celebrated and shared. The
board also allows the Council to prioritise key areas of activity.

An interactive performance dashboard to monitor performance

6.

A live and interactive performance dashboard is available alongside quarterly
reports, providing a real-time tracking tool that effectively addresses Cabinet's
previous concerns regarding the timeliness of the reports. This is because quarterly
performance reports are static snapshots of performance, often two to three months
out of date by the time they reach Cabinet.

The performance dashboard supports the council’s approach towards data-driven
decision-making and continuous improvement in organisational performance.

120



https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiZmU4NTBlOGYtYmQ1Yi00NGQxLTkwNWEtYzg5NjllYWMxMTQ5IiwidCI6ImM5NDYzMzEzLTM1ZTEtNDBlNC05NDRhLWRkNzk4ZWM5ZTQ4OCJ9

8. Furthermore, transparency and accountability is enhanced through the public-facing
live performance dashboard, accessible at all times by residents, councillors and
officers.

6. The dashboard's purpose is to maintain a strategic perspective of overall council
performance, and it is reviewed regularly with directors to ensure the best data is provided.
Cabinet also has the flexibility to introduce additional measures if necessary for more detailed
performance monitoring.

7. The dashboard is developing in phases, with further plans to enhance data availability, links
to other dashboards and data sources and provide various lenses to view the data eventually
replacing the need for a paginated performance report.

8. The dashboard was reviewed for accessibility and usability and changes to the design and
content are being made as a result.

9. Links have been made to a sustainability dashboard demonstrating further information on the
council’s advancements towards achieving our net zero targets.

10. Subsequent phases will include:

a. Progress on strategic programmes of work,

b. Analysis of the latest data regarding the health of the people and places within the
BCP area,

c. Sharing an overview of corporate risks.

Summary of Quarter Two Performance

11. Quarter Two data shows some significant changes in performance (Figure 1) explained by
most annual and bi-annual measures being moved to pending (grey). The percentage of
measures that are on target (green) has moved from 58% in Quarter One to 35% in Quarter
Two. The percentage of pending measures has increased from 4% in Quarter One to 28% in
Quarter Two. These measures are now showing as pending (grey) because data is not yet
available so there is no data to report in this quarter. Where performance is being monitored
(amber), the percentage has moved from 36% in Quarter One to 31% in Quarter Two. The
percentage of those measures requiring action (red) has moved from 2% in Quarter One to
6% in Quarter Two.

Figure 1: Quarter Two Performance Summary

28%  35%

7

31%

12. Appendix A has more detail for each measure including the latest performance compared to
the target and the baseline, and an updated commentary.

121


https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/environment/sustainability-and-carbon-reduction/our-climate-actions-and-achievements-so-far
https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/environment/sustainability-and-carbon-reduction/our-climate-actions-and-achievements-so-far

13. The direction of travel for each measure is also provided in Appendix A. This shows whether
performance is improving, declining or remains the same level compared to the previous
update. For Quarter Two, there are fewer measures showing a positive direction of travel
compared to Quarter One with 20 measures showing a positive direction of travel (20
compared to 27), 7 fewer measures showing a negative direction (13 compared to 20), and 2
more measures have stayed the same (6 compared to 4).

14. It is important to note the excellent performance in the following measures:

The number of available Council and public Electric Vehicle (EV) chargers has
increased to 265 in the latest Government figures.

We are seeing a strong increase the number of Fixed Penalty Notices (FPNs) served
for fly tipping and littering offences with 1428 issued including 8 PSPO offences, 17
for fly-tipping, 3 for waste duty of care and 1400 for litter. This is up on last quarter
(760) and up on target (840).

Footfall across the 3 town centres is up, 22.54m from 21.74m last quarter and over
target (20m).

We are improving from 95% to 96% the timeliness of assessments to determine the
child's needs is conducive with offering the right service at the right time to children,
young people and their families. This is consistently high performing (8 consecutive
quarters), higher than the national benchmark (85%) and comparator authorities.

There has been a strong reduction in the number of secondary school aged children
excluded from school with 7 permanent exclusions (0.067%), from 35 (0.137%) in the
spring term.

There is a marked reduction in the percentage of children and young people returning
to early help within 12 months from 13% to 10%.

number of current council employees supported to undertake apprenticeships has
increased from 123 to 126.

We have achieved 6 successful grant applications, a 100% success rate. These are:

- £95,000 awarded by Environment Agency for Debris Screen Health and Safety
Works.

- £6,222,000 awarded by Environment Agency for Poole Bridge to Hunger Hill Flood
Defences.

- £1,501,000 awarded by Arts Council England for Museum Estate and
Development Fund.

- £73,000 awarded by Veolia for Queens Park Play Area.

- £376,000 awarded by Arts Council England for Poole Museum.

- £93,000 awarded by DEFRA for King Charles Il England Coast Path.

15. There are more details in the positive exception reports in Appendix 2. There are
some without exception reports. This is due to officers in those areas being fully

122



immersed in inspections, the implementation of Pay and Reward, or other major
projects.

16. There are also those measures that are doing less well and are areas of focus.
Some of these for Quarter Two are:

e The percentage of all major planning applications determined on time has
fallen from 88% in Quarter One to 69% in Quarter Two.

e The percentage of waste diverted from landfill fell to 86.25%, below Quarter
One, target and intervention level.

e The number of homeless households in bed & breakfast has increased from
44 in Quarter One to 65 in Quarter Two.

¢ The number of people rough sleeping has increased from 49 in Quarter One
to 66 in Quarter Two.

e Wecontinue to see a significant downward trend on ‘Increase the
percentage of Education Health Care Plans issued within 20 weeks’, from
58.54% to 24.60%.

17. There are more details in the exception reports at Appendix 3 including an exception
report included relating to the Residents Survey which was requested by Cabinet at
the review of Quarter One performance. There are some without exception reports.
This is due to officers in those areas being fully immersed in inspections, the
implementation of pay and reward and other major projects.

18. It is also interesting to note two new measures relating to the Corporate Strategy
ambition of “Our inclusive, vibrant and sustainable economy supports our
communities to thrive”. These are to “Increase non-financial support given to BCP-
based businesses” and to “Increase in the creation of new business enterprises”.

These replace the measure “Increase the number of jobs created and/or
safeguarded through Government and/or external funding”, which helped deliver the
Corporate Strategy ambition of “Employment is available for everyone and helps
create value in our communities”. This change is due to the external funding that
was driving this measure, ending. The changes ensure performance relating to job
creation through entrepreneurship, and business support, continues to be
measured, just under a different ambition. This change has been approved by
Corporate Strategy Delivery Board at November’s meeting.

19. Performance continues to be monitored by services and by the Corporate Strategy
Delivery Board to ensure appropriate mitigations are in place and actions being
taken.

Summary of financial implications

20. There are no financial implications as this is a performance monitoring report for the

corporate strategy. The corporate strategy is an important document to identify and
establish project priorities for council budget-setting and contains programmes of
work aimed at improving strategic finance, under the Our Approach priority.

Summary of legal implications

21. There are 3 measures that require action in Quarter Two. Any potential risks and mitigations
have been and will continue to be assessed by the relevant service area and reviewed by the
Corporate Strategy Delivery Board.

123



Summary of human resources implications

22. One of the key strategies linked to delivery of the corporate strategy - the people
and culture strategy - aims to foster a high-performance culture. Through a
performance framework, colleagues understand their roles and contribution to BCP
Council’s vision and ambitions. It includes regular 1:1s, SMART objectives, and
annual reviews. Personal objectives are linked to corporate ambitions in the shared
vision for Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole. A dashboard is being developed
with ICT to provide council leadership teams with performance insights, enhancing
alignment to performance reporting. Additionally, programmes under Our Approach
priority aim to positively impact human resources.

Summary of sustainability impact

23. The programmes of work underpinning the Place and Environment priority of the
corporate strategy are designed to have a positive impact on sustainability
outcomes.

Summary of public health implications

24. The programmes of work underpinning the People and Communities and Our
Approach priorities in the corporate strategy are designed to have a positive impact
on public health outcomes.

Summary of equality implications

25. The work programmes supporting the corporate strategy aim to positively impact
protected groups. Equality impact assessments are conducted for these
programmes, particularly under the People and Communities and Our Approach
priorities.

Summary of risk assessment

26. There are 3 measures from Quarter Two that require action, and 17 that require
monitoring. Potential risks and mitigations are assessed by the relevant service area
and are regularly reviewed by Corporate Strategy Delivery Board

Background papers

A shared vision for Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole

« BCP Council Corporate Performance Dashboard

Appendices

Appendix 1: Quarter Two - Corporate Performance Report — Overview of Q2 Performance
Appendix 2: Positive Exception Reports

Appendix 3: Exception Reports

124


https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/Assets/About-the-council/Corporate-strategy.pdf
https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/Assets/About-the-council/Corporate-strategy.pdf
https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/Assets/About-the-council/Corporate-strategy.pdf
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiZmU4NTBlOGYtYmQ1Yi00NGQxLTkwNWEtYzg5NjllYWMxMTQ5IiwidCI6ImM5NDYzMzEzLTM1ZTEtNDBlNC05NDRhLWRkNzk4ZWM5ZTQ4OCJ9
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiZmU4NTBlOGYtYmQ1Yi00NGQxLTkwNWEtYzg5NjllYWMxMTQ5IiwidCI6ImM5NDYzMzEzLTM1ZTEtNDBlNC05NDRhLWRkNzk4ZWM5ZTQ4OCJ9
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiZmU4NTBlOGYtYmQ1Yi00NGQxLTkwNWEtYzg5NjllYWMxMTQ5IiwidCI6ImM5NDYzMzEzLTM1ZTEtNDBlNC05NDRhLWRkNzk4ZWM5ZTQ4OCJ9

Quarter 2 2025-26 - Overview of performance

This report provides an update of quarter two in the 2025/26 year on the progress measures in the council’s shared vision for Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole.

More detail is available in the performance dashboard.

-5

Q2 Overall
e 19 Measures are on target (green)
e 17 measures require monitoring (amber)
L 3 measure requires action (red)
N e 15 measures are pending a RAG rating (grey) mostly due to these being annual or bi-annual measures

Across the three corporate priority areas, this breaks down into:

Our Place and Environment Our People and Communities Our Approach
2 .

More detail about each measure is set out in the following tables.

=

RAG rating: @ Action Required ® Monitor ® On Target © Pending

Page 1


https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiZmU4NTBlOGYtYmQ1Yi00NGQxLTkwNWEtYzg5NjllYWMxMTQ5IiwidCI6ImM5NDYzMzEzLTM1ZTEtNDBlNC05NDRhLWRkNzk4ZWM5ZTQ4OCJ9

Explanation of performance tables
e Frequency: How often new data is available

e High or low figure is better: Whether good performance is a higher figure or a lower figure.

e Baseline figure: A reference point from which the latest progress can be monitored. The time period the baseline data relates to is noted.

e Target: The performance level (goal) the council is aiming to achieve. Rationale for target levels are provided in the performance dashboard.

e Direction of travel & RAG: This column shows whether performance is improving, declining or remaining at the same level compared to the previous update. This is indicated by a directional arrow.

Whether the Q2 data is on target is shown by the RAG rating:

e Red: Performance has not met its target and has reached a level of intervention at which action is required to improve performance.
Performance is not on target but has not reached a level at which action is needed. This requires monitoring to ensure performance stays on track.
Performance has met or exceeded its target.
o : RAG rating not set. This could be because more data is needed to settargets to know if performance is on track, or new data is not yet available, such as with annual or biannual measures.

¢ Commentary: Provides further detail on performance.

9T

RAG rating: @ Action Required ® Monitor @ On Target © Pending Page 2



Our Place and Environment

There are currently fifteen measures that sit under the six ambitions of ‘Our Place and Environment’ priority. Two of these are measured annually and two measured biannually and are shaded grey unless being reported in Q2,
and eleven are measured quarterly.

Measure

Frequency

High or Baseline Direction Commentary
low fi of travel
figure is 'gure & RAG
better

People and places are connected by sustainable and modern infrastructure

Increase the total number of sustainable passenger

PE1A1 trips in the BCP area per year
PE1A2 Increase the number of publicly available Electric
’ Vehicle (EV) charge points
H
N
N

Our communities have pride in our streets, neighbourhoods and public spaces

Increase the number of Fixed Penalty Notices (FPNs)

PE2B.1 served for fly tipping and littering offences

PESD.1 Reduce levels of police recorded antisocial behaviour
(ASB)

PE2D.2 Increase enforcement outcomes relating to street-

based antisocial behaviour (ASB)

RAG rating: @ Action Required

Monitor @ On Target @ Pending

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

The number of bus passenger trips shows a very slight
decline from the previous quarter. The increase in the

24.85M 27.71M 24.84M : . .
_ national fares cap from £2 to £3 is affecting bus
High (June (March (September patronage and lack of noticeable growth in the national
2025) 2026) 2025) economy is also a factor.
The number of council and public electric vehicle (EV)
chargers has increased to 265, exceeding the target.
Earlier delays were caused by procurement and
contractissues, but these have now been resolved and
site programming in underway.
_ 220 240 265 The Local Electric Vehicle Infrastructure (LEVI) bid
High (June (September | (September secured 1,100 charging sockets and six rapid charging
2025) 2025) 2025) hubs, with the first hub now set to be operational in early
2026 and more to follow. A homeowner charging gulley
trial is also starting imminently, supported by £93,000 in
grant funding. Despite previous setbacks, these
developments provide a strong foundation for delivering
EV infrastructure across the area.
1428 fixed penalty notices issued including:
e 8 PSPO offences
760 844 1.43K o 17 flytipping
High (June (September | (September e 3waste duty of care
2025) 2025) 2025) e 1400 litter
The increase in FPNs issued this quarter is due to
additional mobile resource to support visitor influx.
There is a slight rise in anti-social behaviour (ASB) data
2,370 1,775.5 2,573 for the last quarter compared to the same quarter last
Low (June (September | (September year. There is joint work currently being done between
2025) 2025) 2025) the Police and BCP Council around writing an ASB
strategy and a new strategic ASB group is being formed.
Street based enforcement stats Q2:
Number of CSAS incidents attended: 632
Number of alcohol seizures: 22
1,475 1,926 1,069 Number of dispersals: 344
High (June (September | (September Early intervention notices: 10
2025) 2025) 2025) Support referrals:34

Community Protection Warnings (CPW)—-23
Community Protection Notices (CPN) — 1
Anti-Social Behaviour Injunctions (ASBI) —1

Page 3




PE2A1

Increase the percentage of residents who are
satisfied with their local area as a place to live

PE2B.2

Increase residents’ satisfaction with street cleaning

PE3A.1
Increase the number of businesses in the BCP area
PE3B.1 Increase non-financial support given to BCP-based
: businesses
|_A
N
P
PE3C.1 Increase in the creation of new business enterprises

Revitalised high streets and regenerated key sites create new opportunities

PE4AA1

Increase footfall across our three town centres

PE4B.1

Increase the percentage of all major planning
applications determined on time

RAG rating: @ Action Required

Monitor @ On Target @ Pending

Biannual

EIERIE]

Our inclusive, vibrant and sustainable economy supports our communities to thrive

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Closure — 2

We have seen an overall year-on-year reduction in anti-
social behaviour statistically and a quarterly reduction in
the new metrics being tracked over the summer period,
which bucks the previous years’ trends. As such
individual engagements and enforcement will be lower.

High

75%

(March
2025)

This is an annual measure not reported at Q2 so it has
been marked as 'pending' until new data is available.
This measure relates to the Resident's Survey, so new
data will be available when the next survey takes place.

High

48%

(March
2025)

This is an annual measure not reported at Q2 so it has
been marked as 'pending' until new data is available.
This measure relates to the Resident's Survey, so new
data will be available when the next survey takes place.

High

15,495

(December
2024)

15,500

(December
2025)

15,600

(September
2025)

The number of enterprises measure tracks the size of
the business stock in the BCP Council area and is Office
of National Statistics (ONS) data (UK Business Counts).

High

475

(March
2026)

280

(September
2025)

The businesses supported is a new measure, agreed at
the Corporate Strategy Performance Board on 11
November 2025 and tracks the number of BCP based
businesses that are supported. Support includes
enquiries received and responded to, and attendance at
events.

High

30

(March
2026)

9

(September
2025)

The new enterprises measure is new, agreed at the
Corporate Strategy Performance Board on 11
November 2025, and tracks the number of new
enterprises (businesses) set up following our UKSPF
funded ‘Ignite’ business start-up courses. There are
courses for both BCP residents and BCP based
university students.

High

21.74M

(June
2025)

20M

(September
2025)

22.54M

(September
25)

High

88%

(June
2025)

80%

(September
2025)

69%

(September
2025)

As expected, the summer season delivered a strong
footfall performance, amounting to 22.5 million visits to
Bournemouth, Christchurch, and Poole town centres in
Q2, reflecting the area’s enduring appeal as a summer
destination. This represents a significant improvement
compared to the Q1 figures with an additional 2 million
visitors. The growth is particularly positive given that
town centre footfall has generally faced static or
declining trends post-Covid, driven by changing
consumer habits, increased online shopping, and
economic pressures. Achieving sustained growth in this
metric is challenging, making these results a positive
indicator of the resilience of BCP’s visitor economy.

Planning application determination data is sourced from
central government and provides year-to-date quarterly
performance updates. 32 major planning applications
were determined in Q2, although throughput and total
number of decisions is high in terms of the number of

Page 4




decisions issued in time, performance has dipped in Q2.
This has been in part due to issuing decisions on a
number of older applications where the applicant had
been unwilling to agree to an extension of time. Other
factors which have influenced this is staff sickness
which reduced capacity to handle and determine major
planning applications.

This has been highlighted to the planning team and the
team managers will be working closely with the senior
planning officers to ensure performance increases in
Q3.

Performance has increased in Q2 and remains strong in
83% 92% 88% this area. Staff recruited earlier in the year have now

, had time to establish themself within the team and the
Quarterly High (June (September | (September ﬁ department is seeing the benefits of a period of stability.
2025) 2025) 2025) It is anticipated that performance will continue to
improve and meet targets.

Increase the percentage of all non-major planning

PE4B.2 applications determined on time

Climate change is tackled through sustainable policies and practice

A temporary decrease in our landfill diversion rate is due
to a decision made by our waste contractors to send

89.07% 90% 86.25% residual waste to landfill rather than to Energy from
: : : Waste (EfW) facilities. This decision was taken during a
PESE.1 Increase the percentage of waste diverted from landfill Quarterly High (June (March (September period \(Nhen)EfVV facilities were undergoing sche duleg q
2025) 2026) 2025) maintenance resulting in a shortage of available
capacity. We will monitor this situation although we
believe Q3 & Q4 will show some improvement.
Hs 13.4% Progress has been made during 2024/25, showing an
gg reduction in overall reduction in emissions by 13.4%, this has been
Reduce the tonnes of areenhouse gas emissions from 12,911 Carbon 2024/25 achieved by retrofit investment on the corporate estate,
PE 5A.1 our \l/JehicIes and buil dig S (tCOuZe)g Low (October Neutral by against ﬁ increased purchase of Hydrotreated Vegetable Oil,
u ufiding : 2024) 2045 annual investment in the electric vehicle fleet and more
reduction in accuracy in the revised staff travel survey.
23/24

Our green spaces flourish and support the wellbeing of both people and nature

Measures under discussion with Green Space and Conservation team.

Our People and Communities

There are twenty three measures that sit under the seven ambitions of ‘Our People and Communities’ priority. Eight are measured annually, twelve are measured quarterly, two are termly and one is collected everytwo years.
Annual/biannual measures are shaded grey unless being reported in Q2.

Measure Frequency | High or Baseline Target Q2 Data Direction Commentary
low of travel &
figure is RAG
better

High quality of life for all, where people can be active, healthy and independent

| " ) ¢ o witha | _ 81.2% 80% 79.7% We have maximised opportunities to de-register residential
ncrease tné percentage of people with a learning ; homes i.e., to support the transition of individuals —
PCIAZ disability iving independently in settied accommodation | ISk Fian %“2“56) (g’éazrg;‘ (Sezpé‘;g')ber U particularly thosep\F/)vith learning disabilities (LD) or mental

RAG rating: @ Action Required ® Monitor @ On Target @ Pending Page 5



Frequency High or
low

Measure

figure is
better

Baseline

Target

Q2 Data

Direction
of travel &
RAG

Commentary

0€T

health (MH) needs — into settled, supported
accommodation.

Commissioning is refocusing on developing appropriate
supported accommodation to divert people away from
residential care. A Working Age Adult Framework is to be
tendered Spring 2025 to maximise procurement
opportunities for supported living. Ongoing work with
Housing to develop a Strategic Housing Plan to inform
specialist housing development. Work continues to
address updating the records of people with an unknown
accommodation status. Strategic Housing Plan now
completed by PPL (Private Public Ltd) and subgroups
being set up by Housing to take forward specific
developments by primary support groups. Framework due
out this year to provide the care and support against each
property.

Supported Housing

Commissioning is currently working with housing and
development to increase specialist accommodation
capacity through the specialist housing strategy. We have
a development due in March 2026 which will provide 13
MH and 13 LD one bed (2 person) flats. Allowing us to
nominate either for one person or couples.

We are also working through a consultation pre planning
on another development that will provide an additional 12
one bed flats for LD. Planning to go in 2026.

PC1A3

Increase the percentage of people with a mental health

issue living independently in settled accommodation Quanery High

70.8%

(June
2025)

70%

(September
2025)

70%

(September
2025)

We have maximised opportunities to de-register residential
homes i.e., to support the transition of individuals —
particularly those with learning disabilities (LD) or mental
health (MH) needs — into settled, supported
accommodation.

Commissioning is refocusing on developing appropriate
supported accommodation to divert people away from
residential care. A Working Age Adult Framework to be
tendered in Spring 2025 to maximise procurement
opportunities for supported living. Ongoing work with
Housing to develop to a Strategic Housing Plan to inform
specialist housing development. Work continues to
address updating the records of people with an unknown
accommodation status. Strategic Housing Plan now
completed by PPL (Private Public Ltd) and subgroups
being set up by Housing to take forward specific
developments by primary support groups. Framework due
out this year to provide the care and support against each
property.

Supported Housing.

Commissioning is currently working with housing and
development to increase specialistaccommodation
capacity through the specialist housing strategy. We have
a development due to come online March 2026 which will

RAG rating: @ Action Required

Monitor @ On Target @ Pending

Page 6




Measure

Frequency Highor

low

figure is
better

Baseline

Target

Q2 Data

Direction
of travel &
RAG

Commentary

Quarterly

Annual

Annual

Annual

Annual

provide 13 MH and 13 LD one bed (2 person) flats.
Allowing us to nominate either for one person or couples.

We are also working through a consultation pre planning
on another development that will provide an additional 12
one bed flats for LD. Planning to go in 2026.

The service continues to reach clients living in our most
deprived neighbourhoods. Registration numbers are below
that of Q2 2024/25, however the proportion reached — 30%
—is higher than Q2 2024/25 and is above our 25% target
of registrations from clients living in our most deprived
neighbourhoods. Q2 2024/25 had a greater number of
registrations which has set a higher target for this quarter.
Reasons for a reduction in registration numbers includes
the loss of the ability to direct targeted marketing and

. 257 267 222 @ communication campaigns via social media, the loss of the
High (June (September | (September Public Health Dorset website and the organisation’s social
2025) 2025) 2025) media account no longer being used. To resolve this, a
number of campaigns are planned through targeted
marketing and alternative social media advertising.
LiveWell Dorset has changed the basis on which the
indicator is constructed, now looking at the 20% most
deprived neighbourhoods locally when previously it was
looking at the 20% most deprived neighbourhoods
nationally, which increases the target audience quite
significantly.
59% 62% This is an annual‘ measure not reported at Q2 so it has
High ) bee_n marked as pendm_g until new mforrpatlon_ls
9 (March (December available. New information should be available in March
2025) 2025) 2026.
70% This is an annual measure not reported at Q2 so it has
) been marked as 'pending' until new data is available. This
High (March - - measure relates to the Resident's Survey, so new data will
2025) be available when the next survey takes place.
71.50% This is an annual measure not reported at Q2 so it has
High ) _ been marked as ‘pending’ until new data is available.
(June When new national averages are released, we will be able
2025) to set our target.
61% This is an annual measure not reported at Q2 so it has
Hiah ) ) been marked as ‘pending’ until new data is available.
9 (March When new national averages are released, we will be able
2025) to set our target.
36% 38% This is a biannual measure not reported at Q2 soit has
High (March (March - been marked as ‘pgnding_’ until new data is available. New
2024) 2026) data should be available in spring 2026.

Increase the number of registrations from people in the
PC1B.1 most deprived areas accessing health and wellbeing
support (LiveWell Dorset)
=
w
|_\
PC1A4 Increase the percentage of Adult Social Care users who
. are satisfied with the care and support they receive
Increase the percentage of residents who have a good
PC1A.1 . . o
satisfaction with life
PC1C.1 Increase the percentage of physically active adults
PC1C.2 Increase the percentage of physically active children and
’ young people
PC1A5 Increase the percentage of carers who are satisfied with
the care and support they receive
Working together, everyone feels safe and secure

RAG rating: ® Action Required

Monitor @ On Target @ Pending

Page 7




Measure

Frequency Highor Baseline Target Q2 Data Direction Commentary
low of travel &
figure is RAG

better

PC2AA1 Reduce levels of police recorded serious violent crime
Increase the percentage of residents who feel safe in
PC2B.1 . :
their local area during the day
PCOB 2 Increase the percentage of residents who feel safe in

their local area after dark

Those who need su

pportreceive it when and where they need it

49"

PC3C.1

Increase the number of individuals entering drug
treatment

PC3A1

Increase the percentage of Education Health Care Plans
issued within 20 weeks

RAG rating: @ Action Required ® Monitor @ On Target @ Pending

Quarterly Low

333

(June
2025)

313

(September
2025)

363

(September
2025)

The figures were slightly higher in July than last year (137
to 122) but almost identical figures for August and
September. The highest volume of serious violence is still
sexual violence, and some work is being done to monitor
public place sexual violence in a more comprehensive
manner. The partnership structure for managing serious
violence is changing also with a new Serious Violence
Multi-Agency action group being formed with a police
officer leading which is a change from our current serious
violence delivery group structure.

87%

(March
2025)

This is an annual measure not reported at Q2 so it has
been marked as 'pending' until new data is available. This
measure relates to the Resident's Survey, so new data will
be available when the next survey takes place.

Annual

Annual High
High

54%

(March
2025)

This is an annual measure not reported at Q2 so it has
been marked as 'pending' until new data is available. This
measure relates to the Resident's Survey, so new data will
be available when the next survey takes place.

Quarterly High

3,195

(March
2025)

3,127
(June 2025)

3,156
(June 2025)

Quarterly High

58.54%

(June
2025)

70%

(September
2025)

24.60%

(September
2025)

Q2 actual figures will not be available until end of
November (the verified data via central government is
about 8 — 12 weeks after the end of the quarter). Drugs
activity can only be reported via verified data whichis in
the public domain

Due to the government time lag in finalising publicly
available figures, quarterly reporting for this measure will
be one quarter behind. Since verification, we can now
report that the actual Q1 figure is 3,156 adults in
treatment. Q2 figures will be reported in full at Q3 and will
be updated as soon as available on the live Corporate
Performance dashboard.

Since September 2024, we have been unable to resource
the Educational Psychology (EP) team sufficiently to keep
up with the number of requests for Education Health and
Care Needs Assessments and Plans. BCP are showing an
increase in the rate of Initial Requests per 10,000
population (0-25) between 2020 and 2024 with a rate of
105.7 in 2024 comparedto 41.3 in 2020. BCP are above
all the comparators in 2024 (Eng 88.1, SW 95.9 and SN
93.4).

In 2024 our 20-week timeliness improved as a result of a
cash injection to resource the EPS at the level which was
required for them to meet the demand for EP
assessments. Once this resource was spent, it has
contributed to, but is not wholly accountable for, the
extended timescales seen with the 20-week process more
recently. From August 2025 the EP Team are prioritising
assessments for children based on vulnerability factors

Page 8




Measure

Frequency High or

low
figure is
better

Baseline

Target

Q2 Data

Direction
of travel &
RAG

Commentary

PC3B.1 Reduce the attainment gap and improve learning
outcomes for children and young people in receipt of free Annual
school meals
Ensure that the timeliness of assessments to determine

PC3D.1 the child's needs is conducive with offering the right Quarterly

service at the right time to children, young people and
their families

€eT

Good quality homes are accessible, sustainable and affordable for all

PC4B.1

Reduce the number of homeless households in bed and

breakfast Quarterly

PC4A.1

Reduce the number of people rough sleeping

Quarterly

RAG rating: @ Action Required

Monitor @ On Target @ Pending

50.1

(Sept
2024)

35

(March
2026)

50.60

(September
2025)

weighed against enough new requests to enable the
ECHP process to be completed in line with national
average performance. The notable dip in performance in
Q2 may be attributed in part to previous prioritisation of EP
assessments which focussed only on a child's vulnerability
factors. There were also some delays with BSO functions
which are now resolved. Another factor is historic
turbulence in staff turnover at EHCCO level which is now
stabilising.

Provisional data collected locally is provided, national data
will be published in the Autumn term, and the measure will
be updated accordingly when available. BCP Council
schools are significantly above national, regional and SN
benchmarks from the previous year. However, we are
unable to provide a direct comparison until the 2024/25
national benchmarking data is released by the Department
for Education. There is a slight improvement on the
previous year, based on the BCP Council provisional data.

95%

(June
2025)

85%

(March
2026)

96%

(September
2025)

This performance is significantly above national
benchmarks (85%) and has remained consistently higher
than all comparator authorities for an incredible eight
consecutive quarters. Such positive performance is a
direct reflection of the commitment of staff to children and
families, and the clear processes in place to ensure
consistency and timely assessments.

Low

44

(June
2025)

40

(September
2025)

65

(September
2025)

Households in bed & breakfast have increased in the past
quarter, with the Housing service experiencing the highest
level of demand during this period in the past 5 years.
Homelessness demand has increased by 9% over the past
year, with more recent drivers coming from no-fault
evictions from the private rented sector. The impact of the
future legislative changes in this market are forecast to
continue to have a homelessness impact. Additional
central Government grant resources will be focused on
supporting the homelessness prevention agenda, with
targeted interventions supporting household most likely to
be at risk.

Low

49

(June
2025)

50

(September
2025)

66

(September
2025)

The overall prevalence of rough sleeping continues to
show reductions from the same period last year with an
11% reduction. Whilst seasonality continues to influence
the total count, the profile of those rough sleeping has
seen a marked change. There are 75% fewer people
rough sleeping long term. Those new to rough sleeping
are only seen a few times before they are helped into
alternative accommodation, meaning that people are
staying on the street for a shorter time. There are fewer
people on the street now who are long term rough
sleepers due to a concentrated effort by the council and

Page 9




Frequency Highor Baseline Q2 Data Direction Commentary
low of travel &

Measure

figure is RAG

better

Increase the number of both completed new affordable

PC4C.1 and social rented homes

Quarterly

Local communities shape the services that matter to them

Increase the percentage of residents who feel they can

PC5A1 influence decisions affecting their local area

Employment is available for everyone and helps create value in our communities

VET

Increase the uptake of supported employment for those

PC6A.2 with learning disabilities

Quarterly

Increase the uptake of supported employment for those

PC6A.3 with mental health issues

Quarterly

RAG rating: @ Action Required ® Monitor @ On Target @ Pending

partners to find them the homes and support they need to
prevent the risk of returning to the street.

High

(June
2025)

100

(March
2026)

2

(September
2025)

100 homes completed by end of March 2026 on target. 2
new homes completed this quarter at Craigmoor Avenue. 7
new homes at Grants Close, Bournemouth and High
Street Christchurch due for completion in November 2025.
Further build completions expected at Hillbourne and
Templeman House in early 2026. 152 affordable homes
currently under construction.

High

30%

(March
2025)

This is an annual measure not reported at Q2 so it has
been marked as 'pending' until new data is available. This
measure relates to the Resident's Survey, so new data will
be available when the next survey takes place.

High

4.6%

(June
2025)

4.5%

(March
2026)

4.7%

(September
2025)

The Supported Employment Review has been agreed as
one of the six priorities of the co-produced Day
Opportunities Strategy. Our Fulfilled Lives, strengths-
based approach in Adult Social Care ensures that
employment is explored with those people who are able to
work. Dorset Work Matters is a joint project between
Dorset HealthCare and Dorset Mental Health Forum and
helps people who are accessing mental health services to
find paid employment. Employment specialists have been
working with people to reconnect them with their passions,
interests, and skills, and use this as a focus for them to
find employment. The employment specialists are skilled at
working with employers to negotiate personalised
reasonable adjustments and to ensure that the right
support is in place to sustain work.

The individual placement support workers have received
an expansion in their funding over the next 5 years. The
funding will include an extra 5 Individual Placement and
Support (IPS) workers and a new team lead.

High

2.6%

(June
2025)

2.6%

(March
2026)

2.4%

(September
2025)

The Supported Employment Review has been agreed as
one of the six priorities of the co-produced Day
Opportunities Strategy. Our Fulfilled Lives, strengths-
based approach in Adult Social Care ensures that
employment is explored with those people who are able to
work. Dorset Work Matters is a joint project between
Dorset HealthCare and Dorset Mental Health Forum and
helps people who are accessing mental health services to
find paid employment. Employment specialists have been
working with people to reconnect them with their passions,
interests, and skills, and use this as a focus for them to
find employment. The employment specialists are skilled at
working with employers to negotiate personalised

Page 10




Measure

Frequency High or

low
figure is
better

Baseline

Target

Q2 Data

Direction
of travel &
RAG

Commentary

Skills are continuall

y developed, and people can access lifelong learning

=
W
a
PC7B 1 Reduce the number of primary school aged children
’ excluded from school
PC7B.2 Reduce the number of secondary school aged children

excluded from school

RAG rating: @ Action Required

Monitor @ On Target @ Pending

Termly

reasonable adjustments and to ensure that the right
support is in place to sustain work.

The individual placement support workers have received
an expansion in their funding over the next 5-years. The
funding will include an extra 5 Individual Placement and
Support (IPS) workers and a new team lead.

Low

0.012%

(March
2025)

0.01%

(March
2026)

0.012%

(September
2025)

Data from Summer 2025 is currently latest available,
showing 0.012%, which s in line with national averages
and equivalent to 3 permanent exclusions, the same as
the Spring term.

It should be noted that the low number of children that are
excluded from primary school can result in this indicator
fluctuating greatly when in reality the number of children
does not significantly change.

Analysis of primary aged children excluded in the 2024/25
academic year highlighted that:

- 92% (11 of 12) children either had an EHC Plan or were
in the process of being assessed for one.

- 92% (11 of 12) children were open to or had been
referred to Children's Social Care or Targeted Family
Support Services, however, only 38% of those referred
accepted the offer of support.

This demonstrates that children with additional support
needs are more likely to be excluded and suggests that
sufficiency issues and current challenges assessing the
needs of children with special educational needs may be a
factor in the increase of primary aged children being
excluded.

The following actions have been taken to address the rise
in primary aged children being excluded.

- Additional funding has been secured to commission The
Difference, a nationally respected organisation that has
successfully supported schools and Local Authorities to
reduce exclusions, to work with our schools to develop
inclusive practice that will reduce exclusions.

- A three-tier alternative provision model, that focuses on
early intervention and preventing exclusion is being co-
designed with schools and other stakeholders.

- An Alternative Provision Panel at which schools can
request additional resources to support children that are at
risk of exclusion has been established.

Low

0.137%

(March
2025)

0.082%

(March
2026)

0.067%

(September
2025)

Data from the Summer 2025 is currently latest available,
showing 0.067%, equivalent to 7 permanent exclusions, a
decrease from 0.137% (35 permanent exclusions) in the
Spring term.

Although this indicator suggests improvement, data for the
full academic year 2024/25 would indicate the BCP rate of

Page 11




Measure Frequency High or
low
figure is
better

Baseline

Target

Q2 Data

Direction
of travel &
RAG

Commentary

exclusion from secondary schools continue to remain high
and significantly above the national average.

53% of exclusions in 2024/25 were of children with
identified special education needs. There was a 48%
increase between 2023/24 and 2044/25 of the number of
children being excluded for drug and alcohol-related
issues.

The following actions have been taken to prevent children
from being excluded.

- We have commissioned 50 places for school leaders on
"The Difference's' Inclusion Leadership Programme. The
Difference are a national education charity, which works
with MATs and LAs to reduce lost learning.

- A three-tier alternative provision model, that focuses on
early intervention and preventing exclusion is being co-
designed with schools and other stakeholders.

- An Alternative Provision Panel at which schools can
request additional resources to support children that are at
risk of exclusion has been established.

9€T

RAG rating: @ Action Required ® Monitor @ On Target © Pending

Page 12




Our Approach

There are sixteen measures that sit under the seven principles of ‘Our Approach’ priority. Six are measured annually and are shaded grey unless being reported in Q2 and ten are measured quarterly.

Q2 Data Direction

of travel

Measure Baseline

High or

Target Commentary

Frequency
low figure
is better

Working closely with partners, removing barriers and empowering others
1 6 This is an annual measure not reported at Q2 so it has been
A1AA1 Increase.the AT GBS RS e Annual High (March (March - marked as ‘pending’ until new data is available. New data
communities . .
2025) 2026) should be available in March 2026.
Providing accessible and inclusive services, showing care in our approach
Now that the new Dynamics platform is in place with
improved functionality to support the roll out of self-serve
options, the aim is to actively channel shift activity away from
phone lines and on to self-serve options. A programme is
71% 85% 78% being put together to deliver these changes. This will form
Raise the proportion of interactions that come from online . part of the Customer Strategy refresh, which is currently
A2B1 platforms SLET L High (June (March | (September being scoped now that the transformation programme has
2029) 2026) 2025) delivered the technological advances to the underlying
systems.
A deep dive is taking place into all aspects of the contact
centre, a proportion of which will focus on increasing self-
service.
— 68% This is an annual measure not reported at Q2 so it has been
N A2A 1 Increase the proportion of people who use care services Annual High i i marked as ‘pending’ until new data is available. New data
' who find it easy to find information about services . 9 (%azrg)h and a new target should be available in March 2026.
48% This is an annual measure not reported at Q2 so it has been
A2A.2 Increase levels of trust in the council High _ _ marked as 'pending' until new data is available. This
d (2/(I)a2rgh measure relates to the Resident's Survey, so new data will
) be available when the next survey takes place.
Using data, insights and feedback to shape services and solutions
41% This is an annual_ measure not repo_rted a_t Q2so it_has been
A3B.1 Increase satisfaction with the way the council runs things High (December - - marked as ‘pending’ until new data is available. This '
2023) measure relates to the Resident's Survey, so new data will
be available when the next survey takes place.
During the last quarter the Ombudsman made 16 decisions
relating to BCP complaints. Of these, 15 were not upheld,
Red ) ¢ uoheld OmMbud taint 0.25% 0.25% 0.21% leaving one case which was upheld. This equals the same
educe percentage or uphe mbudsman compiaints number that was upheld in the previous quarter meanin
A3A1 : Quarter! Low P P q g
per 100,000 of the population v (2/(I)a2rg)h (Sengzrg)ber (Sezpct)zrg)ber performance has not changed. The low number of upheld
complaints reflects improved complaint handling at stage 1,
and the commitment to a more centralised approach to
complaints training
Intervening as early as possible to improve outcomes

RAG rating: ® Action Required

Monitor @ On Target @ Pending

Page 13




Measure High or
low figure

is better

Frequency

Baseline

Target

Q2 Data

Direction
of travel

Commentary

A4A1

Decrease the percentage of Children and Young People
returning to Early Help (targeted support) within 12
months

Quarterly Low

13%

(June
2025)

15%

(March
2026)

10%

(September
2025)

The most common closure reasons preceding re-referral in

Q2 were the Level 1 and Level 4, which suggests that both
early closure and escalating needs are key drivers of re-
referral, which has remained consistently low. The focus
remains on the wider Early Help network to continue to
provide intervention, therefore Level 1 closures may indicate
that some children’s needs were underestimated or support
ended too soon/ was not effective, while Level 4 step-ups
reflect children and families whose needs intensified needing
a higher level of support/ intervention. We are strong
performers in this area indicating that our level 3 support
works well and meets the needs of most families.

Developing a passionate, proud, valued and diverse workforce

Increase the percentage of equality monitoring data Quarterly High

64.49%

(June
2025)

70%

(September
2025)

65.56%

(September
2025)

Slight increase in overall completion rates.

People and culture have now devised a way to import
Equality, Diversity and Inclusion (EDI) information captured
on the Recruitment System to Dynamics F&O which should
ensure no data provided by colleagues is missed going
forward.

Director of People and Culture to emphasise to DSG
members the importance of encouraging colleagues within
their service to complete their EDI data.

Overall completion rate: 65.56%

Disability completion rate: 76.75% of colleagues have
provided this data

Ethnicity completion rate: 76.54% of colleagues have
provided this data

Marriage/Civil Partnership completion rate: 50.23% of
colleagues have provided this data

Gender Ildentity completion rate: 51.25% of colleagues have
provided this data

Religion completion rate: 69.16% of colleagues have
provided this data

Sexual Orientation completion rate: 69.43% of colleagues
have provided this data

Quarterly High

(=
& ASB.2 collected from staff
A5C.1 Increase the number of successful candidates from
' underrepresented groups for council jobs
A5B.1 Increase levels of employee engagement

4.8%

(June
2025)

6%

(September
2025)

3.92%

(September
2025)

Out of the 3,897 applicants who responded this quarter,
11.03 % declared a disability (430 applicants). Out of those
applicants successful in the recruitment process, the % of
candidates declaring a disability is 14.95 % (16 applicants).
The differential between overall applicants and successful
candidates for this underrepresented group remains a
positive figure for the last quarter.

High

RAG rating: @ Action Required

60%

(March
2024)

62%

(September
2025)

63%

(September
2025)

Employee engagement continues to trend upward,
exceeding our target for 2025. Starting from a baseline of
60% in 2024, we set an ambitious goal of 62% and achieved
63%, reflecting a sustained improvement in engagement
levels across the organisation. This progress is thanks to the
hard work of services across the Council, which have
focused on improving engagement. Individual data shows

Monitor @ On Target @ Pending

Page 14




Measure

Frequency

High or
low figure
is better

Baseline

Target

Q2 Data

Direction
of travel

Commentary

Creating an environ

ment for innovation, learning and leadership

AGB.1

Increase the number of current council employees
supported to undertake apprenticeships

A6B.2

Increase the number of newly recruited colleagues into
apprenticeship posts

Using our resources sustainably to support our ambitions

(=
W
e
A7A2 Increase the percentage of successful grant applications
A7A.3 Increase the percentage of business rates collected
A7A4 Increase the percentage of council tax collected
A7A Increase the percentage of residents who think the

council provides value for money

RAG rating: ® Action Re

quired @ Monitor @ On Target @ Pending

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

significant improvement, largely attributed to the rollout of the

new Performance Framework and the associated impact of
creating dedicated time for discussions around Learning and
Development opportunities. In addition, the certainty and
successful delivery of the Pay and Reward Programme is
believed to have played a vital role in contributing to this
increase, reinforcing confidence and fairness across the
workforce.

123 126 126 In the last quarter, 11 existing colleagues.successfully .
High ﬁ completed their apprenticeships and 4 withdrew from their
9 (June (September | (September programmes, which accounts for the slightly lower increase
2025) 2025) 2025) to normal, although we remain on target.
39 40 39 Th ber of ti loyed since the last rti
. e number of apprentices employed since the last reporting
High (June (September | (September = period has not changed and remains on target.
2025) 2025) 2025)
Total of 6 bids, all successful.
£95,000 awarded by Environment Agency for Debris Screen
Health and Safety Works.
£6,222,000 awarded by Environment Agency for Poole
Bridge to Hunger Hill Flood Defences.
100% 92% 99.64% .
High <:> £1,501,000 awarded by Arts Council England for Museum
'9 (June (September | (September Estate and Development Fund.
2025) 2025) 2025) )
£73,000 awarded by Veolia for Queens Park Play Area.
£376,000 awarded by Arts Council England for Poole
Museum.
£93,000 awarded by DEFRA for King Charles Il England
Coast Path.
31.65% 49% 57.04%
High (June | (September | (September ﬁ This remains on target.
2025) 2025) 2025)
0, 0, 0,
) 27.25% 49% 52.9% The % collected at the end of quarter 2 is slightly less than
High (June (September | (September ﬁ last year, but in excess of any intervention level.
2025) 2025) 2025)
339, This is an annual measure not reported at Q2 so it has been
High ) ) marked as 'pending' until new data is available. This
9 (March measure relates to the Resident's Survey, so new data will
2025) be available when the next survey takes place.

Page 15




This page is intentionally left blank

140



Positive Exception Performance Report:

Please use this report to highlight outstanding performance during the last quarter,

the factors that drove the good performance, and the reason it is important.

This report will make up part of the overall corporate performance report presented
to Cabinet.

Indicator Description (taken from performance scorecard):

Increase the number of publicly available Electric Vehicle (EV) charge points

2025/26 Q2 outturn: 265 | Quarterly Target: 240

Reason for level of performance (what drove success?):

The number of available Council and public Electric Vehicle (EV) chargers has increased
to 265 in the latest Government figures. As soon as we commence the Local Electric
Vehicle Infrastructure Work, which is imminent, we will exceed targets.

It took longer than expected to meet the target this quarter as procurement took much
longer than expected due to staffing issues at the time. The procurement of local electric
vehicle infrastructure grant (LEVI) was delayed and although we have made the award
three months late, we still needed to iron out the contract amendments between both
parties. The programming of sites ready for delivering is on-going.

The outcome of the local electric vehicle infrastructure grant (LEVI) bid was excellent
news for BCP Council moving forward, we had set a minimum of 750 7kw charging
sockets and the winning bidder Connected kerb came in at 1100 charging sockets, 550
dual charger bollards for streets without off-street parking.

The six charging hubs have been delayed due to the supplier, the first of these was
finalised last week (Littledown) with more hubs following very soon. These will be multiple
rapid charging locations with their own substation (when required) including Seldown
which will power the two new electric buses arriving at the end of this financial year for
route one.

The homeowner chargers that will be installed through the charging gulley programme trial
is about to commence, this was held up by waiting for the grant funding that we now have
of £93,000, awarded last Thursday 30" Oct. We can use £1,200 towards each installation.
We are starting with a ten-gulley trial, which we hope to expand out after an agreed
timescale. After all the various delays, we now have a great foundation to deliver on all
fronts.

Completed by: Martin Jolly
Date: 13t November 2025

Service Unit Head approval: John McVey
Date: 13" November 2025

141




Exceptional Performance Report

Please use this report to explain the reasons for performance meeting or exceeding target, what

was achieved, why did it happen, and what the next steps are/could be. This report will make up
part of the overall corporate performance report presented to Cabinet.

Indicator Description (taken from performance scorecard):
Increase the number of Fixed Penalty Notice’s served for fly tipping and littering offences

2025/26 Q2 outturn: 1428 Quarterly Target: 844

Reason for level of performance:

The summer months see an increase in visitor numbers and anecdotal concerns regarding litter in key
locations such as beaches and open spaces. As such, Public Protection and Wise Ltd work together to
ensure maximum resourcing in Q2 to ensure litter enforcement was robust. This year WISE Ltd also
supported enforcement of the Coastal Public Spaces Protection Order for issues such as urination and
fires.

Actions/Next steps:

Public Protection and Wise Ltd will continue to monitor footfall trends to ensure robust enforcement of
environmental crime. There is also a communications campaign in progress to educate around the impact
and enforcement in relation to flytipping

Learnings to share:

Planned resourcing that is scaled up based on predicted demand

Completed by: Sophie Sajic
Date: 19/11/25

Exceptional Performance Report

Please use this report to explain the reasons for performance meeting or exceeding target, what

was achieved, why did it happen, and what the next steps are/could be. This report will make up
part of the overall corporate performance report presented to Cabinet.

Indicator Description (taken from performance scorecard):
Increase footfall across our three town centres

2025/26 Q2 outturn: 22.54m Quarterly Target: 18m

142




Reason for level of performance:

The summer season has delivered a strong footfall performance across Bournemouth, Christchurch, and
Poole, reflecting the area’s appeal as a summer destination. Quarterly figures show significant improvement
in what is typically a challenging metric.

This success is underpinned by targeted interventions from the Economic Development team, including:

e Strategic Support: Continued backing for the four Business Improvement Districts (BIDs) and
proactive engagement with key stakeholders such as Legal & General, Savills, and a broad network
of independent businesses.

¢ Branding Initiatives: The “Support Local” campaign has reinforced town centre identity and
demonstrated the Council’s commitment to local businesses.

o Events and Community Empowerment: By supporting third-party events and enabling communities
to develop their own, the Events team has fostered a sense of ownership and vibrancy. Groups such
as Powerhouse, Poole Quay Events Forum, and Christchurch Chamber are advancing plans with
Council support.

These combined efforts have strengthened town centre resilience and contributed to a positive visitor
experience.

Actions/Next steps:
Sustaining strong footfall across Bournemouth, Christchurch, and Poole during the festive season while
mitigating weather-related risks is a big focus and concern but key interventions have been put in place to
help with mitigation.
Festive Activities

¢ The launch and promotion of Christmas lights in all three town centres to attract visitors

e Supporting seasonal events to create a festive atmosphere and increase dwell time
Events

o Collaboration with community groups and BIDs to curate festive events

o Ensure event calendars are widely promoted across Council channels and partner networks
Small Business Saturday (6" Dec)

o Delivery of a public-facing campaign highlighting local businesses and asking the public to identify

their favourite shops and local experiences
e Provide further ‘Support Local stickers to amplify reach

Learnings to share:

Working together works - Partnering with BIDs, local businesses, and community groups makes events and
interventions stronger and more successful

Consistent messaging helps - The “Support Local” campaign showed that clear, joined-up marketing brings
more awareness to town and district centres

Events bring people in - Seasonal events are key for footfall. Planning early and promoting well makes a
big difference

Data helps us react quickly - Tracking footfall means we can change plans and target marketing if needed
Weather matters - Bad weather can reduce footfall, good weather helps us as a conurbation. Having
consistent online messaging helps keep people engaged

Completed by: Hannah Porter
Date: 13.11.25

143




Positive Exception Performance Report:

Please use this report to highlight outstanding performance during the last quarter,

the factors that drove the good performance, and the reason it is important. This
report will make up part of the overall corporate performance report presented to
Cabinet.

Indicator Description (taken from performance scorecard):

Ensure that the timeliness of assessments to determine the child's needs is
conducive with offering the right service at the right time to children, young
people, and their families.

2024/25 Q4 outturn: 94% | 2025/26 Q1 outturn: 96% | 2025/26 Q1 target: 85%

Reason for level of performance (what drove success?):

The dedication and professionalism of our social work teams continue to shine through in
our assessment timeliness, with an outstanding 96% of assessments completed within the
statutory 45 working day timeframe. This performance is not only significantly above
national benchmarks (85%) it has remained consistently higher than all comparator
authorities for an incredible seven consecutive quarters. Such sustained excellence is a
direct reflection of an unwavering commitment to children and families, and an ability to
deliver timely, high-quality interventions even in the face of complex and demanding
caseloads.

Quarter 1 has seen further improvement, with the average time to complete assessments
reduced to just 21 working days—two days faster than the previous quarter and four days
quicker than the same period last year. This remarkable progress is a testament to the
relentless focus on efficiency and the ability to adapt and refine practice to meet the needs
of the community. It speaks volumes about the skill, energy, and determination of our
social work teams, who continue to go above and beyond to ensure that every child
receives the support they need without delay.

Most impressively, 59% of assessments were completed within 20 working days—an
extraordinary achievement that places us 28.8 percentage points above the national
average of 30.2%. This result is not just a number; it represents the real impact of teams
that are deeply committed to safeguarding and early intervention. Their hard work,
resilience, and passion for making a difference are driving transformative outcomes for
children and families across the directorate. We are immensely proud of their
achievements and grateful for their continued excellence.

Reason for significance:

These improvements in assessment timeliness are profoundly important to the
children and families in Bournemouth, Christchurch, and Poole (BCP), as they
directly impact the speed and quality of support provided during critical moments in
their lives. When assessments are completed quickly and efficiently, it means that
children experiencing vulnerability or risk are identified sooner, and the right
interventions can be put in place without delay. This can be life-changing—
ensuring safety, stability, and access to services that promote wellbeing and
development.

Completed by: Nigel Burton
Date:10/09/2025

144




Exceptional Performance Report

Please use this report to explain the reasons for performance meeting or exceeding target, what

was achieved, why did it happen, and what the next steps are/could be. This report will make up
part of the overall corporate performance report presented to Cabinet.

Indicator Description (taken from performance scorecard): Decrease the percentage of
Children and Young People returning to Early Help (targeted support) within 12 months

2025/26 Q2 outturn: 10% Quarterly Target: 15%

Reason for level of performance:

The Early Help and Targeted Intervention Service (EH&TIS) place resilience and empowerment at the heart
of their work with families. This can be evidenced in the robust performance shown against the percentage
of children and young people being re-referred into BCP Early Help Services. We can see from the data
that the maijority of re-referrals in Q2 are families that are returning for support at least 2 years after their
initial referral, with some coming back 3 and 4 years later. This indicates that the reasons for re-
presentation are likely to be novel ones rather than a repetition of prior support needs which would be
expected, given the fluctuating needs of some families, however 10% re-referrals is testament to the
majority of families being supported to build resilience, strong networks and that have learnt the extent of
their own capability.

It is also worth noting the improvement in performance between Q1 and Q2, where re-referral rates have
dropped by 4percentage points from 14% in Q1 to 10% in Q2. This is further evidence of the ability of the
EH&TIS to maintain performance over time in an area that evidences sustainable change for the families
we work with.

There are several contributory factors to the consistent performance of EH&TIS against the decrease in %
of children and young people returning to EH&TIS within 12 months:

The right help at the right time:

EH have strong processes in relation to their practice standards and graduated response. This allows
sound decisions to be reached in relation to threshold, ensuring that families are receiving the correct
service for their needs, with minimal points of handover or duplication. Once families are allocated to a lead
professional, Early Help Support Workers (EHSW) build discussions on closure in from the very start of the
work, ensuring that families have the opportunity to share what success looks like for them and can then
work with us to not only reach their goals, but to develop the resilience to achieve the same result without
our support.

Strong holistic assessment and planning:

EHSW’s work with families to create robust assessments with the child’s voice at the centre. Significant
effort is put into assessing and analysing family strengths and needs, supporting families to create a plan
that involves a network that can be utilised when things become difficult. Families own their assessment
and are an integral part of planning and family network meetings. Putting families at the heart of this work
ensures that they are invested in their own outcomes and contributes to a lower level of re-referrals.

A passionate workforce:

EHSW’s and their management teams are passionate about what they do. There has been significant
change within the area of Early Help, with staff teams being reconfigured, new skills being required and
new processes to adjust to. Teams have successfully compartmentalised and, in doing so, have ensured

145




that the tide of change has not affected the high quality and level of service that families receive. EHSW'’s
are passionate advocates of families’ autonomy and of their strengths. They ensure their voices are heard
and that they have the support that they need around them to truly thrive. When families know that they are
capable, they are less likely to experience learned helplessness and require services in the future.

Strong Partnerships:

Our EH Strategy focuses on the power of networks, both within families and as professionals. We work with
families to build their personal networks of professionals, community, friends and family but we also know
the power of our EH Partnership network and where families might benefit from services outside of the
EH&TIS. Our Early Help Advice Point is able to effectively triage families being referred into services,
whether for the first time or subsequently, and to ensure that they are signposted to the correct service to
best meet their needs. These conversations are based upon the families’ wishes and feelings and, again,
are built on the premise that where a family feels they have choice and are autonomous, they are more
likely to engage and have successful outcomes.

Actions/Next steps:

These improvements in re-referral numbers are profoundly important to the children and families in BCP, as
they reflect that families are receiving the right support at the right time. When re-referral rates are low, we
know that families that previously sought support have built resilience and autonomy, that they are
advocating for themselves and finding their own solutions without the need for intervention from
professionals. This is our goal for all our families, and we will work towards continual improvement in this
area to ensure the best outcomes for our families.

Learnings to share:

The re-referral numbers are very low and have remained consistently so. The most common closure
reasons preceding re-referral in Q2 were closure to Universal services at Level 1 and escalation to services
at statutory Level 4. There is not enough data to indicate a trend and further analysis of data over a longer
period would be required to assess whether early closure and escalating needs were the drivers of re-
referral. It is also worth noting that across our system, we would expect some families to experience
challenges beyond the scope of EH that require statutory intervention. Equally, we would expect a number
of families to experience some issues ‘going it alone’ as this is a big step. A pattern in either would be
concerning but, at this point and with the data we have, there is no pattern that indicates that there is an
issue with the timeliness of closure or a lack of impactful work being delivered.

We will monitor the trends to ensure that any patterns are identified and analysed at the earliest opportunity.

Completed by: Nina Wilson - Service Manager
Date: 13/11/2025

Service Unit Head approval with date:
Nigel Burton - Head of Service for MASH, Assessment and Out of Hours Teams
Date 13/11/2025

146




Exception Performance Report

Please use this report to explain the reasons for performance not meeting target, the risks this presents in
each of the sections and the actions and intervention planned or in place to improve performance and
mitigate the risks identified.

This report will make up part of the overall corporate performance report presented to Cabinet.

Indicator Description (taken from performance scorecard):

Increase the percentage of all major planning applications determined on time

2025/26 Q2 outturn: 69% Quarterly Target: 80%

Reason for level of performance:

Planning application determination data is sourced from central government and provides year-to-date
quarterly performance updates. 20 major planning applications were determined in Q2, although throughput
and total number of decisions is high in terms of the number of decisions issued in time Performance has
dipped in Q2. Factors which have influenced this include:

Determining a number of older applications — We have been issuing a number of older applications where
the applicant had been unwilling to agree to an extension of time

Staff sickness at the senior planner level — This has reduced capacity to handle and determine major planning
applications. We have some officers on long term sick leave, and it has been necessary to re-allocate their
case load. This puts pressure on exiting staff and applicants are often unwilling to agree to extensions of time
if the application has already gone beyond the decision date.

Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG) — This has been a source of delay for a number of major planning applications,
due to the complexity of the matter and the limited resource to provide detailed feedback on BNG (There are
only 2 ecologists at the Council). Due to the time it has taken to agree a suitable solution some applicants
lost patience and did not agree an extension of time.

Delays in consultee responses — This often leads to applications going beyond the decision date and a
number of agents are often unwilling to agree extensions of time in these situations as they are unhappy with
the length of time it is taken the consultee to respond.

Reduction in Agency Staff — We have been gradually reducing the number of agency staff which has impacted
on our capacity at senior planner level. This results in higher caseloads for the existing staff putting more
pressure on them to deliver.

Committee overturns — Some applications were overturned at committee and the time it took to agree reasons
for refusal went over the agreed extension of time. Applicants were unwilling to agree a further EOT as app
was now being refused.

Summary of financial implications:

Increased risk of being placed on special measures if government performance targets are not met.

Increased risk of planning fees having to be refunded if the government’s planning guarantee is not met.

Summary of legal implications:

Increased potential for number of appeals due to higher number of refused planning applications

147




Summary of human resources implications:

Increased/ high workloads for existing staff, could affect staff moral leading to staff looking elsewhere for a
job. High workloads could result in increased levels of stress for the team and possible staff sickness

Summary of sustainability impact:

No Impact

Summary of public health implications:

No Impact

Summary of equality implications:

No Impact

Actions taken or planned to improve performance:

Staff training on BNG so they are less reliant on seeking advice from the ecologist thereby reducing delays
in the consultee process.

New protocol being put into place with regards to procedure for seeking an extension of time to a planning
application. Case officer to review an application no later than 6 weeks after receipt, if it looks likely that it
will not be possible to determine in time then to seek an EOT at that point. Should an agent decline then to
determine the application within the timeframe.

A new policy on accepting amended plans has recently been adopted. This sets out a clear procedure for
when we will accept amended plans or not. This will enable the case officer to have a clear framework for
assessing and determining the planning application. This includes refusing applications which are
unacceptable rather than seeking to negotiate a solution which often elongates the process unnecessarily
and leading to applications being determined past the decision date.

New report templates have been developed to streamline the report writing process and help reduce time
spent by case officers writing reports allowing them to focus on issuing decisions.

Completed by: Jon Bishop
Date: 05/11/2025

Service Unit Head approval with date:

148




Exception Performance Report

Please use this report to explain the reasons for performance not meeting target, the risks this presents in

each of the sections and the actions and intervention planned or in place to improve performance and
mitigate the risks identified.
This report will make up part of the overall corporate performance report presented to Cabinet.

Indicator Description (taken from performance scorecard):

Increase the percentage of waste diverted from landfill

2025/26 Q2 outturn: 86.25% Quarterly Target: 90%

Reason for level of performance:

Atemporary decrease in our landfill diversion rate is due to a decision made by our waste contractors to send
residual waste to landfill rather than to Energy from Waste (EfW) facilities.

This decision was part of their contingency plan to remain within the limits of the Environment Agency site
permits. It was necessary during a period when several regional EfW facilities were undergoing scheduled
maintenance resulting in a shortage of available capacity.

We will continue to monitor this situation and anticipate an improvement in our diversion rate during Q3 and
Q4.

Summary of financial implications:

The cost to BCP Council remains the same regardless of where our contractors send waste.

Summary of legal implications: n/a

Summary of human resources implications: n/a

Summary of sustainability impact:

While we remain committed to minimising landfill use and promoting sustainable waste management, our
ability to influence these decisions is limited by the current contract, which allows our contractors to select
the final disposal facility.

Summary of public health implications: n/a

Summary of equality implications: n/a

Actions taken or planned to improve performance

We continue to work closely with our contractors to encourage our landfill diversion rate to be as high as
possible. We are pleased to report that waste is once again being processed through the usual Energy from
Waste and Mechanical Biological Treatment routes, which is expected to improve our landfill diversion rate
in the future.

Completed by: Mariana Tomasova, Strategic Waste Officer
Date: 31.10.2025

Service Unit Head approval with date: 04/11/2025

149




Exception Performance Report

Please use this report to explain the reasons for performance not meeting target, the risks this presents in
each of the sections and the actions and intervention planned or in place to improve performance and
mitigate the risks identified.

This report will make up part of the overall corporate performance report presented to Cabinet.

Indicator Description (taken from performance scorecard): Increase the percentage of Education
Health Care Plans issued within 20 weeks

2025/26 Q2 outturn: 24.6% Quarterly Target: 70%

Reason for level of performance:

Since September 2024, we have been unable to resource the Educational Psychology (EP) team
sufficiently to keep up with the number of requests for Education Health and Care (EHC) Needs
Assessments and Plans. The rate of Initial Requests per 10,000 population shows that BCP have seen an
increase in initial requests between 2020 and 2024 with a rate of 105.7 in 2024 more than double
compared to 41.3 in 2020. BCP are above all the comparator groups in 2024 including the national average
at 88.1, the regional average at 95.9 and also above statistical neighbours 93.4.

In 2024 our 20-week timeliness improved due to a cash injection to resource the Educational Psychology
Service at the level which was required for them to meet the demand for EP assessments. The benefit of
this funding was clearly seen in the data, with a period of strong performance (above 70%) between Jun 24
and April 25. Bids to secure funding to resource the Educational Psychology Team at a higher level were
unsuccessful and the impact of this was forecast from mid 2024. Several further bids have been made to
fund the service at the level required to keep pace with the increased demand in order to comply with our
statutory duties —unsuccessfully.

The ceasing of this additional resource contributed significantly to, but is not wholly accountable for, the
extended timescales seen with the 20-week process more recently. Some delays were attributed to
administrative processes between the Business Support Team and Assistant EHCCO’s /EHCCO'’s. These
are now resolved and will need close monitoring.

The Educational Team have been prioritising children for assessment based on vulnerability factors and,
enough new requests to enable the ECH process to be completed in line with national average
performance. The notable dip in performance in Q2 may be attributed in part to previous prioritisation of EP
assessments —until August 2025 -which focussed only on a child's vulnerability factors. Other factors are
historic turbulence in staff turnover at EHCCO level which is now stabilising although this may not mean
that the timescales will improve as the rise in referrals to the system are increasing year on year.

Summary of legal implications:

Failure to adhere to statutory timescales as set out in the Children and Families Act a2014 /SEND Code of
Practice 2015

Actions taken or planned to improve performance:

Several bids to resource the Educational Psychology Service at the level required to meet demand have
been made through 2024 and 2025. Review current practice of how EP advice for SEND statutory
assessments are carried out once the Principal Educational Psychologist is in post later 2025 /early 2026

150




Completed by: Stefanie Gehrig Clark — Head of Performance, Governance & Systems

Date: 17 October 2025

Service Unit Head approval with date:
Jeanette York, Head of SEND Assessment and Review — 20 October 2025
Karen Chester, Interim Head of SEND Strategic — 20 October 2025

Exception Performance Report

Please use this report to explain the reasons for performance not meeting target, the risks this presents in
each of the sections and the actions and intervention planned or in place to improve performance and
mitigate the risks identified.

This report will make up part of the overall corporate performance report presented to Cabinet.

Indicator Description (taken from performance scorecard):

Increase the percentage of residents who are satisfied with their local area as a place to live

2024/25 Q4 outturn: 75% Target: 84%

Reason for level of performance:

The Resident’s Survey is now conducted every 2 years. The last one was done in 2024, and the next one
is due in autumn 2026.

The last survey showed that satisfaction with the local area remained consistent between 2023 and 2024
with 78% of respondents satisfied with the local area as a place to live. This was 3% higher than the
national benchmark observed through the LGA poll.

Unfortunately, levels of satisfaction didn’t increase to the levels observed in 2021 which saw 84% of
respondents satisfied with the local area as a place to live.

These figures must be seen in the context of the world around us including

- international and national events

- the lack of growth in the economy and the continual rise in the cost of living

- continual technological advances such as artificial intelligence

- how we are as a society following the COVID pandemic

And, considered in the context of local challenges that are faced by the Council including:
- The Council’s finances

- Increasing demand for services, especially social care

- Arecent history of political change

Additionally, levels of satisfaction with the local area vary across the conurbation and although caution is
advised as sample sizes at ward level are very small, some areas across the conurbation are markedly

151




different. For example, Burton and Grange have very high levels of satisfaction with 96% of respondents
saying they are satisfied living in the local area compared to Bournemouth Town Centre where this
decreases to 53% satisfied.

Summary of financial implications:

The Council’s financial position means an inevitable change in service provision. This is unlikely to change
soon despite a forecast balanced Medium Term Financial Plan.

Summary of equality implications:

The resident’s survey is open to everyone in Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole, with every effort taken
to ensure people with any protected characteristics were informed about and able to take the survey. The
data therefore reflects the views of those who responded. Further work can be done to analyse the results
to establish whether the change in satisfaction is stronger amongst those with one or more protected
characteristic.

Actions taken or planned to improve performance:

As a Council we continually strive to achieve our ambitions and our shared vision.
Through the Corporate Strategy Delivery Board, senior officers
- review progress every month

- encourage and oversee projects that implement new systems and processes that improve efficiency and
deliver better outcomes for residents and visitors

- monitor and review risks and ensure that there are mitigations in place

Successes regularly reported through our quarterly performance report and in other media show that the
Council can deliver quality services on the current resource levels, but as demand for services continues to
rise and consequently so do costs, to keep at the same level there is a need for more funding.

Unfortunately, Government grant continues to decrease. This means savings need to be found each year
which will and already is having an impact on service delivery.

This does not mean we will not continually strive to achieve our ambitions however, as we continually look
for ways to improve and be more efficient. In many cases this means utilising technology, working in
different ways and innovating new solutions.

The Council has limited ability to change the national or international picture too, but there is continued
lobbying of Government through appropriate channels on national issues, and involvement in shaping new
policies and partnerships by contributing evidence, data and examples.

Completed by: Lisa Stuchberry and Carly Hoyle
Date: 13.11.25

152




	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 Recommendation Tracker
	7 FutureCare Programme – Impact analysis and finance update
	8 University Hospitals Dorset - Developing our clinical strategy 2025-2035
	Slide 1: Developing our clinical strategy  2025-2035  Update – Health & Adult Social Care Overview & Scrutiny Committee 02.03.2026
	Slide 2: Introduction
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8
	Slide 9: Developing UHD's   Clinical Strategy
	Slide 10: Our refreshed strategy triangle...
	Slide 11
	Slide 12
	Slide 13: Writing a clinical strategy: The story so far
	Slide 14: Writing a clinical strategy: Current work & Next steps
	Slide 15: "You said" Themes
	Slide 16: Potential Opportunities
	Slide 17: Suggested % effort by theme
	Slide 18: Further develop our core services
	Slide 19: Poole becoming UK’s largest planned care hospital by 2027
	Slide 20: Royal Bournemouth Hospital Major Emergency Site 2026
	Slide 21
	Slide 22: Digital transformation
	Slide 23: From Hospital to Community
	Slide 24: Focus on Prevention
	Slide 25: University Status
	Slide 26: Expanding / networking
	Slide 27
	Slide 28
	Slide 29: Summary 
	Slide 30: Discussion and feedback

	9 Adult Social Care Fulfilled Lives Transformation Programme
	10 Work Plan
	App A HASC O&S draft work plan updated 17 Feb 26 DRAFT

	12 Corporate Monitoring Report (Q2)
	Appendix 1 for Corporate Performance Data and Commentary - Q2, 17/12/2025 Cabinet
	Appendix 2 Positive Exception Reports for Corporate Performance Report - Q2, 17/12/2025 Cabinet
	Appendix 3 Exception Reports for Corporate Performance Report - Q2, 17/12/2025 Cabinet


